1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Meeting of the Membership
March 24, 2021 @ 12:00 p.m.

Via Conference Call & Livestreamed

Call to Order

1.1

Call to Order Meeting of the Membership

Approval of Minutes:

2.1

Approval of Minutes of the February 24, 2021 Meeting of the Membership (Action Item) (Pages 3-7)

Reports / Action Items / Information Items:

3.1 Financial Report (Informational) (Pages 8-11)
32 Finance & Audit Committee Update (Informational) (Pages12-13)

a) Committee Self-Evaluation (Informational) (Pages 14-17)
33 Audited Financial Statements (Action Item) (Pages 18-53)
34 2020 — Investment Report (Action Item) (Pages 54-56)
3.5 Governance Committee Report (Informational) (Pages 57-58)

a) Committee Self-Evaluation (Informational) (Pages 59-63)

b) Board Self-Evaluation (Informational) (Page 64)
3.6 2021 Tax Incentives Induced/Closing Schedule/ Estimated Real Property Tax (Informational) (Pages 65-67)
3.7 Approval of Board Certification of RLF Plan (Pages 68-74)
3.8 Approval of COVID-19 Disaster Emergency Grant Applications (Action Item) (Separate Attachment)
3.9 UDAG Forgivable Loan for Welded Tube (Action Item) (Pages 75-80)
3.10 Policy Committee Update (Informational) (Pages 81-84)
Inducement Resolutions: ECIDA Private

Incentives Investment Municipality

4.1 Surmet Ceramics Corp. (Pages 85-121) $ 65,625 $11,500,000  Buffalo
4.2 Terzo Development/Bush Lofts (Pages 122-174) $304,125 $ 3,050,000 Buffalo

Special Resolutions

5.1

Polymer Conversions ECIDA Assignment Consent (Pages 175-198)

Review and Adoption of Policies, Reports and Committee Charters: (Separate Package)

SR W

2020 - Mission Statement, Performance Measures and Results (Action Item) (Pages 2-12)
2021 - Mission Statement and Performance Measures (Action Item) (Pages 13-23)

2020 - Public Authorities Report (Action Item) (Pages 24-84)

Procurement Policy (Action Item) (Pages 85-89)

Sexual Harassment Policy (Action Item) (Pages 90-98)

Employee Compensation Program (Action Item) (Pages 99-100)

Re-Adopt Policies & Charters

7.
8.
9.
10.
I1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17

Code of Ethics & Conflict of Interest Policy (Action Item) (Pages 101-106)

Investment & Deposit Policy (Action Item) (Pages 107-114)

Whistleblower Policy and Procedures (Action Item) (Pages 115-117)

Defense & Indemnification Policy (Action Item) (Page 118)

Finance & Audit Committee Charter (Action Item) (Pages 119-123)

Governance Committee Charter (Action Item) (Pages 124-127)

Property Disposition Guidelines (Action Item) (Pages 128-134)

Real Property Acquisition Policy (Action Item) (Pages 135-136)

Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement & Attendance Policy (Action Item) (Page 137).
Travel, Conferences, Meals & Entertainment Policy (Action Item) (Pages 138-144)

Statement of Duties & Responsibilities of the Board of Directors (Action Item) (Pages 1435-147)



7.0

8.0

18. Statement of the Competencies & Personal Attributes Required of Board Members (Action Item) (Page 148)
19. Corporate Credit Card Policy (Action Item) (Pages 149-151)

Management Team Reports:

7.1 2020 Year in Review

Adjournment- Next Meeting April 28, 2021 (Annual Meeting)



Draft
Subject to Board Approval

MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE
MEMBERSHIP OF THE

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

DATE AND PLACE:

LIVE STREAMED:

PRESENT:

EXCUSED:

OTHERS PRESENT:

GUESTS:

(ECIDA or AGENCY)

February 24, 2021, held via telephone conference. Governor Cuomo’s
Executive Order 202.1, as amended from time to time, issued in
response to the Coronavirus (COVID-19) crisis, suspended Article 7 of
the Public Officers Law to the extent necessary to permit any public
body to take actions without permitting in public in-person access to
such meetings and authorized such meetings to be held remotely by
conference call or other similar service, provided the public has the
ability to view or listen to such proceedings and that the meeting is
recorded and transcribed.

This meeting is being live-streamed and made accessible on the
ECIDA’s website at www.ecidany.com.

Denise Abbott, Hon. Diane Benczkowski, Rev. Mark E. Blue, Hon.
Joseph Emminger, Tyra Johnson, Hon. Brian Kulpa, Richard Lipsitz,
Brenda W. McDuffie, Hon. Glenn R. Nellis, Hon. Mark C. Poloncarz,
Sister Denise Roche and Kenneth A. Schoetz and Paul Vukelic

Hon. Bryon W. Brown, James Doherty, Dottie Gallagher, Hon. Howard
Johnson, Hon. Darius G. Pridgen and Renee Wilson

John Cappellino, President & CEO; Mollie Profic, Chief Financial
Officer; Karen M. Fiala, Vice President/Secretary; Atiga Abidi,
Assistant Treasurer, Gerald Manhard, Chief Lending Officer; Jamee
Lanthier, Compliance Officer; Beth O’Keefe, Business Development
Officer; Grant Lesswing, Business Development Officer; Brian
Krygier, Systems Analyst; Carrie Hocieniec, Administrative
Coordinator; Lori Szewczyk, Director of Grants; Robbie Ann
McPherson, Director, Marketing & Communications, and Robert G.
Murray, Esq., General Counsel/Harris Beach PLLC

Maria Whyte, Deputy County Executive; Andrew Federick, Erie County
Senior Economic Development Specialist; Lisa Hicks on behalf of the City

of Buffalo; Seth Piccirillo on behalf of Buffalo Niagara Partnership; Kirk

Dorn and Robert Laughlin on behalf of Time Release Properties; and Steve
Calzi on behalf of Eastman Machine Company

There being a quorum present at 12:05 p.m., the Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Erie County Industrial Development Agency was called to order by Chair McDuffie.

Page 1 of §



MINUTES

The minutes of the January 27, 2021 meeting of the members were presented. Mr. Nellis
moved and Sister Denise seconded to approve of the minutes. Ms. McDuffie called for the vote
and the minutes were unanimously approved.

REPORTS/ACTION ITEMS/INFORMATION ITEMS

Financial Report. Ms. Profic gave a brief update regarding the 2020 year-end audit process.
Freed Maxick auditors-have been performing fully remote audits. At this point we are awaiting the
drafts of the financial statements. There haven’t been any audit adjustments or other internal
control issues brought to our attention. The financial statements and related reports will be
reviewed in detail at the Finance & Audit Committee meeting on March 17. As a reminder, all
Board members are welcome to attend the Committee meeting. The final reports will be presented
to the Board at the March 24 for approval and submission to the ABO prior to the March 31
deadline.

The January financial reports show that the ECIDA ended 2020 with total assets of $28.3M
and net assets of $21M. The ECIDA had a nearly breakeven 2020 year before “Strategic
Investments and Initiatives”, with net income from operations of roughly $1,500. We achieved
97%, $1.85 million, of our administrative fee budget for the year, and had lower operating
expenses than anticipated, due mainly to lower staffing costs from employee turnover and lower
general expenses due to the pandemic. Included in that breakeven $1,500 net income are $57,000
of PPE grants that had been distributed prior to the end of the year. Strategic Investments of UDAG
monies totaled $1.4M, including grants to the ILDC for the purchase of the Angola Airport
property and carrying costs for the already ILDC-owned Bethlehem Steel property. Overall there
was a net loss of $1.5M in 2020.

The ECIDA finished the month of January with total assets of $28.5M, which includes
over $7.3M of unrestricted cash available for Agency operations, which includes the PPE Grant
program. (UDAG cash in excess of $10.9M is in restricted cash.) Net assets were $20.8M at the
end of January. The income statement shows an operating loss of $173,000 for January. Operating
revenue of $71,000 was under budget by about $242,000, due mainly to low administrative fee
receipts during the month. Operating expenses of $199,000 were about $17,000 under budget.
Under Special Project Grants, nearly $45,000 of PPE grant funds were disbursed to nine grantees
in January. After Strategic Investments and depreciation, there was a net loss of $273,000 for the
month. The year-to-date Income Statement is the same at this point, but also includes a comparison
to January 2020. Ms. McDuffie directed that the report be received and filed.

2021 Tax Incentive Induced/Closing Schedule/Estimated Real Property Tax Impact. Ms.
Fiala presented this report. Ms. McDuffie directed that the report be received and filed.

Approval of COVID-19 Disaster Emergency Grant Application. Ms. O’Keefe reviewed
the six (6) various grant applications presented to the members.

Ms. McDuffie confirmed no conflicts of interest or potential conflict of interests exist with
respect to any members of the Agency.

Page 2 of 5



Mr. Poloncarz moved and Ms. Abbott seconded to approve the six (6) grant applications.
Ms. McDuffie called for the vote and the following six (6) grant applications were unanimously
approved for COVID-19 Disaster Emergency Grants.

1. Be Fit Fitness, Inc.

2. Buffalo Glass Block Company

3. Buffalo River Fest Park, LLC/Valley Community Association Inc., Sole Member
4. Fika Midwifery PLLC

5. Greco Trapp, PLLC

6.

Sherri’s Little Angels Inc.

Policy Commiittee Update. Mr. Lipsitz noted the Policy Committee’s prior review and
approval of the Eastman Machine project being considered by the members at today’s meeting.
Ms. Whyte updated members on status of the MWBE Policy working group. Ms. McDuffie
directed that the report be received and filed.

INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION

Eastman Machine Company. 775 and 779 Washington Street, Buffalo. New York

At this point in time, Mr. Emminger joined the meeting.

Ms. Fiala reviewed this proposed sales tax exemption, mortgage recording tax exemption,
and real property tax abatement benefit project which consists of the construction of an
approximately 7,400 sq. ft. expansion to the company’s existing 130,000 sq. ft. facility which will
include storage for purchased items that are to be used in the assembly process.

As a condition precedent of receiving Financial Assistance, and as a material term or
condition as approved by the Agency in connection with the Project, the Company covenants and
agrees and understands that it must, subject to potential modification, termination and/or recapture
of Financial Assistance for failure to meet and maintain the commitments and thresholds as
described below, submit, on an annual basis or as otherwise indicated below through the
termination of the PILOT Agreement, a certification, as so required by the Agency, confirming:

) Investment Commitment- the total investment actually made with respect to the
Project at the time of Project completion equals or exceeds $1,415,250 (which
represents the product of §5% multiplied by $1,665,000, being the total project cost
as stated in the Company’s application for Financial Assistance).

(ii) Employment Commitment — that there are at least 126 existing full time equivalent
(“FTE”) employees located at, or to be located at, the Facility as stated in the
Company’s application for Financial Assistance (the “Baseline FTE™); and

e the number of current FTE employees in the then current year at the Facility;
and

e that within two (2) years of Project completion, the Company has maintained
and created FTE employment at the Facility equal to 128 FTE employees

Page 3 of 5



[representing the sum of (x) 126 Baseline FTE and (y) 2 FTE employees, being
the product of 85% and 3 (representing the 3 new FTE employee positions
proposed to be created by the Company as stated in its Application)]. In an
effort to confirm and verify the Company’s employment numbers, the Agency
requires that, at a minimum, the Company provide employment data to the
Agency on a quarterly basis, said information to be provided on the Agency’s
“Quarterly Employment Survey” form to be made available to the Company by
the Agency.

(iii)  Local Labor Commitment - that the Company adheres to and complies with the
Agency’s Local Labor Workforce Certification Policy on a quarterly basis during
the construction period.

(iv)  Equal Pay Commitment — that the Company adheres to and complies with the
Agency’s Pay Equity Policy.

(v) Unpaid Real Property Tax Policy Commitment — that the Company is compliant
with the Agency’s Unpaid Real Property Tax Policy.

Mr. Blue moved and Mr. Vukelic seconded to approve the Project. Ms. McDulffie then
called for the vote and the following resolution was unanimously approved:

RESOLUTION OF THE ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY: (i) ACCEPTING THE APPLICATION OF EASTMAN MACHINE
COMPANY, AND/OR  INDIVIDUAL(S) OR  AFFILIATE(S),
SUBSIDIARY(IES), OR ENTITY(IES) FORMED OR TO BE FORMED ON ITS
BEHALF (INDIVIDUALLY, AND/OR COLLECTIVELY, THE “COMPANY”)
IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN PROJECT DESCRIBED BELOW; (ii)
RATIFYING THE SCHEDULING, NOTICING, AND CONDUCTING OF A
PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROJECT; (iii) MAKING A
DETERMINATION PURSUANT TO THE STATE ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY REVIEW ACT; (iv) APPOINTING THE COMPANY, OR ITS
DESIGNEE, AS ITS AGENT TO UNDERTAKE THE PROJECT; (v)
AUTHORIZING THE UNDERTAKING OF THE PROJECT TO PROVIDE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO THE COMPANY IN THE FORM OF (A) A
SALES TAX EXEMPTION BENEFIT FOR PURCHASES AND RENTALS
RELATED TO THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF
THE PROJECT, (B) A MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX EXEMPTION
BENEFIT FOR FINANCING RELATED TO THE PROJECT, AND (C) A
PARTIAL ABATEMENT FROM REAL PROPERTY TAXES BENEFIT
THROUGH THE PILOT AGREEMENT; AND (vi) AUTHORIZING THE
NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF A LEASE AGREEMENT,
LEASEBACK  AGREEMENT, A  PAYMENT-IN-LIEU-OF-TAX
AGREEMENT, AN AGENT AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT
AGREEMENT, AND RELATED DOCUMENTS

Page 4 of 5



AMENDATORY INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION

Time Release Properties. LLC / Time Release Sciences. Inc.. 2303 Hamburg Tumpike.
Lackawanna. New York

Ms. Fiala reviewed the proposed sales tax benefit increase request submitted by the
Company resulting from increased project and material costs associated with construction costs.

Mr. Poloncarz thanked the Company for proactively reaching out to the Agency for a sales
tax increase.

Mr. Poloncarz moved and Mr. Lipsitz seconded to approve the Project. Ms. McDuffie then
called for the vote and the following resolution was unanimously approved:

AMENDATORY INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION OF THE ERIE COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL  DEVELOPMENT AGENCY  AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A REVISED SALES TAX EXEMPTION
PACKAGE AND RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE TIME
RELEASE PROPERTIES, LLC PROJECT (AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED

BELOW)
MANAGEMENT TEAM REPORT
Mr. Cappellino provided the Management Team Report.

There being no further business to discuss, Ms. McDuffie adjourned the meeting of the
Agency at 12:30 p.m.

Dated: February 24, 2021

Karen M. Fiala, Secretary

Page 5 of 5



Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Financial Statements
As of February 28, 2021




ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY ("ECIDA")

Balance Sheet
February 28, 2021

February 2021 January 2021 December 2020
ASSETS:

Cash * $ 7,374,617 $ 7,328,846 $ 7,617,692
Restricted Cash & Investments * 17,816,284 17,752,214 17,341,353

Due from Affiliates 694,693 611,873 877,11

Due from Buffalo Urban Development Corp. 143,831 131,786 120,375
Other Receivables 80,065 81,041 51,916
Total Current Assets 26,109,491 25,905,760 25,708,448
Grants Receivable 831,498 831,498 831,498
Venture Capital Investments, net of reserves 506,886 506,886 506,886
Capital Assets 1,254,523 1,239,227 1,249,227
Total Long-Term Assets 2,592,907 2,577,611 2,587,611
TOTAL ASSETS $ 28,702,397 3 28,483,371 $ 28,296,059

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

Accounts Payable & Accrued Exp. $ 207,689 $ 199,601 $ 239,094
Deferred Revenues 828,500 825,000 825,000
Funds Held on Behalf of Others 6,697,827 6,634,433 6,134,120
Total Liabilities 7,734,016 7,659,034 7,198,214

Net Assets 20,968,381 20,824,337 21,097,845
TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS $ 28,702,397 $ 28,483,371 $ 28,296,059

«  Cash and restricted cash is invested in checking accounts at M&T Bank. The maximum FDIC insured amount =
$250,000 with the remainder of the cash balance collateralized with government obligations by the financial
institution.



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY ("ECIDA")
Income Statement
Month of February 2021

REVENUES:
Administrative Fees
Affiliate Management Fees

Interest income - Cash & Investments

Rental Income
Other Income
Total Revenues

EXPENSES:
Salaries & Benefits
General Office Expenses
Building Operating Costs
Professional Services
Public Hearings & Marketing

Travel, Mileage & Meeting Expenses

Other Expenses
Total Expenses

SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Revenues
Expenses

NET INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE OTHER STRATEGIC

INVESTMENTS & DEPRECIATION:

OTHER STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS AND INITIATIVES:

Zero Net Energy costs (Z7+)

Bethlehem Steel Industrial Park Grant

Angola Ag Park Grant

NET INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE DEPRECIATION:

Depreciation

NET INCOME/(LOSS):

10

Actual vs. Budget

Actual Budget Variance
$ 296,511 $ 150,000 $ 146,511
43,117 43,583 (467)
1,092 3,333 (2,241)
19,894 19,875 19
- 1,333 (1,333)
360,613 218,125 142,488
$ 144251 $ 157,140 $ (12,889)
21,107 21,283 (176)
21,940 20,358 1,581
9,440 9,775 (335)
6,581 4,583 1,997
125 2,750 (2,625)
97 833 (737)
203,540 216,724 (13,184)
$ - $ 13350 $ (13,350)
(51,989) (7,917) (44,073)
(61,989) 5,433 (57,423)
105,084 6,835 98,249
- (52,160) 52,160
48,960 (16,667) 65,627
- (8,333) 8,333
48,960 (77,160) 126,120
154,044 (70,325) 224,369
(10,000) (10,833) 833
3 144044 $ (81,158) $ 225202




ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY ("ECIDA")

REVENUES:
Administrative Fees
Affiliate Management Fees
Interest Income - Cash & Investments
Rental Income
Other Income
Total Revenues

EXPENSES:
Salaries & Benefits
General Office Expenses
Building Operating Costs
Professional Services
Public Hearings & Marketing
Travel, Mileage & Meeting Expenses
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Revenues
Expenses

NET INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE OTHER STRATEGIC

INVESTMENTS & DEPRECIATION:

Income Statement

Year to Date: February 28, 2021

Actual vs. Budget

Actual vs. Prior Year

OTHER STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS AND INITIATIVES:

Zero Net Energy costs (Z7+)

Bethiehem Steel Industrial Park Grant
Angola Ag Park Grant

Bethlehem Steel Industrial Park Grant Reimb
Buffalo Building Reuse Project (BUDC)
Canadian Lead Generation (IBN)

Other Strategic Initiatives

NET INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE DEPREC:

Depreciation

NET INCOME/(LOSS):

Actual Budget Variance Actual Prior Year Variance
$ 303354 § 300,000 $ 3,354 $ 303,354 $ 227,800 § 75,464
86,200 87,167 (967) 86,200 86,500 {300)
2,309 6,667 (4,358) 2,309 19,055 (16,746)
39,788 39,750 38 39,788 39,755 33
- 2,667 (2,667) - - -
431,651 436,250 (4,599) 431,651 373,200 58,452
288,583 314,281 (25,697) 288,583 332,852 (44,269)
40,909 42,567 (1,657) 40,909 51,721 (10,812)
38,138 40,717 (2,579) 38,138 38,100 38
18,560 15,000 3,560 18,560 10,051 8,509
15,923 9,167 6,756 15,923 10,170 5,753
196 5,500 (5,304) 196 13,566 (13,370)
746 1,667 (920) 746 730 16
403,055 428,897 (25,842) 403,055 457,191 (54,135)
120 26,700 (26,580) 120 920 (800)
(96.,816) (15,833) (80,983) (96,816) (1,539) (95,277)
(96,696) 10,867 (107,563) (96,696) (619) (96,077)
$ (68,100) § 18,219 $ (86,320) 5 (68,100) $ (84,610) § 16,509
$ - $ (104,319 § 104,319 $ g $ . $ -
(29,621) (200,000) 170,379 (29,621) (80,000) 50,379
(11,743) (100,000) 88,257 (11,743) - (11,743)
- 250,000 (250,000) - - -
- (100,000} 100,000 - - -
- - - - (72,000) 72,000
- (125,000} 125,000 - - -
(41,364) (379,319) 337,956 (41,364) (152,000} 110,636
(109,464) (361,100) 251,636 (109,464) (236,610) 127,146
(20,000) (21,667) 1,667 (20,000) (21,667) 1,667
$ (129,464) $  (382,767) $ 253,303 $  (129,464) $ (258,276)  $ 128,812

11




THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY

To: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC Boards of Directors
From: Michael Szukala, Chair

Date: March 24, 2021

Re: Finance & Audit Committee Report

In accordance with its Committee Charter, the Finance & Audit Committee is required to “report its actions and
recommendations to the Board at each regular meeting of the Board following a meeting of the Finance and Audit
Comnmittee and when otherwise requested by the Board”. This report is prepared to satisfy this requirement.

A joint meeting of the ECIDA, RDC & ILDC Finance & Audit Committee was held on March 17, 2021.
Committee members present were: Michael Szukala, Chair, Penny Beckwith, Glenn Nellis, and William
Witzleben. The following items were reviewed:

1) Freed Maxick CPAs Report including Draft 2020 Audited Financial Statements

The Agency’s auditors presented the Draft 2020 Audited Financial Statements for ECIDA, RDC, and

ILDC (copies of which are included in respective Board packages).

e The independent auditors expressed an unmodified (clean) opinion on the financial statements of all
entities. This type of opinion indicates that the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the corporations as of December 31, 2020 and the changes in
financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

* No uncorrected audit adjustments were noted.

e No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal controls noted.

2) Public Authorities 2020 Report
The joint Finance & Audit Committee approved the Public Authorities 2020 Report required under the
Public Authorities Law and recommended that it be approved by their respective Boards.

3) 2020 Investment Reports
The joint Finance & Audit Committee approved the 2020 Investment Reports, which are required under
the Public Authorities Law and recommended that they be approved by their respective Boards.

4) Investment and Deposit Policy (Re-adoption)
The joint Finance & Audit Committee reviewed the Investment and Deposit Policy and recommended
that it be approved by their respective Boards.

5) Finance & Audit Committee Charter (Re-adoption)
The joint Finance & Audit Committee reviewed the joint Committee Charter and recommended that it be
approved by their respective Boards.

Erie County Industrial Development Agency * 95 Perry Street, Suite 403 - Buffalo, New York 14203 - ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 + www.ecidany.com

12



6) Corporate Credit Card Policy (Re-adoption)
The joint Finance & Audit Committee approved the Corporate Credit Card policy and reviewed the card

activity over the past year as required by the policy.

7) Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation
The joint Finance & Audit Committee prepared a report that documents the Committee’s activities for

2020 as required under the Public Authorities Law.

8) The Committee reviewed Management’s Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal Controls, a
document prepared by management based on internal control processes and procedures of the
organization. The document will be posted on the website as required by the ABO.

9) The Committee reviewed a document entitled “The Strategic Audit Committee: Navigating 2021 by

Deloitte’s Center for Board Effectiveness to satisfy the educational requirements set forth in the Finance
& Audit Committee Charter.

13



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County
Regional Development Corporation (RDC), and Buffalo and Erie County
Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC)

2020 Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation
Responsibilities of the Finance & Audit Committee:

The core responsibilities of the Finance & Audit Committee, as mandated under Section
2825 of the New York Public Authorities Law, are set forth in the Bylaws and include: (i) providing
assistance to members of the Agency in fulfilling their fiduciary responsibilities relating to
accounting, reporting, and regulatory compliance practices; (ii) maintaining, through regular
meetings, direct communication between the members of the Agency and the Agency’s independent
accountants and auditors; (iii) maintaining direct communication between members of the Agency
and the governmental authorities having audit authority or fiscal oversight of the Agency; (iv)
approving the budget of the Agency for submission to the Board; (v) approving and/or directing the
transfers of moneys under the budget; (vi) recommending to the Board the level of cash reserves
and the level of fund balances of the Agency.

Pen

Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation Yes No ding Comments

Are the members of the Finance & Audit X | O | O
Committee appointed in accordance with
the Bylaws and do individuals appointed to
the Finance & Audit Committee possess
the necessary skills to understand the
duties and functions of the Finance & Audit
Committee and are familiar with corporate
financial and accounting practices? .

2. Is each member of the Finance & Audit X | O | O
Committee an “independent member”
within the meaning of, and to the extent
required by, Section 2825 of the New York
Public Authorities Law, as amended from
time to time? Did Finance & Audit
Committee members, who are members of
the Agency, comply with the conflict of
interest provisions applicable to public
officers under Article 18 of the New York
General Municipal Law?

3. Did the Finance & Audit Committee meeta | [X [0 | [ | TheFinance & Audit
minimum of twice each calendar year? Committee met on

3/20/20, 8/18/20,

9/16/20, and 10/16/20.

1.

14



Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation

4. Were meeting notices and agendas
prepared for each meeting and provided to
Finance & Audit Committee members by
electronic or regular mail at least five (5)
days in advance of the scheduled
meeting? Were minutes of all meetings
recorded by the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Agency? Did all meetings
comply with the requirements of the Open
Meetings Law?

Yes

X

Comments

5. Did the Finance & Audit Committee
develop the Agency's audit practices,
which should address independent
auditors and financial statements; internal
controls, compliance, and risk assessment;
special investigations; and other
responsibilities?

See Questions #6-#10
below.

6. Did the Finance & Audit Committee:

(a) Recommend to the Board the appointment
of independent auditors, establish the
compensation to be paid to the auditors,
and provide oversight of the audit services
provided by the independent auditor?

(b) Establish procedures for the engagement of
the independent auditors to provide
permitted audited services?

(c) Review and approve the Agency’s audited
financial statements, associated
management letter, and all other auditor
communications?

(d) Review significant accounting and reporting
issues and understand their impact on the
financial statements of the Agency?

(e) Meet with the Agency’s independent auditor
at least annually to discuss the financial
statements of the Agency and any issues
that may have arisen during the audit?

(f) Review and discuss any significant risks
reported in the independent audit and
assess the responsiveness of
management'’s follow-up activities regarding
same?

In March of 2020, Freed
Maxick completed audits
of the ECIDA, RDC, and
ILDC for the year ended
12/31/19. The auditors
issued an unmodified
(clean) opinion that the
statements fairly
presented the financial
position of the above
referenced corporations.
The auditors also
indicated that the audits
did not uncover any
material weaknesses in
internal control and there
were no instances of
non-compliance in
accordance with
government auditing
standards.

15



Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation

7.

Did the Finance & Audit Committee review
management’s assessment of the
effectiveness of the Agency’s internal
controls and review the actions taken by
management on the independent
accountants’ and auditors’ suggestions for
correcting weaknesses in the Agency's
internal controls, regulatory compliance,
and organizational structure and
operations?

Comments

Management's
assessment of the
effectiveness of internal
controls was reviewed
with the Committee at
the March 2020
meeting. The March
2020 audit reports did
not identify any internal
control deficiencies or
material weaknesses.

Did the Finance & Audit Committee:

Ensure that the Agency has a confidential
mechanism for individuals to report
suspected fraudulent activities, allegations
of corruption, fraud, criminal activity,
conflicts of interest by directors, officers, or
employees of the Agency or anyone
having business dealings with the Agency?

Develop procedures for the receipt,
retention, investigation, or referral of
complaints concerning accounting, internal
controls, and auditing?

Request and oversee special
investigations as needed or refer specific
issues tothe Board or appropriate
committee for further investigation?

The ECIDA adopted a
Whistleblower Policy in
March of 2012. The
Policy describes the
process for reporting
suspected fraudulent
activities and describes
the protections afforded
to individuals who report
suspected fraudulent
activities. The Policy
was re-adopted by the
Board of Directors on
3/25120.

Did the Finance & Audit Committee obtain
information and training needed to
enhance the committee members’
understanding of the role of the
independent auditor, the risk management
process, internal controls, and appropriate
level of familiarity in financial reporting
standards and processes?

On 3/20/20, the
Committee reviewed an
article entitled, “The
Strategic Audit
Committee: A 2020
Preview” published by
the Deloitte Center for
Board Effectiveness.

16




Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation

10. Did the Finance & Audit Committee;

(a) Report its actions and recommendations to _ <
the Board? reported on its activities

(b) Report to the Board at least annually
regarding any changes to the Finance &

Audit Committee Charter? ; .
. . (1) Audit & Finance
(c) Provide a self-gvaluatlon to the Board on Committee self-
an annual basis? evaluation: (2) Audit &
(d) Report to the Board at least annually on Finance Committee
the findings of its independent auditors? Charter; (3) draft 2019
financial statements
audited by Freed
Maxick, CPAs; (4)
Corporate Credit Card

Comments

On 3/25/20, the Audit &
Finance Committee

to the ECIDA Board of
Directors. These
-activities included the;

Policy; (5) 2019 Public
Authorities Annual
Report; (6) Investment
& Deposit Policy; and
(7) 2019 Investment
Reports.

Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation

Other Self-Evaluation Notes

In addition to the above:

During its 3/9/20 meeting, the Committee reviewed drafts of the 2019 audited financial
statements for the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC. The Committee also reviewed the 2019
PAAA Annual Report, 2019 Investment Reports, Investment & Deposit Policy, Finance
& Audit Committee Charter, Corporate Credit Card Policy, and the 2019 Finance &
Audit Self-Evaluation.

During its 8/18/20 meeting, ECIDA staff discussed the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC budget|
review process and the timelines for obtaining approval for those budgets. The
Committee also reviewed drafts of the 2021 ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC operating and
capital budgets and three-year forecasts. The Committee also voted to recommend a
bond issuance for D’Youville College.

During its 9/16/20 meeting, the Committee voted to recommend a bond issuance for
Related Affordable/Elmwood Square Apartments. The Committee also approved drafts
of the 2021 ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC operating and capital budgets and three-year
forecasts for recommendation to their respective Boards. In addition, the Committee
approved an extension for Freed Maxick to provide auditing services to the ECIDA,
RDC, and ILDC for the year ending 12/31/2020.

During the 10/16/20 meeting, Freed Maxick reviewed their 2020 Audit Plan for
ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC.

17



AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELORY

AGENCY

DECEMBER 31, 2020

18



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditor’'s Report
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements:

Statements of Net Position

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Posi

Statements of Cash Fiows
Notes to Financial Statements
Supplementary Information:

Combining Statement of Net Position

19

Page

10
11
12-20

21
22

23-24



FINANCIAL § :TION,

20



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2020
{(UNAUDITED)

Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) is a public benefit corporation that provides tax
incentives, financing programs, international trade assistance, land development and other economic
development services to the City of Buffalo (the City) and Erie County, Ne, :-g(ork (the County). In
accomplishing its mission, ECIDA does not receive any operational funding fromiFederal, State, County or
local sources. Instead, ECIDA relies primarily upon administrative fees char ‘to those businesses that
utilize its products and services. 1

"\ndards issued by the
34 \BaSIC Financial

As a public benefit corporatlon ECIDA is required to comply with.

In compliance with GASB Statement No. 34, we present the‘a{iach‘e everwew and analysis of the financial
activities of ECIDA as of and for the years ended December 31‘;2’020 2019 and 2018. We encourage

statements. (‘, ‘

In 2020 the ECIDA was significantly mpact&!“by the GO! D19, paﬁdemlc and state of emergency
declaration in New York State. ECIDA worked dili enﬂy ith. ec%nag development partners in Erie County
to provide assistance and suppo 4o-businesses ¢ eg vely impacted by the pandemic. In 2020, certain
sections of New York State G eral«&lummpal Law. wére amended and allowed industrial development
agencies in the State to proy u‘ie financigl assistanck-in the form of loans and/or grants to eligible small
businesses and not-for-pf s fit. corporatlo ‘;s in an effol to alleviate the financial hardship caused by the
i Disaster Emergency Grant Program in July 2020,

general funds. Several references are made in this

with an |n|t|al fundmg aliocs tior
MDA&A to the pandemlc and

position. Ov tlme increases or decreases in ECIDA’s net position are an indicator of whether its
financial healthtis improving or deteriorating.

2) Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — This statement reports
ECIDA's operating and nonoperating revenues by major source along with operating and
nonoperating expenses. The difference between total revenues and expenses can be one way to
measure ECIDA’s operating results for the year.

3) Statements of Cash Flows — This statement reports ECIDA's cash flows from operating, capital and
related financing, and investing activities.

21



Financial Highlights

ECIDA’s total net position decreased by 7% from $22,622,000 in 2019 to $21,098,000 in 2020.
ECIDA experienced a decrease in net position of $1,524,000 in 2020 compared to an increase of
$507,000 in 2019.

o Administrative fees, a key source of revenue for ECIDA, increased 16% from $1,591,000 in 2019
to $1,850,000 in 2020.

s Net special project grants decreased to a loss of $1,363,000 in 2020 from $853,000 of income in
2019.

s Operating expenses decreased 3% from $2,827,000 in 2019 to $2,747,000 in 2020.

Condensed Comparative Financial Statements:
1. Statements of Net Position:

The following table (Table 1) presents condensed comparative fingaci ir
the audited statements of net position of ECIDA. .

Table 1
Statements of Net Position at Dece
(Amounts in tho

i A
- $ Change % Change 2018

Assets: )
Cash ‘%9.,\ 23 W (353) 2% $ 17,302
Loans receivable, net of allowance %&}, {56) -100% 97

Capital assets, net 8 (109) -8% 1,444
Other assets 1,722 366 21% 3,574
Restricted cash 7,939 (1,650) -21% 7,373
Total assets 3‘,$ 30,098 $ (1,802) 6% $ 29,790
Liabifities:
Current I|ab|Il'_ - o $ 1,064 $ 691 $ 373 54% $ 1,377
Funds held'on‘hehalf.o] S - 6,134 6,786 (652) -10% 6,242
Other Jéng-t iabilities, . - - - 0% .56
aLs =W
T 7,198 7,477 (279) -4% 7,675
Net positions 77, -
Investmentifieapi sets 1,249 1,358 (109) -8% 1,444
Restricted 11,647 13,009 (1,362) -10% 12,131
Unrestricted 8,202 8,255 (53) -1% 8,540
Total net position 21,098 22,622 {1,524) -7% 22,115
Total liabilities and net position $ 28,296 $ 30,099 $ (1,803) -6% $ 29,790

Cash — ECIDA’s cash balance decreased 2% or $353,000 primarily due to an increase in receivables of
$524,000 and an overall decrease in net position of $1,434,000. The increase in cash from 2018 to 2019
was a result of the collection of grants receivable of $1,883,000 and an increase in net position of $507,000.

Loans Receivable — Loans receivable represents conduit receivables. The $56,000 decrease in the loans
receivable balance is due to the final conduit loan repayments received during 2020.

4

22



Restricted Cash (Funds held on behalf of others) — Restricted cash consists primarily of funds held on
behalf of others including the Buffalo Brownfields Redevelopment fund, Regional Redevelopment fund and
PILOT Increment Financing (PIF) funds. Also included are investment sales proceeds held in escrow. The
$1,650,000 or 21% decrease from 2019 is due to a decrease in the sales proceeds held in escrow of
$1,000,000 and a decrease of $762,000 in the Buffalo Brownfields Redevelopment Fund. Sales proceeds
held in escrow were released during 2020 and there were continued temporary borrowings from the Buffalo
Brownfields Redevelopment Fund by Buffalo Urban Development Corporation.

Other Assets — Other assets include ECIDA’s grants receivable, venture capital investments, affiliate
receivables, prepaid expenses, and other receivables. The increase in other assets of $366,000 from 2019
to 2020 is primarily due to an increase in grants receivable of $500,000, with th€award of a new grant
during the year. This increase was offset by a $127,000 decrease in investm ts: The decrease in other

assets between 2018 and 2019 also related mainly to a decrease in grants ivable of $1,883,000.

Current Liabilities — The $373,000 increase in current liabilities fromé ik
$581,000 increase in unearned revenue related to grant funds awarded”

toa decrease in unearned revenue of $398 000 and a decreasé gg*éccounts payable 3,

Other Long-Term Liabilities — Other long-term liabilitie _:pﬂmanly congisted of condun\}bt There has
been no long-term portion of conduit debt outstanding in"202 9. ;'f‘!"ﬁe decrease from 2018 to 2019
was due to payments on loan participation agreements madea, 4

2. Change in Net Position:

2019 $ Change % Change 2018

Revenue:

Administrative $ 1,850 $ 15691 $ 259 16% $ 1,201

387 363 24 7% 429

439 388 51 13% 570

$ 2676 $ 2,342 $ 334 14% $ 2,200

$ 2004 $ 1982 3B 22 1% $ 2,017

625 726 (101) -14% 791

118 119 (1) -1% 119

Total expenses 2,747 2,827 (80) -3% 2,927
Operating loss before special project grants (71) (485) 414 -85% (727)

Special grants and nonoperating revenue

Net special project grants (1,363) 853 (2,216) -260% 1,084

Investment income (loss) (127) 3z (159) -497% 42

Interest income 37 107 (70) -65% 58

Change in net position $ (1.524) & 507 $ (2,031) -401% $ 457

5

23



3. Revenue Analysis:

Administrative Fees — Administrative fees are primarily collected from the issuance of various forms of tax
abatements and tax-exempt financing. Fees for tax abatements are based on the amount of project
investment. ECIDA relies on these fees to cover its operating costs; however, the amount of fees collected
in any given year is largely dependent upon the local economic climate and the timing between project
approval and project commencement. Administrative fees increased $259,000 or 16% in 2020 primarily
due to an increase in the average size of project investment from $16 million in 2019 to $24 million in 2020.
Also during 2020, one project was closed through ILDC that generated $382,000 of administrative fees that
were passed-through to ECIDA, compared to two projects that generated $168, '0/(()9 of administrative fees
in 2019.

‘aiid overhead costs charged
to the following ECIDA afflhates for services that ECIDA’s employees pro de'_ these organizations:;
7 B
+ Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation @&) a Ien Ying norporatlon affiliated
with ECIDA. A
¢ Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development £¢r
corporation affiliated with ECIDA. A

The following table (Table 3) illustrates the amounts cha e to E
with comparisons for 2019 and 2018:

AR
o 20‘!_9 7 $ Change % Change 2018

302 $ (10) -3% $ 352
61 34 56% 77
363 § 24 7% $ 429

> % RDC decreased $10,000 or 10% primarily due to increased staff time
' ’Eﬁ2020." -‘huse charged to ILDC mcreased $34,000 or 34% due to an increase

- il
‘-@%her inco §§ comprised of rental income, international division revenues, loan interest,
and miscellanecus thcome< The increase of $51,000 or 13% in 2020 is due mainly to an increase in rental
income related to on o CIDA’s properties, which can vary from year to year. The decrease in 2019 from
2018 related to the recgvery of a previously written off loan of $150,000 in 2018 that inflated miscellaneous
income for that year.

4. Expense Analysis:

Salaries and Benefits — Increase of $22,000 in 2020 is primarily due to a $39,000 increase in accrued
leave and a $16,000 increase in health insurance expenses. Many employees ended 2020 with larger than
usual accrued leave balances due to less paid time off used in 2020. There were also payments to two
employees who ended their employment with the Agency during the year. Health insurance costs increased
due to increased premiums. These increases were offset by a $36,000 decrease in payroll expense, due
fo two employees leaving the Agency in 2020.

24



General and Administrative — In 2020, General and Administrative expenses decreased $101,000 from
$726,000 to $625,000. Key expense differences in 2020 include the following:

e Sponsorship expenses decreased $49,000 due to the expiration of an agreement with an economic
development partner and a decrease in event sponsorships as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

» Conference and travel-related expenses decreased $24,000 due to the cancellation of in-person
conferences and events due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

S

» | egal expenses decreased $17,000 because of decreased need for legal ser\?

Depreciation — Depreciation expense was $117,000 for 2020 compared to $ | ,:9‘00 for 2019.

ne ?galn of $853,000 in 2019
@Il heacqunsutlon of property

at the former Angola Alrport snte ECIDA also established a CO AD-Y9 Personal Protective Equipment
(PPE) Grant program in 2020 in response to the state of emergent K State. $57,000

> “féleclared in NewYs :
of grants were expended in 2020. In 2019, $1,390,000 was J€iir ';acqwsmon of
property and certain other costs related to the Bethlehem Siéel 5

of property at the site. Those reimbursements were the dgiver

Investment Income (Loss) — The investment Ioss of $127800.is4us to a valuation decrease of one of
ECIDA’s venture capital investments. '

5. Budget Analysis:

‘(‘Tﬁe Board of Directors on October
!DA s performance compared to the

ECIDA prepares an annual budget which was preser OiR
23, 2019. The following table (Tab|e 4) present .a‘n a |y5|s oFE
approved 2020 budget. "

Actual

Budget $ Variance % Variance

o> 8 1850 $ 1,90 $ (50) 3%

“ pfiliate management 387 405 (18) 4%
vpt.her income 439 440 (1) 0%
fif 2,676 2,745 (69) 3%
e 2,004 2,114 (110) -5%
General an admlnlstratlve 625 786 (161) -20%
Depreciation and other 118 140 (22) -16%
Total expenses 2,747 3,040 (293) -10%
Operating loss before special
project grants (71) (295) 224 -76%
Net special project grants (1,363) (2,5672) 1,209 -47%
Investment income (loss) (127) - (127) 100%
Interest income 37 105 (68) -65%
Change in net position $ (1,524) $ (2,762) $ 1,238 -45%
7

25



Budget to Actual Analysis:

Overall, ECIDA exceeded its budgeted decrease in net position for 2020 by $1,238,000. Total revenue was
3% below the budgeted amount due to both administrative fees and affiliate management fees below
budgeted amounts. Total expenses were $293,000, or 10%, below budget. Net special project grants had
a positive variance of $1,209,000 as some of the budgeted special projects were not funded in 2020,
including $1,000,000 of venture capital activity and $1,000,000 for a forgivable attraction loan, which were
included in the budget as a placeholder. Interest income fell $68,000 below budget, due to sharp decreases
in interest rates as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

6. Economic Factors impacting ECIDA:

7. Requests for Information:

&
This financial report is designed to provide a general©vervi

concerning any of the financial information provided in this8poi addressed to the ' ]FO of ECIDA

" a’l“lts website, www.ecidany.com.

26



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31,

See accompanying notes.
9

27

ASSETS 2020 2019
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,669,826 $ 19,023,148
Receivables
Current portion of conduit loans - 56,294
Affiliates 577,111 553,651
Grants 831,498 331,434
Other 128,734 126,649
Prepaid expenses ﬁ,sss 76,118
Total current assets 20,250,727 20,167,294
Noncurrent assets: /
Capital assets, net ¢ 1,358,104
Investments 2 634,061
Restricted cash 6,289,218 7,839,159
Total noncurrent assets . 3 8,045,331 9,931,324
Total assets 28296058 $ 30,098.618
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 74652 $ 211,642
Accrued expenses , 164,444 179,329
Current portion of conduit debt =5 > - 56,294
Unearned revenue 0 \ 3 825,000 243,707
Total current liabilities #°» i 1,064,096 690,972
Noncurrent liabilities: B LY
Funds held W@k{&othe 6,134,119 6,785,656
Total nonc/ Bpt i ’\ , N 6,134,119 6,785,656
i \ \‘vf 7,198,215 7,476,628
1,249,227 1,358,104
Restricted bl 11,646,524 13,008,827
Unrestricted < 8,202,092 8,255,059
Total net position 21,097,843 22 621,990
Total liabilities and net position $ 28,296,058 % 30,098.618




ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2020 2019
Operating revenues:
Administrative fees $ 1,860,078 % 1,590,700
Affiliate management fees and related income 387,152 363,803
Rental income 287,717 246,217
Loan interest - 21
Other income 150,651 141,856
Total operating revenues ’33_75 598 2,342 597
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 1,982,021
General and administrative 726,329
Depreciation 118,825
Other expenses ) : 595
Total operating expenses £ 2,746,685 2,827,770
Operating loss before special project grants (71,087) (485,173)
Special project grants:
Revenues 112,937 2,236,240
Expenses ‘ (1,475,907) (1,382,771)
Net income (loss) from spe?gjgg;(\ grants \ . (1,362,970) 853,469
Operating income (loss) > : (1,434,057) 368,296
=y 2
A . . &
Nonoperating revenues {gxpenses)s T e
Investment income (loss) Wi 407 el (127,175) 31,915
Interest income o < 37,085 107,000
: (90,090) 138,915
(1,524,147) 507,211
23,500,096 22,992 885

$ 21975949 $ 23,500,096

See accompanying notes.
10

28



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from fees and rental income $ 2,137,710 $ 1,808,145
Cash received from special project grants 194,166 3,721,462
Loan repayments and loan interest collected - 3,198
Cash received from affiliates and other sources 514,343 514,282
Payments to employees, suppliers, and other (2,750,975) (3,026,465)
Payments for special project grants 14475,907) (1,382,771)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities A_1,380J663) 1,637,851

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Purchases of capital assets : (33,396)
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities < (33,396)
Cash flows from investing activities: 3 v
Change in restricted cash, net of funds held on behalf o ’"""ﬁiers ¥ 998,404 (22,062)
Cash received from equity investments s =N 4 = - 31,915
Interest i 37,085 107,000
Net cash provided by investing activitieg4 >~ e 1,035,489 116,853
. \ & w”‘%k_
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equ%va\len 3 T, ~ (353,322) 1,721,308
Cash and cash equivalents - beginming.of year\, "< 19,023,148 17,301,840

$ 18,669.826 § 19.023.148

$ (1,434,057) $ 368,296

117,025 118,825

(523,609) 1,865,842

e 30,560 (10,241)

.- _unts p {136,990) (319,810)

Increase (decrea S i ccfued expenses (14,885) 12,531
Increase (decrease)in ‘unearned revenue 581,293 (397,692)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (1.380.663) $ 1,637,851

See accompanying notes.
11

29



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard sefting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The ECIDA's significant accounting policies are described
below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) was created in 1970 by an act©fthe Legislature of the State of
New York (the State) for the purpose of encouraging financially sound compa

prosper in Erie County (the County).

_,_,‘e same mission, which is
age:creating a successful

personnel and RDC currently shares a common board with ECID,
to provide the resources that encourage investment innovatid

B.
C.
statements of the ECIDA e q‘;g_
accounting. Revenues are re:
regardless of wherp:
H j, ECIDA gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving equal value
Farh grants is recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements have
D.

within Erie County. Un jer this program ECIDA may take title to or a leasehold interest in the real and/or personal
property involved in the project for the term of the incentive period. ECIDA simultaneously leases the property under a
lease agreement to the company undertaking the project (lessee). ECIDA receives administrative fees from the
lessee for providing these tax incentives which are recognized according to the terms of the fee agreement.

ECIDA is an issuer of tax-exempt bond financing for qualified manufacturers and low-income housing projects. These
bonds are obligations of the borrower. Since ECIDA has no obligation to repay the principal and interest of such
bonds, they are not reflected as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. ECIDA receives bond issuance
fees from the borrower for providing this service. ECIDA also has a shared services agreement with ILDC under
which administrative and staffing services are provided to ILDC in connection with its bond issuances to nonprofit
organizations in exchange for the related bond issuance fees received by ILDC. Such fees totaled $382,050 and
$166,250, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.

12

30



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The ECIDA's cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, demand deposits, and shori-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from date of acquisition.

F. RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain assets are classified on the Balance Sheet and Statement of Net Position as restricted because their use is
limited. See Note 5 for the detail of restricted cash.

G. PREPAID EXPENSES

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting fiods and are recorded as prepaid

expenses.

H. CAPITAL ASSETS

' '_':ul ||ves of the respective

Capital assets are recorded at acquisition cost and depreciated®w:
3 ents are expensed as

assets using the straight-line method. The cost of repairs, mai
incurred, whereas expenditures that materially extend prope
retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related acc
any gain or loss is reflected in income. Contributed capital &

alizafio- ’?»Depre iation

alk Estimated

ThreSHipld Z _Miethod Useful Life
Furniture and equipment / e i Bﬂﬂf Straight-line 3-10 years
Buildings and improvements«< o Straight-line 5-40 years

= jhlpment facility (the Port Terminal Facility) at the Gateway

Poy “Terminal Facility provides enclosed storage facilities and
I 3 Hoods by water, rail and truck. The facility is owned by ECIDA
and is operated ag C,gnter Inc. Rental property is recorded at cost which includes all costs incurred
during the dey% & ' iati

in 1989, ECIDA developef

1@ public warghouse an
Metroport facility in the Ciyz0f, Lacksfvanna, The

Investments include enture capltal investments made by ECIDA in order to spur local economic growth. The Urban
Development Action Grent (UDAG) and General Accounts include venture capital investments that are recorded at the
lesser of cost or fair value.

J. INSURANCE
The ECIDA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, personal
injury liability, and natural disasters. These risks are covered by commercial insurance purchased from independent
third parties. Judgments and claims are recorded when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability

has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Settled claims from these risks has not yet
exceeded commercial insurance coverage for the past three years.

13

31



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

K.

GRANTS

Grants are recognized at the time awarded, with timing differences resulting from funds spent and earned. ECIDA
receives special project grants from various Federal, State and County governments. ECIDA also acts as a pass-
through entity for certain companies who receive funding from the State, including the Department of Transportation
(DOT).

In certain cases, funding is received in the form of a combination of a grant and a loan. One year after completion of
the specified program and with State approval and acceptance, companies begin repaying the loan. A long-term
liability and repayment plan receivable are established as the companies receiving the funding from the State are
contractually obligated to repay ECIDA for its debt service requirements to the Stéte. The payment terms of the
conduit receivables are equivalent to the terms of ECIDA’s loans to the State. §

NET POSITION

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three compone 5

a. Investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets in jf i ital B¢ s%ts net of accumulated
depreciation. ;

erfed inflows of resources related to those

b. Restricted - Consists of restricted assets reduced by It
L. .
strictions are imposed by Federal Urban

assets if their use is constrained to a particular purfsg
Development Action Grants (UDAG).

c. Unrestricted - The net amount of assets/def

21 nts in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

,ﬁient to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
as, habllltles deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent assets
: statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the

On May 8, 2020\,the G @s’éued Statement No. 95, Postponement of Effective Dates of Certain Authonitative
Guidance in responsg i he ‘COVID-19 pandemic. The effective dates of GASB Statements not yet implemented by
the ECIDA have been dated below to reflect the impact of this Statement. There were no new GASB Statements
impiemented by the ECIDA for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The following are GASB Statements that have been issued recently and are currently being evaluated, by the ECIDA,
for their potential impact in future years.

» Statement No. 87, Leases, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2022.

s Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period, which will be
effective for the year ending December 31, 2021.

o Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2022.
Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2022.

o Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, which will be effective for the year ending December
31, 2021, except for paragraph 11b, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2022.

¢ Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements, which
will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2023.

14

32



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, which will be effective for the year
ending December 31, 2023.

e Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Infemal Revenue
Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and 84, and a
supersession of GASB Statement No. 32, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2022.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

ECIDA's investment policies are governed by State statutes. In addition, ECIDA has its own written investment policy.
ECIDA monies must be deposited in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)-'_ stired commercial banks or trust
companies located within the State. ECIDA is authorized to use interest bearing g nand accounts and certificates of
deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the United States ,_“'jsury and its agencies, repurchase
agreements and obligations of the State and its localities. .w,;;*\\ )\.\

+ §
Collaterai is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposﬁs% covere ‘,h?afederal deposit insurance.
Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the Uni /éStates and its agens S, obligations of the State
and its municipalities and school districts and obligations issued by4 fiér than New York Statg: fated in one of the three
highest rating categories by at least one nationally recognized istical ratm(g organization. e

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the ECIDA aggregate baRk:

Investment and Deposn Policy

1CE ; 'ﬁd other legal requirements; and provide
sufficient liquidity of invested funds in order to meet ; gk due. Oversight of investment activity is

the responsibility of ECIDA’s Chief Financial Officer.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that t_

{ﬂe of inve ents will be affected by changing interest rates. ECIDA’s
urities as & ﬁneans of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising

i:s due to failuré of an issuer or other counterparty to an investment to fulfill its
obllgatlons ECID A'sdirastment and deposit policy authorizes the reporting entity to purchase the following types of

SN
\ Y s D
b & RN

s Inteses ?beanng demand o

e Certifica gs of deposit. | -

e Obliga s gf the United $fates Treasury and United States agencies.
e Obligations of:New York State and its localities.

Custodial credit risk is the‘n§k/that in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution, the reporting entity may not
recover its deposits. [n accordance with ECIDA’s investment and deposit policy, all deposits of ECIDA including interest
bearing demand accounts and certificates of deposit, in excess of the amount insured under the provisions of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) shall be secured by a pledge of securities with an aggregate value equal to 100% of
the aggregate amount of deposits. ECIDA restricts the securities to the following eligible items:

¢ Obiligations issued, fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of principal and interest, by the United States
Treasury and United States agencies.
Obligations issued or fully insured or guaranteed by the State of New York and its localities.
Obligations issued by other than New York State rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at ieast one
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations.

15

33



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - LOANS RECEIVABLE

L.oans are made to local businesses, with UDAG monies under certain restrictions, to complement private financing at a
4% interest rate with varying repayment terms. All loans are classified as commercial loans. Loans in non-accrual status

are fully reserved.

During 2013, the ECIDA provided a $1,000,000 forgivable loan to a manufacturing company. Hailf of that amount was
immediately forgiven and the other $500,000 will be forgiven in $100,000 installments from 2019 through 2023 as long as
the borrower maintains minimum employment requirements as set forth in the agreement. The portion not immediately
forgiven is included in loans receivable and fully recognized in the allowance for uncollectible loans.

During the 2019 year, the ECIDA established an allowance for uncollectible loans gk pn’::ng to $400,000. There was no

change to the allowance as of December 31, 2020.

NOTE 4 - GRANTS RECEIVABLE

2019

Buffalo Southern Railroad - 2017 PFRAP

Rail Improvement $ 140
Sumitomo Dunlop Rail - PFRAP 14,352
National Grid - Zero Net Energy Building 125,000
Bethlehem Rail Phase Il 191,942

Bethlehem Water and Sewer
Total

3 331434

2020 2019

$ 1,528,292 $ 1,525,156

217,484 979,274

- 17,531

Seneca Street Corridor'; ~ 1,657,749 1,516,500

Main Street Improvement Fund 2,730,594 2,747,105

Total funds held on behalf of others 6,134,119 6,785,656
Other restricted cash:

Railway Trust Fund 165,099 153,503

Sales proceeds held in escrow - 1,000,000

Total restricted cash $_ 6,289,218 $__ 7,939,159

16

34



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for ECIDA for the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows:

Balance Balance
01/01/2020 Increases Decreases 12/31/2020
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 5 167,400 % - 3 - § 167,400
Capital assets being depreciated: ‘
Land improvements 1,106,386 £ 5 - 1,106,386
Buildings 2,747,489 ¢ - 2,747 489
Furniture and equipment 483,388 - 471,536
Total capital assets, being depreciated 4,317 263 . - 4,325 411
Less accumulated depreciation: .S ~
Land improvements 5 54,528 ’ j;;x; 825,348
Buildings 36,043 \ 1,990,421
Furniture and equipment @54 - 427,815
Total accumulated depreciation - 3,243,584
Total capital assets being depreciated, net - 1,081,827
Total capital assets, net - $ 1,249,227
Capital asset activity for ECIDA for the year ended Dag
Balance

Decreases 12/31/2019

- - $ 167,400

1,106,386 - - 1,106,386

2,747,489 - - 2,747,489

471,744 33,396 41,752 463,388

4,325,619 33,396 41,752 4,317,263

- 716,292 54,528 - 770,820

1,918,335 36,043 - 1,954,378

414,859 28,254 41,752 401,361

Total accumulated depreciation 3,049,486 118,825 41,752 3,126,559
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,276,133 (85,429) - 1,190,704
Total capital assets, net $ 1443533 § (85,429) $ - % 1358104

17

35



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - INVESTMENTS

The ECIDA’s investments consisted of the following at December 31:

2020 2019
Fair Fair
Cost value Cost value
Equity interest $ 913136 $ 506,886 $ 987,187 $ 634,061

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72 Fair Value Measurement and Application, investments are reported at fair
value. Fair vaiue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer adiability in an orderly transaction at
the measurement date. U.S. GAAP establishes a framework for measuring fair 4 Tue of assets and liabilities. That
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation ié ij’rruques used to measure fair value.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active mafi ‘%fér identical assets or liabilities (Level
1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 meaSureme %,,The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are described as follows: ' TN

ns8ictive markets for i | assets or liabilities in

SS.

Level 1: Valuation is based on quoted prices (unadjuste
active markets that the ECIDA has ability to aCe

Level 2. Valuation is based upon quoted prices for sii ",_aassetggndﬂ'iabiIities in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactjve ts, or other inputs that are observable for the

asset and liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

i ﬁificant to the fair value measurement.

I

Level 3: Valuation is based upon unobs&vsab

Where quoted prices are available in an active markety im/est cidssified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy.
If quoted market prices are not avallable fair valueg ar |mate “tfglng quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics or mputs other than qugfec ‘pnces that are nbservable for the security, and would be classified within Level
ain ( iis limited activity or less transparency around inputs to the
the valuataon hierarchy.

¥
2 -«'o

equity interest.

All investment§are classified a -"a,}evel 3 ﬂ}e valuation hierarchy.

at fror e'fC’ounty in the amount of $700,000 in July 2020 to support the design, engineering and
construction administratipna ;water and sewer utility extensions and upgrades on the former Bethlehem Steel property.
As of December 31, 202 ;the entirety of that amount is included as unearned revenue as ECIDA has not begun

expending grant funds.

ECIDA received an Economic Development Program grant from National Grid in the amount of $125,000 in January 2017.
As of December 31, 2020, the entirety of that amount is included as unearned revenue as ECIDA has not yet met the

requirements to begin expending grant funds.

18

36



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Affiliate Management Fees
ECIDA allocates a portion of personnel and rental costs to its affiliates, RDC and ILDC. ECIDA earned $387,152 and

$363,803 in affiliate management fees for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Management fees
and related receivables by affiliate are as follows:

Management Fees and

Rental Costs __Receivables
2020 2019 2020 2019
RDC $ 292,107 $ 302,332 3 425 303,021

ILDC 95,045 61,471 250,630

B e
Total $_ 387,152 $__ 363,803 $__ 553651

2018 through September 30, 2023. This lease agrepmentstd
charges that will be determined on an annual basis.\®

209,869
122,423
$ 332,000

e _:_ , .retlonary ntributions of 12% of eligible employees’ salaries. ECIDA’s expense for-contribution to
5 “‘*ende A éﬁember 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to $173,647 and $169,282, respectively.
Employees are aiso pelwitted toParticipate in the New York State Deferred Compensation Plan but ECIDA does not make

contributions to this plan.<__

NOTE 12 - CONTINGENCIES

18

37



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through XXXXX, 2021, which is the date the financial statements are
available for issuance and have determined there are no subsequent events that require disclosure under generally

accepted accounting principles.

20

38



SUPPLEMENTAR

39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2020

General UDAG
Account Account Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7617692 % 11,052,134 $ 18,669,826
Receivables
Affiliates 388,968 188,143 577,111
Grants 831,498 - 831,498
Other 126,734 ,ZA»:'\% 126,734
Prepaid expenses 45,558 s 45,558
Total current assets 9,010,450 11 ,éﬁj‘Z?? 20,250,727
Y O
Noncurrent assets: %
Capital assets, net 1,249,227 e e 1,249,227
Investments 100,639 / g 406,247 < 506,886
Restricted cash 6,289,218 4. L7 - ‘ _f‘*‘—jh 6,289,218
Total noncurrent assets 7,639,0%572’ /406,247 h 8,045,331
N i
Total assets $ 16.649.5& 9 /ﬁn 646524  § 28,296,058
LIABILITIES i
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 2 D2 % - $ 74,652
Accrued expenses o 44 - 164,444
Unearned revenue \-8 ) . - 825,000
Total current liabilities W 064, - 1,064,096
Noncurrent liabilities: . & \ !
Funds held on behalf of gther 6,134,119 - 6,134,119
bg T B4 119 - 6,134,119
7,198,215 - 7,198,215
1,249,227 - 1,249,227
- 11,646,524 11,646,524
8,202,092 - 8,202,092
9.451.319 11,646,524 21,097,843
$ 16649534 § 11,646 524 $ 28,296,058
21

40



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

General UDAG
Account Account Total
Operating revenues:
Administrative fees $ 1,850,078 § - $ 1,850,078
Affiliate management fees and rental income 387,152 - 387,152
Rental income 287,717 - 287,717
Other income 150,651 - 150,651
Total operating revenues 2,675,598 - 2,675,598

Operating expenses:

Salaries and benefits 2,003,970 2,003,970
General and administrative 623,943 624,717
Depreciation 117,025 117,025
Other expenses 973 973
Total operating expenses 2,745.93ﬂ$ 2,746,685
Operating loss before special project grants (71,087)
Special project grants:
Revenues - 112,937
Expenses (1,281,494) (1,475,907)
Net loss from special project grants (1,281,494) (1,362,970)
Operating loss (1,282,268) (1,434,057)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment income (loss) (103,425) (127,175)
Interest income 23,390 37,085
‘ (80,035) (90,090)
3 (161,844) (1,362,303) (1,524,147)
9,613,163 13,008,827 22,621,990

$_ 9451319 $_ 11.646524 $ 21.097.843

— = =

41



42



REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVEYD!

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY I}
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
BUFFALO AND ERIE

43



To the Members of the Board of Directors
Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Colfs
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporatlon <
95 Perry Street, Suite 403
Buffalo, New York 14203

Members of the Board:

< ’1‘(’*«_-
& Fhancial statements of Erie County
Industrial Development Agency ) g d Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (ILDC), and Buffalg#i : @ienal Development Corporation (RDC), as of and for
the year ended December 34 2 Smmarizes certain matters required by professional
standards to be communi Sant responsibility for ECIDA/ILDC/RDC's financial
reporting process. -

i Lt

nformation arid use of ECIDA/ILDC/RDC and management and is

Very truly yours,
Freed Maxick CPAs, P.C.

44



CONTENTS

Required Communications

Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments
Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Management Letter

Exhibit A — Significant Written Communication Between Management and our Fig =

Representation Letter

45




Required Communications

Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Audifors Communications with Those Charge with
Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor and those
charged with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes our responsibilities regarding
the financial statement audit as well as observations arising from our audit that are significant and relevant to your
responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process.

Area Comments
Our Responsibilities with Regard to the Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally
Financial Statement Audit accepted in the Uniteg States of America and

’ndards issued by the
T, tihe United States, have been
.arrangement letter dated January
11, 2021. Our gufis™ ’fhe financial statements do not
reheve managef 1€ tharged with governance of

their respo) ilities which% fe. also described in that
letter. ;»/?
45 i

Overview of the Planned Scope and Timing of We v-:‘ vissued a separate comrﬁu@batlon regarding the

the Financial Statement Audit plafiiied scope @nd timing of our audits and have
dis8ysied with4/gu our identification of and planned audit

respoan;.oé{ gnlflcant risks of material misstatement.

Govemment Auditing
Comptroller General 4
described to you in.&ui

'{

Preferab

Accounting Policies and Practices ity of Accountlng Policies and Practices

gené?a;lly accepted principles, in certain
ACes, anagement may select among
¢ : _..fa&auntmg practices. In our view, in such
Afeumstances; | management has selected the preferable
accountmg practice.

\ Moptlon of, or Change in, Accounting Policies

y < A danagement has the ultimate responsibility for the

% -.‘Mf“”;approprlateness of the accounting policies used by

4 “%” ECIDA/ILDC/RDC. In the current year, ECIDA/ILDC/RDC
implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 95,
Postponement of Effective Dales of Certain Authoritative
Guidance.

Significant or Unusual Transactions

We did not identify any significant or unusual fransactions
or significant accounting policies in controversial or
emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus.

Management’s Judgments and Accounting Estimates

Summary information about the process used by
management in formulating particularly sensitive
accounting estimates and about our conclusions
regarding the reasonableness of those estimates is in the
attached “Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates.”

Basis of Accounting The financial statements were prepared on assumption
that the entities will continue as a going concern.

46



Required Communications (Continued)

Area Comments
Audit Adjustments Audit adjustments proposed by us and recorded by the
RDC are shown on the attached “Summary of Recorded
Audit Adjustments.”
Uncorrected Misstatement We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements other

than misstatements that are clearly trivial.

Disagreements with Management We encountered no disagreements with management
ighificant accounting pnnmples

Consultations with Other Accountants

 arising from the al

Significant Issues Discussed with 3
;’e subject of correspondence with

Management witf

Significant  Difficulties  Encountered in
Performing the Audit

Significant Written Communication Between({ - '-
Management and Our Firm

47



Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon
management’s current judgment. The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and experience
about past and current events and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish to monitor throughout the
year the process used to determine and record these accounting estimates. The following describes the significant
accounting estimates reflected in the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC’s December 31, 2020, financial statements:

SIS for Our Conclusions on
“Re asonableness of Estimate

Management'’s
Estimate Accounting Policy Estimation Process

Depreciation of

Property, Plant & Management depreciatgs Useful lives were - I he methods and lives used to
Equipme,nt (ECIDA property, plgnt and gqU|pment assigned based on«s; estimate depreciation expense
& ILDC) over the estimated lives ofthe  ECIDA/ILDC's uge dpears reasonable.
assets. life policy. o ~ !
Managem ‘yas _mj‘
con51st ¥’ : \fh
Allowance for Management estimates =y Management'’s process to
Uncollectible collectability of receivables gearwrite-o estimate the allowance for
Accounts based on knowledge of past \.": infdfmation andfoan uncollectible accounts appears
history. < \iayment histories and  reasonable.
l_uges this to estimate
w6 allowance needed
pthe current year for
- "ECIDA/ILDC/RDC.
Investments alued at fair Management has Management's process to

(ECIDA) 1§*the price described the valuation  evaluate fair value and establish

@edtosell  techniques used for the fair value hierarchy of
valuing investments at  investments appears reasonable.
fair value in the

financial statements

ECIDA Note 7.
Additionally,
A management has
remoghizes investments in broken out the
accordance with GASB investments into Level

Statement No. 72, “Fair Value 1, 2 or 3 based upon
Measurements” as it defines the valuation hierarchy.
the fair value and establishes

a valuation hierarchy for

disclosure of the inputs to

valuation used to measure fair

value. This hierarchy

prioritizes the inputs into three

broad levels of Level 1, 2 or 3.

48



Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Number Account NcName Debit Credit
AJE #1 1400.3 GF01 Accounts receivable - CARES Act 11,0156
AJE#1 5850.4 GF01 Grant Income - CARES Act (11,015)

To record the administrative cost receivables for the CARE Act as of
12/31/12020

11,015 (11,015)

49



Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The GASB has issued several statements not yet implemented by the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC. The ECIDA/ILDC/RDC’s
management has not yet determined the effect these Statements will have on the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC's financial
statements. However, the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC plans to implement all standards by the required dates. The Statements
which might impact the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC are as follows:

Summary of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases

This Statement issued in June 2017 will be effective for ECIDA/ILDC/RDC with its fiscal year ending December 31,
2022. This Statement better meets the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leasegdhat previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources’b: Sed on the payment provision of
the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on t __;-fgsjndauonal principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, ale : ;1‘81 required to recognize a lease
liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is requifet '""*’ﬁtze a Iease receivable and a
deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and gtn
leasing activities. :

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting. eric
application is encouraged. £

Summary of GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for |, ' . __édst Incurred
Before the End of a Construction Period <

This Statement issued in June 2018 wnII be e

This Statement establishes acco

Such interest cost includes all4fie is accounted for in accordance with the requirements of

counting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in

T

ents, which are superseded by this Statement. This
s€nd of a constructlon period be recognlzed as an expense in

focus. As a result el \' { _', -before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical
8¢ iqgss—type activity or enterprise fund.

This Stat yﬁm also reiterate ﬁ‘aat |n\TTnanC|al statements prepared usmg the current fmancnal resources

Earlier application is entoul

50



Recently Issued Accounting Standards (Continued)

Summary of GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations

This Statement issued in May 2019 will be effective for ECIDA/ILDC/RDC beginning with its fiscal year ending
December 31, 2021. The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt
obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2)
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves
those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing standards for accounting
and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disciosures. s

Earlier application is encouraged.

51



& FreedMaxickeeasec,

XXXXXXX, 2021

The Finance & Audit Committees, Boards of Directors, and Management
Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

- b,

In planning and performing our audits of the financial statement ;gpr Erie County Indu

(ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corpgration, and Buffalo and Erig ,a nty Industrial Land
tivities, as of and for the year ended

Development Corporation (collectively, ECIDA/ILDC/RDC), s
December 31, 2020, in accordance with auditing standards %ne '_ pted in the United States of Amenca we

considered the Orgamzatlons lnternal control over financial re

financial statements, but not for the purpose of g
internal control. \

) l’aﬁeﬁ of a control does not allow management or
Wans to prevent, or detect and correct,
s.ig{@ deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
matenal misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the des
employees, in the normal course of performmg
misstatements on a tlmely basis. A u.,u~. i

: @se described in the first paragraph and was not designed
material weaknesses Given these limitations, durlng our

4,80 > information and use of management, the Finance & Audit Committees,
it |n EC| \ILDC/RDC. It is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone

52



PP

EXHIBIT A - SIGNIFICANT WRIfTEN COMMUNICATION
BETWEEN MANAGEMENT AND OUR FIRM

N P
\/
5 L ‘-\.‘-
% i N
\\ '/} s -
N
N / G
h =
[} \\\-\
‘\ \\
\} 3
8

53



Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Investment Report
For the year ended December 31, 2020

54




Erie County Industrial Development Agency
2020 Annual Investment Report

Purpose of Report:

Under Section 2925(6) of the Public Authorities Law, the ECIDA is required to prepare
and approve an annual Investment Report. The Investment Report is to include: the
investment guidelines (see below), the results of the annual independent investment audit
(see below), a list of the total investment income received by the corporation and a list of
the fees, commissions or other charges paid to each investment banker, broker, agent,
dealer and advisor rendering investment associated services to the corporation since the
last Investment Report.

The attached schedule details the corporation’s investment income and related fees for the
year ended December 31, 2020 and were approved by the ECIDA membership on March
24, 2021.

Investment Guidelines:

In accordance with Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law, the ECIDA is required to
adopt Investment Guidelines which detail its operative policy and instructions to staff
regarding the investing, monitoring and reporting of funds of the Agency. In addition, the
ECIDA is subject to the deposit and investment restrictions contained in Sections 10 and
11 of the General Municipal Law.

The Investment Guidelines were approved by the ECIDA membership on March 24, 2021
and are posted on the ECIDA website at http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-
policies. The Investment Guidelines are consistent with the prior Guidelines adopted on
March 25, 2020.

Investment Audit:

The auditors for the ECIDA have audited the corporation’s compliance with the
Investment Guidelines for Public Authorities. In their report dated March XX, 2021 Freed
Maxick CPAs indicated that the Agency complied, in all material respects, with these
Investment Guidelines.

55



HUSWIBI6E S[ES §] JOOWDD LM DOUBPICIOR Ll MOIDSE Ul PIBH

UIsiQ JOPLIOY 33118 B08USS AU} LI SjuBWISAQIdW) SINJONIISENU JO) JUNODOR PajoLISay
PUIsIJ 19248 ulely By} Ul sjuswsaoidil) SInjonujSelju J0) JUNOoIE PajoLISOY
qJHonesodiod yuswdolaaeq uegin ofeyng oy JuNoooe pajoLIsey

sjoeloid Aunog a3 pajeubisap B 1sjua) 8oIBWILICY uuewbunoA YUON JO} JUNCODE PajoLSaY
juswdojsAap PUBIULON PUE PUSGIRAR 'dD71g 10} ILUNCIOE PAjoISOY

SailAlD. pajeja) peoljiel uloys Auno) sug Jo) JUNCOoR PRJOLISaY

uNoJ0e Jusuisaauysbuiaes pund Svan vaioa

unoode JusunsaauyBupdayo pund SYAN vaio3

1unoooe sbuireg yain3 |elsuan)

noooe Buppay) vYaio3 (esusn

R e i S e s

asodingd padsey

$ 12505 ¢

$394

§90°¢
699G
S€
agL'e
el
514
s8s'ee
ve
loe'el
6.¢

awooy|
juausaau|

[

0zoz

]

%000
%040
%010
%010
%010
%010
%E€0°0
%010
%£0°0
%010
%E0°0

020Z 220
218N
ysasau)

PSINGSIP AlINy 213Mm SPUNY Jale 0Z0Z JAGUIS0aQ PISOID JUNOOY
's89) Aue Jo uofionpap sul o} jolid SI PUB 0Z0Z 12qLISIDQ JO YIUOLL SY} JO} Sje) PIZIIENUUE aL) S} Bjey Jsaie| ayL , \®

G¥0'6S6'P2$  80E'Z96'9Z §

- 000'000°}
6v.°269°1 065'915°L
P65'0€L'Z SOL'IpL'C

1es'sL
262'825'1 g51°5es'lL
821z v22'616
660'G51 £05'€51
Z89'010'LL  TI9'¥EO0'LL
Zst'se 166°LLY

190'¢2v'e 09.'60%'9
GZ9'v6L'L 66.'991°)

020Z/LEMT) 0zZ0Z/4/1
Jduejeg /9 eduejeg /9

Juequp
jueg 13N
jueg L3N
jueg 18N
jueg LB
jueg 181N
sueg L8N
dueg 12N
jueg 1gin
jueg L8N
sueg 18N

uogmnsuy
|eroueuly

‘S9JON w

UNoday Apolsny pausjeid Li
sBuines o1
sBuineg ¢
sBuineg g
sbuineg 7
sBuineg g

Buppeyd g
sbuineg ¢
Buniosy) ¢
sBuineg z
Buosy) |

adA} Junoosoy

0202 ‘L£ Jaquiasaq papua seaf ayy 1oy

J0doy JUSW)SaAU] [BNLUY

(vaiona) Asuaby Juswdojeaaq jerysnpul fjunos auug



THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY

To: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC Board of Directors
From: Brenda McDuffie, Governance Committee Chair
Date: March 24, 2021

Re: Governance Committee Report

In accordance with its Committee Charter, the Governance Committee is required to “report its
actions and recommendations to the Board at each regular meeting of the Board following a
meeting of the Governance Committee and when otherwise requested by the Board”. This report is
prepared to satisfy this requirement.

The ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Governance Committee met on March 17, 2021. Committee members
present were: Brenda McDuffie, Chair, Howard Johnson, Brian Kulpa, Ken Schoetz, David State,
and Maria Whyte. The following items were reviewed:

1) 2020 PAAA Annual Report
The Governance Committee reviewed the ECIDA/RDC/ILDC 2020 PAAA Annual Report. No
changes were recommended. The PAAA Annual Report will be reviewed by the full Boards
during the March 24, 2021 Board meetings.

2) 2020 Board of Directors’ Self-Evaluation
The Governance Committee reviewed the summary sheets for the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC
Board self-evaluations and discussed the importance of open dialogue. They did not note any
major issues. The Governance Committee Chair will forward the summary sheets to the
Authorities Budget Office (ABQO) as required.

3) 2020 Governance Committee Self-Evaluation
The Governance Committee reviewed the 2020 Governance Committee Self-Evaluation. The
evaluation documented the activities of the Governance Committee during 2020.

4) Annual Re-Adoption of Policies. Charters & Guidelines
The Governance Committee reviewed the following policies of the ECIDA/RDC/ILDC:
Whistleblower Policy
Governance Committee Charter
Property Disposition Guidelines
Real Property Acquisition Policy
Defense & Indemnification Policy
Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement & Attendance Policy
Travel, Conferences, Meals & Entertainment Policy
Statement of the Duties & Responsibilities of the Board of the Directors
Statement of the Competencies & Personal Attributes Required of Board Members
Code of Ethics & Conflict of Interest Policy

The Agency’s CFO informed the Committee that ECIDA General Counsel Harris Beach
reviewed the above referenced policies and did not recommend any changes. The ABO did not
publish any new recommended guidance for any of these policies. No changes were
recommended by the Committee. The Boards will review these policies during the March 24,
2021 Board meetings.

Erie County Industrial Development Agency » 95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 <« ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com

57



5) Adoption of Policies. Charters & Guidelines
ECIDA staff and General Counsel Harris Beach recommended revision/adoption of the
following policies:
¢ Procurement Policy
e Sexual Harassment Policy
e ECIDA Employee Compensation Policy

The Procurement Policy is expanded to include more specific language regarding Minority &
Women Business Enterprise procurements of goods and services and considerations when
requests for proposals are solicited. Metrics will be set annually as part of the Agency’s goals
and performance measures. The Sexual Harassment Policy has been in place at the Agency for
a number of years and is being brought to the Board to formalize Policy with Board approval.
The policy meets all requirements under Federal and New York State guidelines. The ECIDA
Employee Compensation Policy has a modification as a result of the Compensation Committee
meeting in October 2020. A sentence was added noting “Employee compensation is subject to
the overall profitability and economic stability of the ECIDA.” The Committee supported the
changes to the Procurement Policy and ECIDA Employee Compensation Policy and formal
adoption of the Sexual Harassment Policy. The policies will be reviewed by the Boards during
the March 24, 2021 Board meetings.

6) PARIS Report Update
The Governance Committee received an update on the status of the ABQ’s reporting
requirements through the Public Authorities Reporting Information System (PARIS). The
Agency is on track to complete the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC PARIS reports on or before the
March 31, 2021 deadline.

7) Board Member PAAA Training Update
The Governance Committee received an update on the status of the required ABO board
member training. One board member received training during 2020. There was also a period of
time whereby no training sessions were held as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. The
Agency’s Compliance Officer regularly forwards the training schedule to board members who
have not had the required training and to those who have not had training within the last three

years.

8) Results of 2020 Performance Measures
The Governance Committee reviewed the results of the ECIDA/RDC/ILDC’s 2020
Performance Measures. They did not recommend any changes. The results of the 2020
Performance Measures will be reviewed by the Boards during the March 24, 2021 Board

meetings.

9) Mission Statement and 2021 Performance Measures

The Governance Committee met on January 28, 2021 and February 9, 2021 to discuss the
ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Mission Statement and 2021 Performance Measures. During these
meetings the Committee revised several metrics, added a goal and metrics related to the Covid-
19 Pandemic Response, and incorporated metrics related to minority & women business
enterprisess (MWBEs). The Committee reviewed the most current draft that incorporated
changes made as a result of previous meetings, and did not recommend any additional changes.
The 2021 Mission Statement & Performance Measures will be reviewed by the Boards during
the March 24, 2021 Board meetings.

58



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation (RDC), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (ILDC)

2020 Governance Committee Self-Evaluation
Responsibilities of the Governance Committee:

The core responsibilities of the Governance Committee, as mandated under Section 2824(7) of the New
York Public Authorities Law, are set forth in the Bylaws and include: (i) keeping the Board informed of current
best governance practices; (ii) reviewing corporate governance trends; (iii) updating the Agency’s corporate
governance principles; and (iv) advising those responsible for appointing members to the Board on the skills
and experiences necessary required of potential Board members.

Governance Committee Self-Evaluation Comments

1. Are the members of the Governance X | O | O
Committee appointed in accordance with
the Bylaws and are individuals appointed
to the Governance Committee
knowledgeable, or have expressed a
willingness to become knowledgeable, in
matters pertaining to governance?

2. s each member of the Governance X | O | O
Committee an “independent member”
within the meaning of, and to the extent
required by, Section 2825 of the New York
Public Authorities Law, as amended from
time to time? Did Governance Committee
members, who are members of the
Agency, comply with the conflict of interest
provisions applicable to public officers
under Article 18 of the New York General
Municipal Law?

3. Did the Governance Committee meet a X | O | & | The Governance Committee met on
minimum of once (1) each calendar year? 2/10/20 and 3/10/20.
4, Were meeting notices and agendas X HEEE

prepared for each meeting and provided to
Governance Committee members by
electronic or regular mail at least five (5)
days in advance of the scheduled
meeting? Were minutes of all meetings
recorded by the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Agency? Did all meetings
comply with the requirements of the Open
Meetings Law?

59



Governance Committee Self-Evaluation Comments

5. Did the Governance Committee develop X | [0 | [O | SeeQuestions #6-#9 below.

the Agency’s governance practices, which
should address transparency,
independence, accountability, fiduciary
responsibilities and management
oversight?

Did the Governance Committee develop a
statement of the competencies and
personal attributes required of Board
members to assist those authorized to
appoint members to the Board in
identifying qualified individuals (it being
acknowledged that membership in the
Agency is determined pursuant to Section
891-a of the General Municipal Law)?

A Statement of the Competencies
and Personal Attributes is posted on
the ECIDA website. It was approved
by the ECIDA Board of Directors on
2/16/10. Revisions to this document
were not necessary in 2020.

Did the Governance Committee develop
and recommend to the Board any revisions
to the number and/or structure of Board
committees?

No additional committees were
recommended by the Governance
Committee in 2020.

Did the Governance Committee develop
and provide recommendations to the
Board regarding Board member education,
including new member orientation and
regularly scheduled Board member
training to be obtained from state-
approved trainers as required under
Section 2824(2) of the New York Public
Authorities Law?

New Board members attend an
orientation session hosted by ECIDA
staff and are provided with a New
Member Orientation Manual.

As of 12/31/20, 17 of 19 ECIDA/RDC
Board members and 5 of 7 ILDC
Board members have received the
PAAA required training. All Board
members who have not received the
training received notifications
throughout the year regarding PAAA
training session dates.

Did the Governance Committee develop,
review and recommend to the Board the
adoption and/or revisions to the following:

(i) the Agency’s Code of Ethics.

(i) written policies regarding conflicts of
interest.




Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

(iii) written policies regarding the
protection of whistleblowers from
retaliation.

(iv) equal opportunity and affirmative
action policies.

(v) written policies regarding procurement
of goods and services, including policies
relating to the disclosure of persons who
attempt to influence the Agency’s
procurement process.

(vi) written policies regarding the
disposition of real and personal property
and the acquisition of property.

(vii) committee charters, including this
Charter.

(viii) any other policies or documents
relating to the governance of the
Agency, including rules and
procedures for conducting the
business of the Agency’s Board,
including the Agency’'s Bylaws. The
Governance Committee will oversee
the implementation and effectiveness
of the Bylaws and other governance
documents and recommend
modifications to the Board as
necessary or appropriate.

Comments

ltems i) & ii) are included in the
ECIDA Code of Ethics and Conflict of
Interest Policy. The Governance
Committee reviewed the Code of
Ethics and Conflict of Interest Policy,
as amended during its 3/10/20
Committee meeting. The Code was
adopted by the full Board during its
3/25/20 Board meeting.

(iii) In 2012, the Governance
Committee approved a formal
Whistleblower Policy. The
Committee did not recommend any
changes. The Policy was re-adopted
by the full Board during its meeting
on 3/25/20.

iv) The ECIDA’s EEO policy is
included in the Personnel Handbook
and the Procurement Policy.

v) The ECIDA Procurement Policy
was re-adopted by the full Board
during its 3/25/20 Board meeting.

vi) The ECIDA Property Disposition
Guidelines were reviewed by the
Governance Committee on 3/10/20.
It was re-adopted by the full Board
during its 3/25/20 Board meeting.

vii) The ECIDA Governance
Committee Charter was reviewed by
the Governance Committee on
3/10/20. It was re-adopted by the full
Board during its 3/25/20 Board
meeting.

viii) The Governance Committee did
not approve any additional policies in
2020.

61




Governance Committee Self-Evaluation Comments

10. Did the Governance Committee:

(i) report its actions and i) & i) As stated above, all policies/
recommendations to the Board at each guidelines referenced above were
regular meeting of the Board following a adopted or re-adopted by the Board
meeting of the Governance Committee on 3/25/20.

and when otherwise requested by the

Board.

(i) report to the Board, at least annually,
regarding any proposed changes to this

Charter.

(iii) provide a self-evaluation of the iii) On 3/10/20, the Committee
Governance Committee’s functions to the performed a Self-Evaluation for the
Board on an annual basis. calendar year 2019 and provided a

status report to the Board on 3/25/20.

62



Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

Other Self-Evaluation Notes

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

In March 2020, the Governance Committee performed a 2019 Board Member Self-Evaluation for|
the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC boards. The Committee discussed the results of these evaluations
during the 3/25/20 board meeting.

In addition to the above referenced policies, the Governance Committee discussed the following
items during its meeting on 3/10/20: (1) 2019 Performance Measures Report & Results; (2) 2020
Mission Statement & Performance Measures; (3) 2019 PAAA Annual Report; (4) Property
Acquisition Policy; (5) Defense & Indemnification Policy; (6) Board Member Compensation; (7)
Reimbursement & Attendance Policy; (8) ECIDA Compensation Policy; (9) Travel Conferences
Meals & Entertainment Policy; and (10) Statement of the Duties & Responsibilities of the Board
of Directors. The Committee did not recommend changes. The full Board approved these
documents/policies during its 3/25/20 Board meeting.

The ECIDA’s Compliance Officer provided an update on the status of the ECIDA’s Public
Authority Reporting Information System (PARIS) report to the Committee on 3/10/20.

During the Governance Committee meeting on 3/10/20, ECIDA’s Compliance Officer reported
that there were no violations of the Agency’s Local Labor Policy in 2019.

During its 2/10/20 and 3/10/20 Governance Committee meetings, the Governance Committee,
ECIDA staff and counsel discussed the resuits of ECIDA’s 2019 Performance Measures.

During its 2/10/20 and 3/10/20 Governance Committee meetings, the Governance Committee,
ECIDA staff and counsel discussed the results of ECIDA Mission Statement and 2020
Performance Measure.

63



2020 ECIDA Summary Resuits of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Criteria

Agree

Somewhat
Agree

Somewhat
Disagree

Disagree

#

#

#

#

Board members have a shared understanding
of the mission and purpose of the Authority.

12

1

The policies, practices and decisions of the
Board are always consistent with this mission.

12

1

Board members comprehend their role and
fiduciary responsibilities and hold themselves
and each other to these principles.

12

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and
practices for the effective governance,
management and operations of the Authority
and reviews these annually.

12

The Board sets clear and measurable
performance goals for the Authority that
contribute to accomplishing its mission.

12

The decisions made by Board members are
arrived at through independent judgment and
deliberation, free of political influence, pressure
or self-interest.

10

Individual Board members communicate
effectively with executive staff so as to be well
informed on the status of all important issues.

11

Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority’s programs, financial statements,
reporting requirements, and other transactions.

12

The Board meets to review and approve all
documents and reports prior to public release
and is confident that the information being
presented is accurate and complete.

12

The Board knows the statutory obligations of
the Authority and if the Authority is in
compliance with state law.

13

Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the
active participation of members.

13

Board members have sufficient opportunity to
research, discuss, question and prepare before
decisions are made and votes taken.

12

Individual Board members feel empowered to
delay votes, defer agenda items, or table
actions if they feel additional information or
discussion is required.

11

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of
the CEO and other executive staff, including
setting performance expectations and
reviewing performance annually.

13

The Board has identified the areas of most risk
to the Authority and works with management to
implement risk mitigation strategies before
problems occur.

12

Board members demonstrate leadership and
vision and work respectfully with each other.

13

Name of Authority: Erie County Industrial Development Agency; Date Completed: 2/22/2021

64




Tax Incentives Induced 2021

Thermo Fisher North Expansion Grand Island | $ 85,000,000 807 867 0 0
Time Release Properties* Lackawanna |$ 30,500,000 103 123 0 0
Sucro Real Estate NY, LLC Lackawanna |$ 19,000,000 5 50 0 0
Calspan Corporation Cheektowaga | $ 12,500,000 143 163 3 3
Pine Pharmaceuticals, LLC Tonawanda |$ 8,615,000 76 116 7 7
72 East Niagara Street, LLC Tonawanda |$ 2,836,736 17 20 0 0
Eastman Machine Company Buffalo $ 1,665,000 126 129 0 0

$ 160,116,736 1,277 1,468 10 10

7 Projects

191 Projected FTE New Jobs
0 Projected PT New Jobs

*Amenadtory Inducement - Time Release Properties - to increase the sales tax benefit from $463,167 to $869,400 and overall project

investment from $22,700,000 to $30,500,000

65




Tax Incentives Closings - 2021

TPT Pr&T ted] 1ProjectClty

Induced Date ' [Est

ProjectName . =7
GLl [Broject
| Completto ,
- |nDate i
| il 2
Derby Warehousing,
LLC/KPM Exceptional $ 1,332,000 6 7 1 1 Derby 7/24/2019 7/31/2020
3310 Benzing Road,
LLC/Marathon Drains $ 718,329 15 17 0 0| Orchard Park |3/25/2020 3/31/2021
$ 2,050,329 21 24 1 1
Projects Closed =2
FT Projected New Jobs = 3
PT Projected New Jobs =0

66



0009€$ 009°L$ jelog Aujedpiunw aajdadsal uondwaxa e-sgy Aud
9Y1 40 10ssasse oyl Ag 10} 9|14 01 Spu31ul 10
paulwLIalap si 13afoud yoea | sey Auedwod sajouap,,
U0 JUBWSISSE |eul) ay] ,
004'TTS 008°2S 00°€vS SL'6S 000'S6TS suielq
uoyieute|n /uizuag
OTEE
00€‘€TS 008vS 08'82S 10°9$ 006'6€SS asnoya.iem Agsag
aoiyad ININILYEY dOl¥3d| 3LV XVLIVIO1| 3ILVY XVLALNNOD 17310¥d OL JAIVN 1J3f0Ud
H3IAO0 1D310Yd IHL 30 INIW3ILYEVY ¥INO 3INa INIVA @3ss3ssy NI
1INS3¥ V SV SIXVL T¥D01| 1D3r0¥d 3HL 40 LINS3Y ASVIYONI TVNLIV HO 1S3
NI 3SVYIYONI G31D3If0Y¥d V SV SIXVL1 ALNNOD
NI 3SV3¥ONI G3193r0Y¥d

SONISO1D 120C
(dv2 XV1 SAN 40 SNOLLDIYLSIYH OL 17318NS) 1OVdINI XV1L GILVINILSI

67



3

THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY

Item 3.7

To: ECIDA & RDC Boards of Directors
From: Mollie Profic, CFO
Jerry Manhard, Chief Lending Officer
Re:  Board Certification of Revolving Loan Fund Plan
Date: March 24, 2021

Between 1979 and 1983 the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) received a total of
$8.5 million in four U.S. Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration (EDA)
Title IX grants. $7 million was used to establish the RDC Revolving Loan Fund (RLF). As part of the
annual reporting to the EDA in connection with the operations of the RLF administered by the Buffalo
& Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC), the ECIDA must certify that the RLF is
being operated in accordance with the policies and procedures contained in the Loan Administration
Plan (LAP), also referred to as the RLF Plan. The LAP is required to be updated and approved by EDA
every five years. The RDC’s LAP was most recently approved on October 1, 2018.

Many of the requirements of the LAP overlap with the Federal regulations under Title 2 of the U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200 and are tested as part of the Single Audit performed annually.
Management discussed the requirements of the LAP with Freed Maxick (independent auditors) and
came up with a set of Agreed Upon Procedures (AUP) to be reviewed and tested in conjunction with the
Single Audit. This approach was discussed with both the Loan Committee and Finance & Audit
Committee and deemed appropriate from both an operational and cost perspective.

The testing performed as part of the Single Audit yielded an unmodified (clean) opinion and did not
yield any audit findings. The testing performed under the AUP noted two loans tested that staff was
unable to obtain updated documents, despite multiple attempts. RDC staff is continuing efforts to obtain
personal tax returns and employment surveys from the borrowers. A copy of the Agreed Upon
Procedures report issued by Freed Maxick is attached.

Action:
Approval of the attached resolution certifying that the Revolving Loan Fund is operating in accordance
with the approved Loan Administration Plan.

Erie County Industrial Development Agency * 95 Perry Street, Suite 403 ¢ Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph, 716.856.6525 + fx. 716.856.6754 * www.ecidany.com

68



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

REVOLVING LOAN FUND ANNUAL RESOLUTION

The meeting of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency was convened on
March 24, 2021 at 12:00 p.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY (THE “RLF BOARD” OR “AGENCY”) IN CONNECTION WITH
AN ANNUAL CERTIFICATION TO BE MADE UNDER THE STANDARD
TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL
REQUIREMENTS OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ADMINISTRATION (THE "EDA")

WHEREAS, the Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(the “RDC”) was incorporated as an affiliate of the Erie County Industrial Development
Agency for the purpose of encouraging the retention and expansion of existing companies
as well as the attraction of new companies to target areas of Erie County using the
resources from various Revolving Loan Funds (the "RLF") to make direct loans to
individual companies; and

WHEREAS, the RLF was originally established with grants from the EDA of
$7,000,000, the County of Erie Community Development Block Grant funds of
$2,316,000 and the City of Buffalo Community Development Block Grant funds of
$1,800,000, and has received no other further grant funding since it was started; and

WHEREAS, in October 2016, the County of Erie Community Development
Block Grant funds of $2,316,000 was removed from the RLF after a dispute between the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) and EDA related to the
County of Erie sub-fund was settled; and

WHEREAS, through the efforts of the RDC, the RLF has grown to total net
assets now in excess of $17,000,000, which includes the EDA and the City of Buffalo
grant funding as described above, principal repayments, and interest; and

WHEREAS, a review of the RLF portfolio is to be conducted annually to
determine adherence to the terms and conditions of the original grant, compliance with
EDA regulations, completeness of supporting loan files/documentation and conformity
with miscellaneous operational procedures; and

WHEREAS, Agreed-Upon Procedures (AUP) were conducted on a sample of
loans in the RLF portfolio by Freed Maxick, CPAs, P.C in addition to audit requirements
of Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200 Uniform Adminisirative
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards to ensure

Page 1 of 3

69



RDC’s compliance with its Loan Administration Plan (“LAP”) as set forth by the EDA;
and

WHEREAS, the Standard Terms and Conditions and Administrative Manual
Requirements of the EDA require the RLF Board to provide annual certification that the
RLF Loan Board (the RDC) and the Grant Recipient's governing body (the Agency) have
reviewed the RLF and have determined that the RLF is being operated in accordance with
the policies and procedures contained in the LAP, and that the loan portfolio meets the
standards contained therein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ERIE COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. To the best knowledge and belief of the members of the Agency and
with the disclosures provided above, the RLF is being operated in accordance with the
policies and procedures contained in the LAP, and the loan portfolio meets the standards
contained therein, subject to the following notations:

@A) The AUP conducted in 2020 undertook a random sampling of RDC loans
and ‘it was noted that two loans tested did not have updated personal
financial statements, resulting from the inability of RDC staff to obtain
same despite multiple attempt to do so. RDC staff is continuing efforts to
obtain certified personal financial statements from the borrowers; and

(i)  An appeal over a disputed cost allocation (in the amount of $352,000)
resulting from an audit performed by the U.S. Department of Commerce
Office of the Inspector General (“OIG”) during late 2003 and early 2004 is
yet to be resolved or formally acknowledged as being no longer an issue
with the OIG and therefore remains an open item. Despite the fact that
OIG and the EDA stated in October, 2006 that they were willing to
reconsider the request to allow a portion of the administrative costs
initially disallowed by the audit, no formal decision to the RDC’s detailed
reply from the EDA has been received and the appeal remains an
unresolved item (without a reserve set-aside allocated) more than ten years
later, awaiting direction from the OIG; and

(iii)  The OIG has initiated an audit of EDA’s controls and processes associated
with the management of its Revolving Loan Fund program, with the
objective of the audit to determine the adequacy of controls EDA has in
place specifically for the areas of capital utilization, default rates,
reporting and audit oversight. Although the RDC is not the only entity
included in the EDA review on a national level, the results of this review
are still unknown as to how (if at all) the RDC will be affected.

(iv)  Section 307.9 of the EDA Regulations requires that the LAP be updated
every five (5) years. The last time the plan was updated was in October
2018.

Page 2 of 3

70



Section 2. The Chair or Vice Chair, the Chief Executive Officer, the Vice
President, and/or the Chief Financial Officer or Assistant Treasurer of the Agency are
hereby authorized to execute all necessary documents to make the required annual
certification to the EDA including the notations as listed above.

Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

Page 3 of 3

71



AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Buffalo and Erie Couniyf?Rng@nal
Development Corporatl‘”‘ ‘

72



J FreedMaxickeess e

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON
APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

To the Board of Directors of the
Buffalo and Erie County Regionai Development Corporation
Buffalo, New York

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were ag? by the Buffalo and Erie
County Regional Development Corporation (the “RDC”), on the&{ean MOHRHG ;‘glng procedures and
documentation maintained by the RDC for the purpose of eval ng the mon'rt‘b g procedures and

‘asiset forth by the

records maintained in accordance with the Loan Administrati ? 357§
period of January™ 12020 through

 loan mo%utonng procedur@ and records
se procgdutsés is solely the responsibility of
eprg;d%ntatlon regarding the sufficiency of
"thls report has been requested or for

Procedure 1 ' %
We have verified that RDC has monit red loans ¢
Monitoring Procedures of the Pla
December 31, 2020.

an ghpta basis it
ortesting for the period of January 1, 2020 through

Findings 3 5
There were two fi ndmgs‘%@d ‘Two Jistar
loan recipients. However, Wg'h ‘te@»'
recipients to obtain the most T
ﬂ*‘;‘ﬁ‘“ 3

There were no fn@%gs nomd o

Procedure 3 _
We have verified the RDC has obtained the Federai Regulations Acknowledgment form in accordance
with Section B.1. Loan Processing Procedures of the Plan for the loans selected for testing for the period
of January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020.

Findings
There were no findings noted.

73



This agreed-upon-procedure engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did
not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or
conclusion, respectively on compliance with specified requirements. Accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to
our attention that would have been reported to you.

ghd the management of

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Board of Directors &
ecified parties.

the RDC and is not intended and should not be used by anyone other than the§

Buffalo, New York
March 4, 2021

[ FreedMaxickzss ec.

74



o
Memorandum WECNW

To: ECIDA Board of Directors March 24, 2021
Re: Welded Tube USA

Background

In support of the construction of a new manufacturing facility on the former Bethlehem Steel Site by
Welded Tube USA, Inc., the ECIDA approved a forgivable grant/loan of $1,000,000. The agreement
was entered into in the fall of 2013 and included a series of provisions designed to provide needed
funding to the project and to ensure the company met and maintained a job commitment as part of
the forgivable grant/loan structure. The funding was providing from the ECIDA’s UDAG fund. The
general structure of the agreement is as follows:

e The ECIDA provided the $1million grant/loan, $500,000 of which was deemed a forgivable
grant that was not subject to any repayment provisions.

e The remaining $500,000 of the original $1million was structured as a forgivable loan subject to
a five year repayment agreement for years 2019-2023 (the “Employment Monitoring Period”).

» The repayment agreement provided that Welded Tube hire and maintain at least 75 FTE on the
site by December 2018. Provided Welded Tube maintained at least 75 FTE positions during
each year of the Employment Monitoring Period, $100,000 of the originally outstanding
$500,000 loan balance would be forgiven, for each such applicable individual year.

+ In the event Welded Tube failed to maintain the 75 FTE positions, the entire then outstanding
principal loan balance, and interest, would then be due and payable, in monthly instaliments,
with a maturity date of December 31, 2024.

Current Situation

Up until 2020 Welded Tube had met the job requirements under the forgivable loan agreement, such
that the outstanding principal balance is now $400,000. Early in 2021 representatives of the company
contacted the agency and indicated that due to several issues, including disruption in the oil and gas
market and impacts of the pandemic that they did not meet the job goals as required in 2020. Based
on the information provided by Welded Tube (see attached) jobs at the site as of December 31, 2020
were 48 FTE with 14 staff on a recall list. This is short of the 75 FTE as required in the forgivable loan
agreement. 75 FTE required, 48 FTE for 2020, shortfall of 27 FTE. To date, due to the continuing

95 PERRY STREET, BUFFALO NY 14203

75



negative impacts of the COVID-19 global pandemic, the Company continues to operate below the
required 75 FTE threshold.

Welded Tube has provided the ECIDA with details on the impacts of multiple factors on plant
operations. In 2020 their orders dropped significantly showing an overall decrease of 73%.

Comparing the 2020 COVID period starting with the shutdown at the end of the 1% quarter to the same
period in 2019 shows a 69% drop in sales.

As a result, the plant was idled for 20 weeks and shifts were reduced from 3 to 1 per day.

A company representative indicated that the Welded Tube is optimistic that sales will start to rebound
in 2021 depending on easing of pandemic impacts.

Recommendation

The current forgiv'a‘ble grant/loan agreement did not contemplate the situation which occurred in 2020
with the onset of the global pandemic and the economic impacts that followed. It is recommended
that the board consider an amendment to the terms of the agreement as follows:

The repayment agreement would be amended to defer any repayment for 2020 based on the
employment goal shortfall. The repayment agreement would be extended an additional year to
compensate for the impacts of COVID on Welded Tube’s employment in 2020. The terms of the
repayment agreement remain in effect but would be pushed out 1 year, keeping the remaining
$400,000 forgivable loan balance and repayment requirements in force through calendar year 2024
instead of 2023. Agency staff also recommends and advises that, given year to date continued FTE
shortfalls related to the 75 FTE employee requirement, and the continued adverse impacts that the
Covid-19 global pandemic exerts on the Company, that the Agency further authorize the Agency’s
President/CEO, in consultation with the Chair, to make similar amendments for the following year in the
event the Company fails to meet the 75 FTE requirement for 2021.

76



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
RESOLUTION

(Amendment to Forgivable Loan and Loan Agreement — Welded Tube USA, Inc. )

A regular meeting of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency was convened on
Wednesday, March 24, 2021 at 12:00 p.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AMENDMENT TO THE
FORGIVABLE LOAN AND LOAN AGREEMENT
RELATIVE TO THE WELDED TUBE USA, INC., PROJECT IN
LACKAWANNA, NEW YORK, FOR CERTAIN INFRASTRUCTURE

IMPROVEMENTS RELATED THERETO

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 293 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York, as
amended (collectively, the “Act”), the ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created as a public benefit corporation of the State with the
authority and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things,
acquiring, constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing, commercial and other
facilities as authorized by the Act to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to - accomplish the purposes of the Act, and to provide certain tax
exemptions and abatements to Welded Tube USA, Inc., (the “Company”), the Agency, on
August 1, 2013, entered into a transaction (the “Project”) relating to the Company’s acquisition
and the construction of a 100,000+/- SF manufacturing facility, a 30,000+/- SF testing facility,
and a 30,000+1- SF pipe threading and coupling facility (the “Improvements™) and related
acquisition and installation of machinery and equipment therein (the “Equipment” and together
with the Improvements, the “Project”) located at the intersection of Route 5 and Ridge Road,
City of Lackawanna, Erie County, New York (the “Land”, and together with the Improvements
and the Equipment, the “Facility”): and

WHEREAS, with respect to the Project, and to encourage the Company to undertake the
Project, and, in addition, to ensure that the Project serves as a catalyst for additional future
development at and adjacent to the Project site, the Agency made $1,000,000 available to the
Company from the Agency’s Urban Development Action Grant Reflow Fund (the “UDAG
Fund”), in the form a forgivable loan and loan agreement, said forgivable loan and loan
agreement to be made in accordance with applicable Federal HUD Title I rules and regulations
which limit the use of the UDAG Fund to certain permitted uses including the uses described
herein; and

77



WHEREAS, the Company and the Agency entered into that certain Forgivable Loan and
Loan Agreement, dated as of November 12, 2013 (the “FLLA”), requiring, amongst other items,
that proceeds from the FLLA be used by the Company for infrastructure, roads and utility
corridors and connections in support of the Project, thereby making available jobs to low and
moderate income community residents; and

WHEREAS, the FLLA provided that a total of $500,000 of the FLLA proceeds was
cligible for forgiveness, in increments of $100,000 for each calendar year 2019, 2020, 2021,
2022 and 2023 (each a “Reviewed Calendar Year”) provided that the Company, in each such
Reviewed Calendar Year, maintained no fewer than 75 full time permanent employees at the
Project Facility (the “Minimum Employment Requirement”) and in such an event, where the
Company met the Minimum Employment Requirement, the Agency would then determine that
the conditions to reducing the outstanding principal balance, in a $100,000 increment, had been
met (the “Conditions to Reduction™), and $100,000 of the outstanding principal balance amount
would then be deemed forgiven; and

WHEREAS, the Company submitted its required annual employment report in 2020, for
the 2019 calendar year, wherein the Agency determined that the Minimum Employment
Requirement had been met, and as such, that the Conditions to Reduction had been met, such
that the current outstanding principal balance outstanding is $400,000; and

WHEREAS, in early 2021, the Company informed the Agency that due to the COVID-19
global pandemic and resulting disruption to oil and gas markets, the Company idled its
manufacturing operations for 20 weeks, reduced shifts from 3 to 1 per day, and experienced an
approximately 70% reduction in sales; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the foregoing, the Company stated that as of December 31,
2020, 48 full time permanent employees were working at the Facility, such that the Minimum
Employment Requirement and Conditions to Reduction for the 2020 calendar year were not met;
and

WHEREAS, per the terms of the FLLA, the principal outstanding balance of $400,000 is
deemed due and owing, and interest at the applicable interest rate (as defined within the FLLA)
would begin to accrue thereon as of January 1, 2020, the Company would, on February 1, 2021,
pay to the Agency all interest then accrued at the applicable rate, and, commencing on March 1,
2021, and continuing on the first day of each month thereafter until December 31, 2024 (the
“Maturity Date”), the Company would pay to the Agency monthly payments of principal each in
the amount of $8,695.65, plus all accrued and unpaid interest at the applicable interest rate; and

WHEREAS, although, year to date, the Company continues to operate the Facility at a
level of employment below the Minimum Employment Requirement, the Company is optimistic
that sales will begin to rebound in 2021 assuming the alleviation of the adverse business and
economic impacts caused by the COVID-19 global pandemic; and

- 78



WHEREAS, the current forgivable nature of the outstanding principal balance, as
provided for within the FLLA, did not anticipate or contemplate the impacts that the COVID-19
global pandemic would have on the Company’s Minimum Employment Requirement; and

WHEREAS, Agency staff and the Company desire to amend the FLLA to account for the
adverse impacts caused by the COVID-19 global pandemic that has adversely impacted the
Company and its ability to meet the Minimum Employment Requirement by: (i) requiring that no
action be taken related to the Company’s failure to meet the Minimum Employment
Requirement for the 2020 calendar year, (ii) releasing the 2020 calendar year as one of the
calendar years included within the Reviewed Calendar Year monitoring period, (iii) extending
the Reviewed Calendar Year monitoring period by one additional year, to now include the 2024
calendar year, (iv) extending the FLLA Maturity Date to December 31, 2025, and (v) taking
additional actions as so required to effectuate the foregoing (items (i)-(v), collectively, to be
referred to as the “FLLA Amendments”™).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE ERIE
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Agency hereby authorizes the FLLA Amendments as so described
herein and determines that the FLLA Amendments will facilitate economic development and job
creation/retention for the benefit of the economy and people of Erie County.

Section 2. In the event the Company does not meet the 2021 Minimum Employment
Requirement based upon the Company’s representation that the COVID-19 global pandemic
continues to adversely impacts its 2021 business operations, the Agency hereby authorizes the
Agency’s President/Chief Executive Officer, in consultation with the Chair and the Agency’s
general counsel, to confirm same and to further amend the heretofore amended FLLA by: (i)
requiring that no action be taken related to the Company’s failure to meet the Minimum
Employment Requirement for the 2021 calendar year, (ii) releasing the 2021 calendar year as
one of the calendar years included within the Reviewed Calendar Year monitoring period, (iii)
extending the Reviewed Calendar Year monitoring period by one additional year, to now include
the 2025 calendar year, (iv) extending the FLLA Maturity Date to December 31, 2026, and v)
taking additional actions as so required to effectuate the foregoing.

Section 3. In accordance with the Agency's goals and purposes set forth above, and
subject to the terms of this Resolution, and further subject to appropriate terms and conditions as
determined by the Chair, the Vice Chair, the President/Chief Executive Officer, the Vice
President, the Treasurer, and/or the Assistant Treasurer (collectively, the “Authorized Officers™),
any of the Authorized Officers are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to negotiate,
execute and deliver any and all of the FLLA Amendments in a form acceptable to the Agency's
general counsel, and any of the Authorized Officers are further authorized to negotiate and
execute any and all documents, or amended documents, reasonably contemplated by these
resolutions.

79



Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to negotiate, execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all
such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or,
in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the
purposes of the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the
terms, covenants and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

Dated: March 24, 2021

80



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MEETING:

LIVE STREAMED:

PRESENT:

EXCUSED:

OTHERS PRESENT:

GUESTS:

March 4, 2021, at Erie County Industrial Development Agency (the
“ECIDA” or “Agency”), meeting held via phone -conference.
Governor Cuomo’s Executive Order 202.1, as amended from time to
time, issued in response to the Coronavirus (COVID-19) crisis,
suspended Article 7 of the Public Officers Law to the extent necessary
to permit any public body to take actions without permitting in public
in-person access to such meetings and authorized such meetings to be
held remotely by conference call or other similar service, provided the
public has the ability to view or listen to such proceedings and that the
meeting is recorded and transcribed.

This meeting is being live-audic streamed and made accessible on the
Agency’s website at www.ecidany.com.

Denise Abbott; April Baskin; Johanna Coleman; Colleen DiPirro;
Hon. William Krebs; Richard Lipsitz; Brenda W. McDuffie; Glenn
Nellis; Laura Smith; David State; Lavon Stephens and Maria Whyte

Rev. Mark Blue; Bryon W. Brown and Richard Cummings

John Cappellino, President & CEQO; Mollie Profic, Chief Financial
Officer, Karen M. Fiala, Vice President/Secretary; Atiga Abidi,
Assistant Treasurer; Grant Lesswing, Business Development Officer;
Brian Krygier, Systems Analyst, Carrie Hocieniec, Administrative
Coordinator; Beth O’Keefe, Business Development Officer; Robbie
Ann McPherson, Director of Marketing and Communications; and
Robert G. Murray, Esq., General Counsel/Harris Beach PLLC

Andrew Federick, Erie County Senior Economic Development
Specialist; Lisa Hicks on behalf of the City of Buffalo; Alex Carducci
on behalf of the City of Buffalo; Carl Montante III on behalf of Terzo
Development; Benjamin Harp and Christopher Brown on behalf of
Polymer Conversions.

There being a quorum present at 9:02 a.m., the Meeting of the Policy Committee was
called to order by Mr. Lipsitz.

Page 1 of 4

81



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

MINUTES

The minutes of the January 7, 2021 Policy Committee meeting were presented. Upon
motion made by Mr. Nellis and seconded by Ms. Whyte, the aforementioned Policy Committee
meeting minutes were then unanimously approved.

The minutes of the February 8, 2021 Special Policy Committee meeting were presented.
Upon motion made by Mr. Krebs and seconded by Ms. McDulffie, the aforementioned Policy
Committee meeting minutes were then unanimously approved.

PROJECT MATRIX

Mr. Cappellino reviewed the Agency’s Project Matrix. Mr. Lipsitz directed that the
report be received and filed.

PROJECT PRESENTATIONS

Surmet Ceramics Corp., 743 Hertel Avenue. Buffalo, New York. Mr. Cappellino
presented this proposed sales tax exemption benefit project involving the construction of a
3,400 sq. ft. expansion to the existing 75,000 sq. ft. leased space. The additional space will be
used for CIP (cold isostatic press) building and associated foundation (pit) and utilities extension.
The project consists of the construction of a 3,400 sq. ft. expansion to the company’s existing
130,000 sq. ft. facility.

Mr. Cappellino stated that in exchange for providing the sales tax exemption benefit, the
approval of this project will be conditioned upon adherence to certain material terms and
conditions with respect to the potential modification, recapture and/or termination of financial
assistance as follows:

Draft Recapture Material Terms

| Condition | Term Recapture Provision

Investment amount equal to or greater than 85%
of project amount.

Total Project Amount = $11,500,000
Total Investment | At project completion | 85% = $9,775,000

Maintain base = 13

Create 85% of Projected

Projected = 18

Coincides with 85% =15
Employment recapture terms Recapture Employment: 28 |
Adherence to policy including quarterly
Local Labor Construction Period | reporting
Coincides with i
Pay Equity recapture terms | Adherence to policy
Page 2 of 4

82



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

Coincides with |
Unpaid Tax recapture terms | Adherence to policy |
| 2 years following ‘
. Recapture Period | project completion

Recapture of state and local sales taxes

Ms. McDuffie moved and Ms. DiPirro seconded to recommend the project as proposed
be forwarded to the members of the ECIDA Board for approval. Mr. Lipsitz called for the vote
and the project was then unanimously approved.

Terzo Development/Bush Lofts. 44 17" Street. Buffalo. New York. Mr. Cappellino
presented this proposed sales tax, mortgage recording tax and real property tax abatement
benefits project involving the renovation and re-use of a 15,000 sq. ft. existing facility into 13
apartments. Three of the 13 units will be offered at 80% of the adjusted median income (“AMI”)
throughout the 7-year PILOT term. There will also be 6-7 spaces of off-site parking available to
tenants as well as a curb cutout in front of the building which will open up 3-4 additional parking
spaces.

Mr. Cappellino stated that in exchange for providing the sales and use tax, mortgage
recording tax exemption and real property tax abatement benefits, the approval of this project
will be conditioned upon adherence to certain material terms and conditions with respect to the
potential modification, recapture and/or termination of financial assistance as follows:

Draft Recapture Material Terms

Condition Term Recapture Provision
Investment amount equal to or greater than 85%
of project amount.

Total Project Amount = $3,050,000
Total Investment | At project completion 85% = $2,592,000

Create 85% of Projected

Projected =1 PT

Coincides with 7-year 85%=1PT

Employment PILOT Recapture Employment = 1 PT
Adherence to policy including quarterly
Local Labor Construction Period reporting ' -
Coincides with 7-year
| Pay Equity PILOT Adherence to policy |
Coincides with 7-year
Unpaid Tax PILOT Adherence to policy
Coincides with 7-year Recapture of state and local sales taxes,
Recapture Period | PILOT - mortgage recording tax and real property taxes |

General discussion ensued in regard to the Company’s response to comments received at
the Agency’s public hearing held with respect to the Project as proposed. It was noted that the
Company would continue to meet with community residents in efforts to continue to keep
residents appraised of the Project.

Page 3 of 4

83



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

At this point in time, Mr. Stephens joined the meeting.

Ms. Coleman moved and Ms. DiPirro seconded to recommend the project as proposed be
forwarded to the members of the ECIDA for approval. Mr. Lipsitz called for the vote and the
project was then unanimously approved.

POLYMER CONVERSIONS ECIDA ASSIGNMENT CONSENT
Ms. McDuffie moved and Ms. Smith seconded to recommend the approval of the
assignment and assumption of the Polymer Conversion to Medbio, LLC be forwarded to the

members of the ECIDA for approval. Mr. Lipsitz called for the vote and the project was then
unanimously approved.

MWBE UPDATE
Ms. Whyte provided members with an update on the MWBE working committee.

There being no further business to discuss, Mr. Lipsitz adjourned the meeting at 9:52 a.m.

Dated: March 4, 2021

Karen M. Fiala, Secretary

Page 4 of 4

84



Surmet Ceramics Corp.

ELIGIBILITY

NAICS Section - 336413

ComMPANY INCENTIVES

Approximately $65,625 in sales tax
savings

EMPLOYMENT

Retained Jobs - 13
Projected New Jobs - 18

Total Jobs After Project
Completion -31

Annual payroll: $1,465,000

Estimated salary of jobs to be
created: $55,000

Estimated salary of jobs to be
retained: $52,500

ProJECT HISTORY

No public hearing required since
estimated benefit amount is less
than $100,000

03/24/2021 Lease/Leaseback
Inducement Resolution presented
to the Board of Directors

$11,500,000
INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION
Project Title: Surmet Ceramics Corp.
Project Address: 743 Hertel Avenue

Buffalo, New York 14207
(Buffalo City School District)
Agency Request

A sales tax exemption in connection with the construction of a 3,400 sq. ft. building expan-
sion.

Building Addition $ 2,500,000
Infrastructure $ 500,000
Manufacturing Equipment $ 8,000,000
Other $ 500,000
Total Project Cost $11,500,000
85% $9,775,000

Company Description

In 2002, Surmet acquired the ALON Technology from Ratheon with the goal of bringing
transparent ceramic from the laboratory to the marketplace. In 2003 when M/ACOM-Tyco
planned to close the location, Surmet took, over the facility at 699 Hertel Avenue where
ALON Powder was being manufactured and has been operating the facility since that time.
Over the past 18 years, Surmet has taken ALON from the laboratory to the marketplace with
a combined Surmet and government investment of over $100M. Surmet now produces win-
dows, domes, lenses and transparent armor for the Department of Defense and all of the ma-
jor defense contractors in the USA.

The majority of company sales (95%) are to companies located within the U.S.

Project Deseription

Surmet currently leases 75,000 square feet from Benderson Development at 699 Hertel Ave-
nue in the City of Buffalo. The current project is for the construction of a 3,400 sq. ft. ex-
pansion to the existing leased space. The additional space will be used for CIP (cold isostat-
ic press) building and associated foundation (pit) and utilities extension. The project con-
sists of the construction of a 3,400 sq. ft. expansion to the company’s existing 130,000 sq. ft.
facility.

3/1/2021 9:34 AM
85




Draft Recapture Material Terms

Condition Term Recapture Provision

Total Investment At project completion Investment amount equal to or greater than 85% of
project amount.

Total project amount = $11,500,000

85% = $9,775,000

Employment Coincides with recapture term Maintain base: 13

Create 85% of Projected

Projected = 18

85%= 15
Recapture Employment = 28

Local Labor Construction period Adherence to policy including
quarterly reporting

Pay Equity Coincides with recapture period Adherence to Policy

Unpaid Tax Coincides with recapture period Adherence to Policy

Recapture Period 2 years following project completion | Recapture state and local sales taxes

Recapture applies to:
State and Local Sales Taxes

Recapture

Pursuant to New York State General Municipal Law, the agency shall modify, recover, recapture or terminate any financial assistance
taken by the company that is in violation of the GML.

At completion of the project company must certify i) total investment amount is equal to or greater than 85% of the anticipated project
amount; ii) company has maintained 13 jobs and created 18 FT jobs, iii) confirm adherence to local labor policy during construction
and iv) its adherence to unpaid tax/pay equity policies for recapture term.

86



ADDENDUM TO PROJECT LOG

Surmet

Evaluative Criteria

Notes

Wage Rate (above median wage for area)

Erie County median worker income: $33,350
Company estimated average salary of jobs to
be retained: $52,500

Company estimated average salary of jobs to
be created: $55,000

Regional Wealth Creation ("/T
sales/customers outside area)

Sales:
Outside NYS and within U.S.: 95%
International: 2%

In Region Purchases (% of overall
purchases)

70% of overall purchases are procured
through firms located in Erie County. They
include such services as gas, chemicals,
abrasives, electrical, mechanical, parts and
tools and supplies as well as various services
for equipment maintenance and repair.

Research & Development Activities

Approximately 5-7% of operating expenses
are devoted to research and development.

Investment in Energy Efficiency

All three pieces of equipment being

| purchased are constructed with the most
efficient state of the art technology and will
be energy efficient.

Locational Land Use Factors, Brownfields
or Locally Designated Development Areas

The project will meet all local zoning and
land use requirements.

LEED/Renewable Resources

Not applicable.

Retention/Flight Risk Recapture criteria currently in place requires a
company this size to retain 95% of its base
| FTE jobs.
MBE/WBE Utilization | The general contractor for this project is

| Gilbane. Gilbane, based out of Rhode Island
has worked on many local projects such
Northland and Albright Knox and has an
excellent reputation for working with M/WBE
subcontractors.

Workforce Access — Proximity to Public
Transportation

The facility is accessible by Metro Bus 23A
route.

March 24, 2021

87



PILOT Worksheet: Estimate of Real Property Tax Abatement Benefits*** and Percentage of

Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources

** The PILOT Worksheet will be: (i) completed by IDA Staff based upon information contained
within the Application, and (ii) provided to the Applicant for ultimate inclusion as part of this
completed Application.

PILOT Estimate Table Worksheet-Surmet Ceramics Corp. - 2021

Dollar Value of ‘ Estimated New | County Tax Local Tax Rate School Tax
New Assessed Value | Rate/1000 (Town/City/Village)/1000 Rate/1000
Construction of Property
and Renovation | Subject to IDA*
Costs

$3,000,000

. *Apply equalization rate to value

N/A
PILOT ' % County Local School Total Full Tax Net
Year | Payment PILOT PILOT PILOT PILOT Payment Exemption
Amount Amount Amount | w/o
PILOT

*%%  Estimates provided are based on current property tax rates and assessment value (current
as of date of application submission) and have been calculated by IDA staff

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector Table Worksheet:

Total Project ‘ Estimated Estimated Estimated Value of | Total of Other Public
Cost | Value of Value of Sales | Mortgage Tax Incentives (Tax Credits,
[ PILOT Tax Incentive Incentive Grants, ESD Incentives,
etc.)
$11,500,000 N/A $65,625 $0 $0

Calculate %

(Est. PILOT + Est. Sales Tax+ Est. Mortgage Tax+ Other)/Total Project Costs: _.5 %




2/20/2021 Surmet Ceramics Corp. | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered by CGR

Cost-Benefit Analysis for Surmet Ceramics Corp.
Prepared by Erie County IDA using InformAnalytics

https:/ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/644 1/6

89



Surmet Ceramics Corp. | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered by CGR

, Executive Summary

' TOTAL INVESTED

INVESTOR

Surmet Ceramics Corp.

[ .‘—I FIGURE 1

$11.5 Million

LOCATION

Discounted* Net Benefits for Surmet Ceramics Corp. by Year

6M
4M
2M
0
-2M
Yeartl Year2 Year3 Year4 Year5
@ Benefits @ Costs
(72 FIGURE2
Total Jobs
l
oy [
| -
50 75

0 25

@ Direct @ Spiliover

https:/fny.informanalytics.org/cbalreport/644

743 Hertel Avenue,
Buffalo, NY 14207

Year6 Year7 Year8
O~ Net Benefits
ﬂ.ﬁ FIGURE 3
Total Payroll
I
Temporary Fl
Ongoing
0
@ Direct

90

TIMELINE

| 10 Year

Total Net Benefits: $36,107,000

Year9 Year10

Discounted at 2%

10 20 30
Millions of Dollars

@ spillover

40

2/6



2/20/2021

Proposed

Surmet Ceramics Corp. | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered by CGR

Investment

Surmet Ceramics Corp. proposes to invest $11.5 million at 743 Hertel Avenue, Buffalo, NY 14207 over 10 years.

L0l tasLes

Proposed investments

Description Amount

CONSTRUCTION SPENDING
Construction —
OTHER SPENDING
Infrastructure $500,000
Manufacturing Equipment $8,;JOO,;);)07
Other B $500,000
Discounted Total (2%) $11,500,000

May not sum to total due to rounding.

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/644

[} rcures

Location of Investment

s TR B ¥
't'! - - oy Q LN ! H
& "g ’é!-m'n;gssgz g < 3 !I !
EFp 3 5§ 2 02 gl i
& 5 3 & ¢ .0  United States e ,_;H
58 F 5 Raee Q@RS
/P woner i B ,
e ” e g 3
= ]
il § §: 8. ,
il R £ ;
2 ’f ir!:kzh‘rai.n '
Thm Man Brewery
«at-Chandler Street™y
mdier 8t .II T L TETE LI Fotendle k
e (L ‘r_ﬁ i PIERCE ARROW
SR 7 T YFACTORY
. ‘ 5 : :
Gsﬁéﬂgl(- "’lﬁi’mn&g COMPLEX
Y b Map data ©2021 Google

3/6

21



2/20/2021 Surmet Ceramics Corp. | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Anaiytics | Powered by CGR

Cost-Benefit Analysis

A cost-benefit analysis of this proposed investment was conducted using InformAnalytics, an economic impact model
developed by CGR. The report estimates the impact that a potential project will have on the local economy based on
information provided by Erie County IDA. The report calculates the costs and benefits for specified local taxing districts
over the first 10 years, with future returns discounted at a 2% rate.

EA_! TABLE 2

Estimated Costs or Incentives
Erie County IDA is considering the following incentive package for Surmet Ceramics Corp..

Nominal Value Discounted Value*

Description

Sales Tax Exemnption $65,000 $65,000

“

$65,000 $65,000

Total Costs

May not sum to total due to rounding.
* Discounted at 2%

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/644

92

4/6



212012021 Surmet Ceramics Corp. | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered by CGR

['— = TABLE 3

State & Regional Impact (Life of Project)

The following table estimates the total benefits from the project over its lifetime.

Description Direct
REGIONAL BENEFITS $18,318,000
To Private Individuals $17,623,000
Temporary Payroll $961,000
Ongoing Payroll $16,663,000
To the Public $695,000
Property Tax Revenue $407,000
Temporary Sales Tax 416,000
Revenue
Ongoing Sales Tax $272,000
Revenue
STATE BENEFITS $1,110,000
To the Public $1,110,000
Temporary Income $47,000
Tax Revenue
Ongoing Income Tax $814,000
Revenue
Temporary Sales Tax $14,000
Revenue
Ongoing Sales Tax $235,000

Revenue

Total Benefits to State & $19,428,000

Region

Discounted Total Benefits

(2%) $17,922,000

May not sum to total due to rounding.

hitps://ny.informanaiytics.org/cba/report/644

93

Spillover

$18,762,000

$18,461,000

$333,000

$18,128,000

$301,000

N/A

$5,000

$296,000

$1,123,000

$1,123,000

$16,000

$846,000

$5,000

$256,000

$19,885,000

$18,250,000

Total

$37,080,000

$36,085,000

$1,294,000

$34,790,000

$996,000

$407,000

$21,000

$567,000

$2,233,000

$2,233,000

$63,000

$1,661,000

$18,000

$491,000

$39,314,000

$36,171,000

S —

5/6



212012021 Surmet Ceramics Corp. | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered by CGR

{.f’if TABLE 4

Benefit to Cost Ratio

The following benefit to cost ratios were calculated using the discounted totals.

Description Benefit* Cost* Ratio
Region $34,118,000 $35,000 985:1
State $2,053,000 $30,000 68:1

Grand Total $36,171,000 $65,000

May not sum to total due to rounding.
* Discounted at 2%

CGR has exercised reasonable professional care and diligence in the production and design of the InformAnalytics™ tool. However, the data used is provided by
users. InformAnalytics does not independently verify, validate or audit the data supplied by users. CGR makes no representations or warranties with respect to the

accuracy of the data supplied by users.

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cbalreport/644 6/6

94



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION

SURMET CERAMICS CORPORATION. AND/OR INDIVIDUAL(S) OR AFFILIATE(S),
SUBSIDIARY(IES), OR ENTITY(IES) FORMED OR TO BE FORMED ONITS
BEHALF

A regular meeting of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency was convened on
Wednesday, March 24, 2021 at 12:00 p.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY: (i) ACCEPTING THE APPLICATION OF SURMET CERAMICS
CORPORATION, AND/OR  INDIVIDUAL(S) OR  AFFILIATE(S),
SUBSIDIARY(IES), OR ENTITY(IES) FORMED OR TO BE FORMED ON
ITS BEHALF (INDIVIDUALLY, AND/OR COLLECTIVELY, THE
“COMPANY”) IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN PROJECT DESCRIBED
BELOW; (1) RATIFYING THE SCHEDULING, NOTICING, AND
CONDUCTING OF A PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION WITH THE
PROIJECT; (iii) APPOINTING THE COMPANY, OR ITS DESIGNEE, AS ITS
AGENT TO UNDERTAKE THE PROJECT; (iv) AUTHORIZING THE
UNDERTAKING OF THE PROJECT TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE TO THE COMPANY IN THE FORM OF A SALES TAX
EXEMPTION BENEFIT FOR PURCHASES AND RENTALS RELATED TO
THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF THE
PROJECT; AND (v) AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION AND
EXECUTION OF AN AGENT AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT
AGREEMENT, AND RELATED DOCUMENTS

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 293 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York, as
amended (collectively, the “Act”), the ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority and power to own, lease and sell
property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, constructing and equipping civic,
industrial, manufacturing, commercial and other facilities as authorized by the Act; and

WHEREAS, SURMET CERAMICS CORPORATION or on behalf of an affiliated
entity formed or to be formed (the “Company”) has submitted an application to the Agency (the
“Application”) requesting the Agency’s assistance with a certain project (the “Project”)
consisting of: (i) the construction of an additional 3,400+/- SF expansion off the southeast
corner of the Company’s existing 130,000+/- SF facility located at 743 Hertel Avenue, City of
Buffalo, County of Erie, New York (the "Land"); (ii) the expansion building will consist of three

95



main components: a press room with a recessed pit, high pressure room and pump room on the
Land (the "Improvements");, and (iii) the acquisition of and installation in and around the
Improvements of certain machinery, equipment and items of personal property (the "Equipment”
and, collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the "Facility"), and all to be used by the
Company. The Facility will be initially operated and/or managed by the Company; and

WHEREAS, the financial assistance (as hereinafter defined) being contemplated by the
Agency shall not exceed $100,000, until a Public Hearing is held, if at all, and a subsequent
resolution is passed pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 859-a; and

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will (i) designate the Company as its
agent for the purpose of undertaking the Project pursuant to an Agent and Financial Assistance
Project Agreement (the “Agent Agreement”), and (ii) provide Financial Assistance to the
Company in the form of an exemption benefit from all New York State and local sales and use
taxes for purchases and rentals related to the Project with respect to the qualifying personal
property included in or incorporated into the Facility or used in the acquisition, construction,
reconstruction and/or renovation, rehabilitation or equipping of the Facility (“Financial
Assistance”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 18-A of the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a
resolution describing the Project and the Financial Assistance that the Agency is contemplating
with respect to the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE ERIE
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Company has presented an application in a form acceptable to the
Agency. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company’s
application and any other correspondence submitted by the Company to the Agency, public
hearing comments, if any, Agency Policy Committee review and recommendations of the Project
and its March 4, 2021 resolution to approve the project subject to the terms and conditions as
described herein, and Agency board member review, discussion, and consideration of same, the
‘Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B)  Itis desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to appoint the Company as
its agent for purposes of acquiring, constructing and/or renovating and equipping the Project; and

(C)  The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the
Act; and

(D)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the
Project, thereby increasing and/or retaining employment opportunities in Erie County, New York
and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and

926



(E) The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or
manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one
area of the State of New York (the “State”) to another area of the State or result in the
abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant
of the Project located within the State; and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the
Company’s application, to the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to
another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project occupants from removing
such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is reasonably necessary to
preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their respective industries, and, to
the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to another in another area of the
State, the Agency has complied with the Intermunicipal Movement procedures as required in the
Countywide Industrial Development Agency Uniform Tax Exemption Policy; and

(F)  The Agency has assessed all material information included in connection with the
Application necessary to afford a reasonable basis for the decision by the Agency to provide
Financial Assistance for the Project as described herein; and

(G) The Agency has prepared a written cost-benefit analysis identifying the extent to
which the Project will create or retain permanent, private sector jobs, the estimated value of any
tax exemption to be provided, the amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be
generated by the Project, the likelihood of accomplishing the Project in a timely fashion, and the
extent to which the Project will provide additional sources of revenue for municipalities and
school districts, and any other public benefits that might occur as a result of the Project; and

(H) The Company has provided a written statement confirming that the Project as of
the date of the Application is in substantial compliance with all provisions the Act.

D The Project involves a “Type II action” as said term is defined in under the State
Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQR”) and therefore no other determination or
procedures under SEQR are required.

¢)] The Project qualifies for Agency Financial Assistance as it meets the Agency’s
evaluative criteria established by the Agency as required under General Municipal Law
Section 859-a(5), as evidenced by the following:

1) Wage Rate (above median wage for area): Erie County per capita
income: $33,350. Company estimated average salary of jobs to be retained: $52,500.
Company estimated average salary of jobs to be created: $55,000.

(i) Regional Wealth Creation (% sales/customers outside area): Sales
outside NYS and within U.S.: 95% and International: 2%.

(iii)  In Region Purchases (% of overall purchases): 70% of overall purchases
are procured through firms located in Erie County. They include such services as gas,
chemicals, abrasives, electrical, mechanical, parts and tools and supplies as well as
various services for equipment maintenance and repair.

97



(iv)  Research and Development Activities: Approximately 5-7% of operating
expenses are devoted to research and development.

v) Investment in Energy Efficiency: All three pieces of equipment being
purchased are constructed with the most efficient sate of the art technology and will be
energy efficient.

(vi)  Locational Land Use Factors, Brownfields or Locally Designated
Development Areas: The project will meet all local zoning and land use requirements.

(vii) LEED/Renewable Resources: Not Applicable.

(viii) Retention/Flight Risk: Recapture criteria currently in place requires a
company this size to retain 95% of its base FTE jobs.

(ix) MBE/WBE Utilization: The general contractor for this project is Gilbane.
Gilbane, based out of Rhode Island, has worked on many local projects such as Northland
and Albright Knox and has an excellent reputation for working with M/WBE
subcontractors.

x) Workforce Access-Proximity to Public Transportation: The facility is
accessible by Metro Bus 23 A route.

Section 2. The Agency hereby authorizes the undertaking of the Project and the
provision of the Financial Assistance to the Company as described herein.

Section 3. Subject to the Company executing an Agent Agreement and the delivery
to the Agency of a binder, certificate or other evidence of insurance for the Project satisfactory to
the Agency, the Agency hereby authorizes the Company to proceed with the acquisition,
construction and equipping of the Project and hereby appoints the Company as the true and
lawful agent of the Agency: (i) to acquire, construct and/or renovate and equip the Project; (ii) to
make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any contracts, orders, receipts, writings and
instructions, as the stated agent for the Agency with the authority to delegate such agency, in
whole or in part, to agents, subagents, contractors, and subcontractors of such agents and
subagents and to such other parties as the Company chooses; and (iii) in general, to do all things
which may be requisite or proper for completing the Project, all with the same powers and the
same validity that the Agency could do if acting in its own behalf, provided, however, the
appointment of the Company as agent of the Agency, if utilized, shall expire one year from the
date of this resolution (unless extended for good cause by the Chair, the Vice Chair, the
President/Chief Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer,
and/or the Assistant Treasurer).

A. Financial Assistance. With respect to the foregoing, and based upon the
representations and warranties made by the Company in its application for Financial Assistance,
the Agency hereby:

(1) authorizes and approves the Company, as its agent, to make purchases of
goods and services relating to the Project and that would otherwise be subject to New

4

98



York State and local sales and use tax in an amount estimated up to $750,000, and,
therefore, the value of the sales and use tax exemption benefits (“sales and use tax
exemption benefits™) authorized and approved by the Agency cannot exceed $65,625,
however, the Agency may consider any requests by the Company for increases to the
amount of sales and use tax exemption benefits authorized by the Agency upon being
provided with appropriate documentation detailing the additional purchases of property
or services; and

B. Terms and Conditions of Financial Assistance. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the
New York General Municipal Law, and per the policies of the Agency, the Agency may recover
or recapture from the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, any New York State and local sales
and use tax exemption benefits taken or purported to be taken by the Company, its agents,
consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of
the Project, if it is determined that: (i) the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or
any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, is not entitled to the
New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits; (ii) the New York State and local
sales and use tax exemption benefits are in excess of the amounts authorized to be taken by the
Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make
purchases for the benefit of the Project; (iii) the New York State and local sales and use tax
exemption benefits are for property or services not authorized by the Agency as part of the
Project; (iv) the Company has made a material false statement on its application for Financial
Assistance; (v) the New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits are taken in
cases where the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized
to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, fails to comply with the Investment
Commitment, the Employment Commitment, and/or the Local Labor Commitment, said
commitments, as described below, being a material term or condition to use property or services
in the manner approved by the Agency in connection with the Project; and/or (vi) the New York
State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits are taken in cases where the Company fails
to comply with the Equal Pay Commitment and/or the Unpaid Real Property Tax Policy
Commitment, as described below, being a material term or condition to use property or services
in the manner approved by the Agency in connection with the Project.

As a condition precedent of receiving Financial Assistance, the Company, its agents,
consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to -make purchases for the benefit of
the Project, must cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to recover or recapture any Financial
Assistance, and promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency that the Agency demands.

(C) Commitments. As an additional condition precedent of receiving Financial
Assistance, and as a material term or condition as approved by the Agency in connection with
the Project, the Company covenants and agrees and understands that it must, subject to potential
modification, termination and/or recapture of Financial Assistance for failure to meet and
maintain the commitments and thresholds as described below, submit, on an annual basis or as
otherwise indicated below through the conclusion of the later of two (2) years following either
(x) the construction completion date, or (y) the termination of the Agent Agreement, a
certification, as so required by the Agency, confirming:

929



(1) Investment Commitment- the total investment actually made with respect to the
Project at the time of Project completion equals or exceeds $9,775,000 (which
represents the product of 85% multiplied by $11,500,000, being the total project
cost as stated in the Company’s application for Financial Assistance).

(i1) Employment Commitment — that there are at least thirteen (13) existing full time
equivalent (“FTE”) employees located at, or to be located at, the Facility as stated
in the Company’s application for Financial Assistance (the “Baseline FTE”); and

e the number of current FTE employees in the then current year at the Facility;
and

o that within two (2) years of Project completion, the Company has maintained
and created FTE employment at the Facility equal to twenty-eight (28) FTE
employees [representing the sum of (x) thirteen (13) Baseline FTE and (y)
fifteen (15) FTE employees, being the product of 85% multiplied by eighteen
(18) (being the eighteen (18) new FTE employee positions proposed to be
created by the Company as stated in its Application)]. In an effort to confirm
and verify the Company’s employment numbers, the Agency requires that, at
a minimum, the Company provide employment data to the Agency on a
quarterly basis, said information to be provided on the Agency’s “Quarterly
Employment Survey” form to be made available to the Company by the
Agency.

(iii)) Local Labor Commitment - that the Company adheres to and complies with the
Agency’s Local Labor Workforce Certification Policy on a quarterly basis during
the construction period.

(iv)  Equal Pay Commitment — that the Company adheres to and complies with the
Agency’s Pay Equity Policy.

(v)  Unpaid Real Property Tax Policy Commitment — that the Company is compliant
with the Agency’s Unpaid Real Property Tax Policy.

Section 4. Subject to the terms of this Inducement Resolution, the Chair, the Vice
Chair, the President/Chief Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial
Officer/Treasurer and/or the Assistant Treasurer, are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency,
to negotiate, execute and deliver, on behalf of the Agency, the Agent Agreement, a sales tax
exemption letter (the "Sales Tax Exemption Letter"), a bill of sale (the "Bill of Sale") whereby
the Agency at the completion of the installation period transfers to the Company title to the
Equipment acquired during the installation period by the Company as agent of the Agency, and
related documents.

Section 5. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to negotiate, execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all
such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or,

100



in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the
purposes of the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the
terms, covenants and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 6. The provision by the Agency of Financial Assistance with respect to the
Project as described herein is subject to the execution and delivery of the Agency’s
Administrative Fee Agreement (the “Fee Agreement”) and payment by the Company of an
administrative fee calculated in accordance with the Fee Agreement, all within sixty (60) days of
the date of this resolution. In the event the Agency has not received the executed Fee Agreement
and the appropriate fee within such sixty (60) day period, this resolution shall become
automatically null and void and of no further effect and the Agency shall have no liability to the
Company hereunder or otherwise, unless extended in the discretion of the Chair, the Vice Chair,
the President/Chief Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer,
or the Assistant Treasurer for good cause shown.

Section 7. This resolution shall take effect immediately, and shall expire one (1) year
from the date hereof unless extended for good cause by the Chair, the Vice Chair, the
President/Chief Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer, or
the Assistant Treasurer.

Dated: March 24, 2021

101



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

O

ECIDZ

Surmet Ceramics Corp.

Instructions and Insurance Requirements Document

| Section I: Applicant Background Information

Please answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary. Information in this application may be subject to public review
under New York State Law.

Applicant Information - Company Receiving Benefit

Project Name Surmet- 290 Expansion Project

Project Summary This new project is about the expansion and build-out of a CIP (cold isostatic press) building and
associated foundation (pit) and utilities extensions at our existing Buffalo facility, located at 699
Hertel Avenue, Suite 290, Buffalo, NY 14207. The project consists of an approximate 3,400
square foot building expansion off the southeast corner of the existing structure. The expansion
building consists of three main components, a press room with a recessed pit, high pressure
room, and pump room.

Applicant Name Surmet Ceramics Corp.
Applicant Address 699 Hertel Avenue Suite 290
Applicant Address 2

Applicant City Buffalo

Applicant State New York

Applicant Zip 14207

Phone (781) 345-5721

Fax (781) 750-3025

E-mail sjha@surmet.com

Website www.surmet.com

NAICS Code 541715, 541330, 336413 and 336992

Business Organization

Type of Business Corporation
Year Established 2003
State in which Organization is established New York

Individuat Completing Application

Name Dr. Santosh K. Jha
Title Director of Operations
Address 699 Hertel Avenue Suite
290
Address 2
https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 1/20

102



2/18/2021
City Buffalo
State New York
Zip 14207
Phone (781) 345-5721
Fax (781) 750-3025
E-Mail siha@surmet.com

Company Contact (if different from individual completing application)

Name Surmet Ceramics Corp.

Title Surmet Ceramics Corp.

Address 699 Hertel Avenue Suite
290

Address 2

City Buffalo

State New York

Zip 14207

Phone (781) 345-5721

Fax (781) 750-3025

E-Mail sjha@surmet.com

Company Counsel

Name of TBD
Attorney

Firm Name
Address
Address 2
City

State

Zip

Phone

Fax

E-Mail

Benefits Requested (select ail that apply).

Exemption from Sales Tax Yes
Exemption from Mortgage Tax No
Exemption from Real Property Tax No
Tax Exempt Financing®* No

* (typically for not-for-profits & small qualified manufacturers)

Applicant Business Description

Describe in detail company background, history, products and customers. Description is critical in determining eligibility.

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 103

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

2120



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Surmet Background: Surmet is an advanced materials manufacturing company, that was founded in 1982 on the principal that today's
materials are not adequate for the applications of tomorrow. Surmet initially focused on producing products such as electro-static clamps,
and protective coatings for the inside of processing chambers for the Semiconductor Industry. In 2002, Surmet acquired the ALON®
Technology from Raytheon with the goal of bringing this transparent ceramic (Transparent Aluminum from Star Trek} from the laboratory
to the marketplace. In 2003 when M/ACOM-Tyco planned to close the location, Surmet took over the facility at 699 Hertel Ave., Buffalo,
NY where their ALON® Powder was being manufactured, and has been operating this facility ever since. Over the past 18 years, Surmet
has taken ALON from the laboratory to marketplace with a combined Surmet and Gov't investment >$100M. Surmet now produces
windows, domes, lenses and transparent armor for the DoD and all of the Major Defense Contractors in the USA. About the New
Expansion Project in Buffalo: Surmet and its Gov't customers are now investing >$13M in new equipment project, to consolidate its
forming and heat-treating capabilities in the facility at 699 Hertel Ave., Buffalo, NY. This equipment includes the largest ceramics
processing equipment in North America and production scale furnaces for the heat-treatment of ALON. The purpose of this new
equipment project is for Surmet to produce the largest transparent ceramic windows ever made for future Reconnaissance systems. This
equipment will also be used for Surmet's other product including sensor windows, domes, lenses, and transparent armor. This new project
is about the expansion and build-out of a CIP (cold isostatic press} building and associated foundation (pit} and utilities extensions at our
existing Buffalo facility, located at 639 Hertel Avenue, Suite 290, Buffalo, NY 14207. The project consists of an approximate 3,400 square
foot building expansion off the southeast corner of the existing structure. The expansion building consists of three main components, a
press room with a recessed pit, high pressure room, and pump room. The expansion will have a corridor that connects the three main
building components to the existing structure. Egress doors are proposed off the press room (overhead) and at the pump room {(double).
The project will cost about $2.5M (per Gilbane's proposal after the completion of Phase I: Design study). Surmet is looking for help in the
form of Sales Tax Exemption for the construction materials, exemption from Real Property Tax for the proposed building addition, etc. This
will help us stay in Buffalo area. In addition to the existing employment, Surmet also has the additional new employment projections in
Buffalo as below: Year 1: 8 New employment Year 2: 10 New employment Year 3: 12 New employment Year 4: 15 New employment Year
5:17 New employment Investment projections for this expansion project are also listed below: Year 1: $11.5M Year 2: $1.3M Year 3:

$1.15M Year 4: $1.15M Year 5: $1.17M

Estimated % of sales within Erie County 0%
Estimated % of sales outside Erie County but within New York State 3%
Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the U.S. 95 %
Estimated % of sales outside the U.S. 2%

(*Percentage to equal 100%)

For your operations, company and proposed project what percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials and vendor services
are purchased from firms in Erie County?

70

Describe vendors within Erie County for major purchases

Major purchases from Erie County vendors include gas, chemicals, abrasives, electrical, mechanical, parts and tools and supplies as well as
various services for equipment maintenance and repair.

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083

3/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

l Section li: Eligibility Questionnaire - Project Description & Details

Project Location
Address of Proposed Project Facility
743 Hertel Avenue

Town/City/Village of Project Site
Buffalo

School District of Project Site
Buffalo

Current Address (if different)

Current Town/City/Village of Project Site (if different)

SBL Number(s) for proposed Project

What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project Site

Current yearly taxes for Surmet are $.71 per foot

If amount of current taxes is not available, provide assessed value for each.
Land

s
Building(s)
$

If available include a copy of current tax receipt.

Are Real Property Taxes current at project location?
Yes

If no please explain

*The ECIDA has an unpaid tax policy and you will be required to certify all taxes and PILOTS are current.

Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title or have an option/contract to purchase the Project site?
No
If No, indicate name of present owner of the Project Site
Benderson Development
Does Applicant or related entity have an option/contract to purchase the Project site?
No
Describe the present use of the proposed Project site (vacant land, existing building, etc.)
Existing building with plans for addition - manufacturing user.

Provide narrative and purpose of the proposed project (new build, renovations) square footage of existing and new construction
contemplated and/or equipment purchases. Identify specific uses occurring within the project. Describe any and all tenants and any/all
end users: (This information is critical in determining project eligibility)

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 105

4/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Surmet and its Gov't customers are now investing >$13M in new equipment project, to consolidate its forming and heat-treating capabilities
in the facility at 699 Hertel Ave., Buffalo, NY. This equipment includes the largest ceramics processing equipment in North America and
production scale furnaces for the heat-treatment of ALON. The purpose of this new equipment project is for Surmet to produce the largest
transparent ceramic windows ever made for future Reconnaissance systems. This equipment will also be used for Surmet's other product
including sensor windows, domes, lenses, and transparent armor. This new project is about the expansion and build-out of a CIP {cold
isostatic press) building and associated foundation (pit) and utilities extensions at our existing Buffalo facility, located at 699 Hertel Avenue,
Suite 280, Buffalo, NY 14207. The project consists of an approximate 3,400 square foot building expansion off the southeast corner of the
existing structure. The expansion building consists of three main components, a press room with a recessed pit, high pressure room, and
pump room. The expansion will have a corridor that connects the three main building components to the existing structure. Egress doors are
proposed off the press room (overhead) and at the pump room (double). The project will cost about $2.5M (per Gilbane's proposal after the
completion of Phase I: Design study). Surmet is looking for help in the form of Sales Tax Exemption for the construction materials, exemption
from Real Property Tax for the propased building addition, etc. This will help us stay in Buffalo area. In addition to the existing employment,
Surmet also has the additional new employment projections in Buffalo as below: Year 1: 8 New employment Year 2: 10 New employment Year
3: 12 New employment Year 4: 15 New employment Year 5: 17 New employment Investment projections for this expansion project are also
listed below: Year 1: $11.5M Year 2: $1.3M Year 3: $1.15M Year 4: $1.15M Year 5: 51.17M

Municipality or Municipalities of current operations
City of Buffalo

Will the Proposed Project be located within a Municipality identified above?

Yes

Will the completion of the Project result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of
the state to another area of the state OR in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located within the
state?

No

If the Proposed Project is located in a different Municipality within New York State than that Municipality in which current operations are
being undertaken, is it expected that any of the facilities in any other Municipality will be closed or be subject to reduced activity?

No
(If yes, you will need to complete the Intermunicipal Move Determination section of this application)

Is the project reasonably necessary to prevent the project occupant from moving out of New York State?

Yes

If yes, please explain and identify out-of-state locations investigated, type of assistance offered and provide supporting documentation
available
Burlington, MA - company's current headquarters. If the current facility can't meet the manufacturer's needs through the proposed addition,
then operations could be moved out of state.

Have you contacted or been contacted by other Local, State and/or Federal Economic Development Agencies?

Yes

If yes, please indicate the Agency and nature of inquiry below
Invest Niagara, National Grid, and ECIDA.

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the Agency, then provide a statement in the space provided
below indicating why the Project should be undertaken by the Agency: '

Describe the reasons why thg Agency’s financial assistance is necessary, and the effect the Project will have on the Applicant’s business or
operations. Focus on competitiveness issues, project shortfalls, etc... Your eligibility determination will be based in part on your answer
{attach additional pages if necessary}

Surmet has placed orders for over $10M of manufacturing equipment, including a very large high pressure Cold Isostatic Press (CIP) and two
large production furnaces. We were prepared to install this equipment in the Buffalo facility when we encountered a number of issues which
threaten to derail our Buffalo expansion. For structural reasons we are unable to install the CIP inside of the existing building. Consequently,
we will need to build and additional structure to house it at greater than 3x the original estimated cost. And National Grid has substantially
decreased the amount of electricity available for the facility over the past 20 years. These two factors have increased the cost of our
installation by millions of dollars. This is a huge additional expense for a small company like Surmet. We are working with a number of
gavernmental agencies, including yours, to help defray these unexpected expenses.

Please confirm by checking the box, below, if there is likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the Financial Assistance
provided by the Agency

Yes

https:/Awww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 106 5/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
if the Applicant is unable to obtain Financial Assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on the Applicant and Erie County?
We need ECIDA assistance so that we can not only stay in Buffalo, but substantially increase our operations there.
Will project include leasing any equipment?

No
If yes, please describe equipment and lease terms.

Site Characteristics

Is your project located near public transportation?
Yes

If yes describe if site is accessible by either metro or bus line {provide route number for bus lines)
Facility is accessible my route 23A

Has a project related site plan approval application been submitted to the appropriate planning department?
Yes

If Yes, include the applicable municipality’s and/or planning department’s approval resolution, the related State Environmental Quality
Review Act (“SEQR”) “negative declaration” resolution, if applicable, and the related Environmental Assessment Form (EAF), if
applicable.

If No, list the ECIDA as an “Involved Agency” on the related EAF that will be submitted to the appropriate municipality and/or planning
department for site plan approval.
Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the proposed location?
Yes
Describe the present zoning/land use
D-C
Describe required zoning/land use, if different

If a change in zoning/land use is required, please provide details/status of any request for change of zoning/land use requirements

Is the proposed Project located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is complicating the development/use
of the property?

No

If yes, please explain

Has a Phase | Environmental Assessment been prepared, or will one be prepared with respect to the proposed Project Site?

<BLANK>
If yes, please provide a copy.

Have any other studies, or assessments been undertaken with respect to the proposed Project Site that indicate the known or
suspected presence of contamination that would complicate the site's development?

No
If yes, please provide copies of the study.

if you are purchasing new machinery and equipment, does it provide demonstrable energy efficiency benefits?
Yes
If yes, describe the efficiencies achieved

All new equipment that is being purchased has been constructed with the latest state-of-the-art technology as concerns energy efficiency.
You may also attach additional information about the machinery and equipment at the end of the application.

Does or will the company or project occupant perform research and development activities on new products/services at the project
location?

Yes
If yes, include percentage of operating expenses attributed to R&D activities and provide details.

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 107 6/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Approximately 5-7% of operating expenses are attributed to research and development activities.

Select Project Type for all end users at project site (you may check more than one)

For purposes of the following, the term “retail sales” means (i} sales by a registered vendor under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of
New York (the “Tax Law”} primarily engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b){4)(i) of the Tax
Law), or {ii) sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project.

Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities? If yes with respect to either economic activity
indicated below, you will need to complete the Retail section of this application.

Retail Sales No Services No
Please check any and all end uses as identified below.

No Acquisition of Existing Facility No Assisted Living No Back Office

No Civic Facility (not for profit) No Commercial No Equipment Purchase
No Facility for the Aging No Industrial No Life Care Facility {CCRC)
No Market Rate Housing No Mixed Use No Multi-Tenant

No Retail No Senior Housing Yes Manufacturing

No Other

For proposed facility please include the square footage for each of the uses outlined below

If applicant is paying for FFE for tenants, include in cost breakdown.

Cost % of Total Cost
Manufacturing/Processing 3,400 square feet $ 2,500,000 100%
Warehouse square feet s 0 0%
Research & Development square feet $ 0 0%
Commercial square feet $ 0 0%
Retail square feet $ 0 0%
Office square feet $ 0 0%
Specify Other square feet $ 0 0%

If you are undertaking new construction or renovations, are you seeking LEED certification from the US Green Building Council?
No

If you answered yes to question above, what level of LEED certification do you anticipate receiving? (Check applicable box)
<BLANK>

Provide estimate of additional construction cost as a resuit of < BLANK >
LEED certification you are seeking

Will project result in significant utility infrastructure cost or uses Yes

What is the estimated project timetable (provide dates),

Start date : acquisition of equipment or construction of facilities
4/1/2021

End date : Estimated completion date of project
12/1/2021

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 7/20

108



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
Project occupancy : estimated starting date of occupancy
1/1/2022

Project Information

Estimated costs in connection with Project
1.) Land and/or Building Acquisition

SO square feet acres

2.) New Building Construction
$ 2,500,000 3,400 square feet

3.) New Building addition(s)
S0 square feet

4.) Reconstruction/Renovation

SO square feet

5.} Manufacturing Equipment
$ 8,000,000

6.) Infrastructure Work
$ 500,000

7.) Non-Manufacturing Equipment: (furniture, fixtures, etc.)
$0

8.) Soft Costs: (Legal, architect, engineering, etc.)
SO

9.) Other Cost
$ 500,000

Explain Other electrical, cocling tower, etc.
Costs

Total Cost $ 11,500,000

Construction Cost Breakdown:

Total Cost of Construction $ 3,000,000 (sum of 2, 3, 4 and 6 in Project Information, above)
Cost of materials $ 750,000.00
% sourced in Erie County 72%

Sales and Use Tax:

Gross amount of costs for goods and services that are subject to S 750,000
State and local sales and use tax- said amount to benefit from the
Agency's sales and use tax exemption benefit

Estimated State and local Sales and Use Tax Benefit {product of S 65,625
8.75% multiplied by the figure, above):

** Note that the estimate provided above will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance. The Applicant
acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to undertake the total amount of investment as
proposed within this Application, and that the estimate, above, represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency
may authorize with respect to this Application. The Agency may utilize the estimate, above, as well as the proposed total Project Costs as
contained within this Application, to determine the Financial Assistance that will be offered.

https:/fwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 109 8/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Project refinancing estimated amount, if applicable (for S0
refinancing of existing debt only)

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date No
of this Application?

If Yes, describe particulars:

Sources of Funds for Project Costs:
Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits): $ 11,500,000
Bank Financing: SO
Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable): SO
Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable): S0

Public Sources (include sum total of all state and federal grants S0
and tax credits}:

Identify each state and federal grant/credit: {ie Historic Tax 0
Credit, New Market Tax Credit, Brownfield, Cleanup Program,
ESD, other public sources)

Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs: $11,500,000

Have you secured financing for the project? No

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit:

Amount of mortgage, if any that would be subject to mortgage recording tax:

Mortgage Amount {(include sum total of 0
construction/permanent/bridge financing).

Lender Name, if Known

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit (product of S0
mortgage amount as indicated above muitiplied by 3/4 of 1%):

Real Property Tax Benefit:

Identify and describe if the Project will utilize a real property
tax exemption benefit other than the Agency’s PILOT benefit
(485-a, 485-b, other):

IDA PILOT Benefit: Agency staff will indicate the estimated amount of PILOT Benefit based on estimated Project Costs as contained herein and
anticipated tax rates and assessed valuation, including the annual PILOT Benefit abatement amount for each year of the PILOT benefit and the
sum total of PILOT Benefit abatement amount for the term of the P{LOT as depicted in the PILOT worksheet in the additional document

section.

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources: Agency staff will calculate the percentage of Project Costs financed from
Public Sector sources based upon the Sources of Funds for Project Costs as depicted above. The percentage of Project Costs financed from

public sector sources will be depicted in the PILOT worksheet in the additional document section.

ECIDA encourages applicants to utilize MBE/WBE contractors for their projects. Describe your company’s internal practices that
promote MBE/WBE hiring and utilization

Is project necessary to expand project employment?

Yes

Is project necessary to retain existing employment?

Yes

Will project include leasing any equipment?

https://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 110 9/20



2/18/2021
No

If yes, please describe equipment and lease terms.

Employment Plan (Specific to the proposed project location)

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

You must include a copy of the most recent NYS-45 Quarterly Combined Withholding, Wage Reporting and Unemployment Insurance
Return. The Labor Market Area consists of the following six counties: Erie, Niagara, Chautauqua, Cattaraugus, Wyoming and Genessee.

By statute, Agency staff must project the number of FTE jobs that would be retained and created if the request for Financial Assistance is
granted. Agency staff will project such jobs over the TWO Year time period following Project completion. Agency staff converts PT jobs into

FTE jobs by dividing the number of PT jobs by two (2).

Current # of jobs at
proposed project
location or to be

If financial assistance is
granted — project the

relocated at project n.umber of FT a|.1d PT
‘ N jobs to be retained
location
Full time 13 13
Part time 0 0
Total 13 13

Salary and Fringe Benefits for Jobs to be Retained and Created

Category of Jobs to he  # of Employees Average Average Fringe
Retained and/or Retained and/or Salary for Benefits for Full
Created Created Full Time Time
Management 4 $ 65,000 $30,000
Professional 6 $ 60,000 $ 25,000
Administrative 1 $ 45,000 $ 10,000
Production 20 $ 40,000 $ 9,000
independent 0 50 50

Contractor

Other o S0 S0

If financial assistance is
granted — project the
number of FT and PT

jobs to be created upon
24 months (2 years)

after Project completion

18
0
18
Average Salary for
Part Time (if
applicable)
$0
S0
$o
$0
SO0
S0

Estimate number of
residents of the Labor
Market Area in which
the project is located

‘that will fill the FT and
PT jobs to be created

upon 24 months (2

years) after project

completion **
18
0

Average Fringe Benefits
for Part Time (if
applicable)

S0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0

** Note that the Agency may utilize the foregoing employment projections, among other items, to determine the financial assistance

that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant

by the Applicant to retain the number of jobs and create the number of jobs with respect to the Project as set forth in this Application.

Employment at other locations in Erie County: (provide address and number of employees at each location):
Address
Full time 0 0 0
Part time 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0

Payroll Information

Annual Payroll at Proposed Project Site upon completion
1,465,000

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained (Full Time)
52,500

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained (Part Time)
0

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 111

10/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be created (Full Time)

55,000

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be created (Part Time)

0

Estimated salary range of jobs to be created
From (Full Time) 40,000 To (Full Time) 65,000

From (Part Time} O To (PartTime) O

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 11/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I section lil: Environmental Questionnaire

INSTRUCTIONS: Please complete the following questionnaire as completely as possible. if you need additional space to fuily answer any
question, please attach additional page(s).

General Background Information

Address of Premises
743 Hertel Avenue Buffalo, NY 14207

Name and Address of Owner of Premises

Benderson Development 570 Delaware Avenue Buffalo, NY 14202

Describe the general features of the Premises (include terrain, location of wetlands, coastlines, rivers, streams, lakes, etc.}

Multi-tenant, manufacturing, medical, professional office.

Describe the Premises (including the age and date of construction of any improvements) and each of the operations or processes
carried out on or intended to be carried on at the Premises

Describe all known former uses of the Premises

Does any person, firm or corporation other than the owner occupy the Premises or any part of it?

Yes

If yes, please identify them and describe their use of the property
Surmet Corp.

Have there been any spills, releases or unpermitted discharges of petroleum, hazardous substances, chemicals or hazardous wastes
at or near the Premises?

No

If yes, describe and attach any incident reports and the results of any investigations

Has the Premises or any part of it ever been the subject of any enforcement action by any federal, state or local government entity,
or does the preparer of this questionnaire have knowledge of: a) any current federal, state or local enforcement actions; b) any areas
of non-compliance with any federal, state or local laws, ordinances, rules or regulations associated with operations over the past 12
months?

No
If yes, please state the results of the enforcement action {consent order, penalties, no action, etc.) and describe the circumstances

Has there been any filing of a notice of citizen suit, or a civil complaint or other administrative or criminal procedure involving the
Premises?

No

If yes, describe in full detail

Solid And Hazardous Wastes And Hazardous Substances

Does any activity conducted or contemplated to be conducted at the premises generate, treat or dispose of any petroleum,
petroleum-related products, solid and hazardous wastes or hazardous substances?

No

If yes, provide the Premises' applicable EPA {or State) identification number

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 113 12/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Have any federal, state or local permits been issued to the Premises for the use, generation and/or storage of solid and hazardous
wastes?

No

if yes, please provide copies of the permits.

Identify the transporter of any hazardous and/or solid wastes to or from the Premises

Identify the solid and hazardous waste disposal or treatment facilities which have received wastes from the Premises for the past two
(2) years

Does or is it contemplated that there will occur at the Premises any accumulation or storage of any hazardous wastes on-site for
disposal for longer than 90 days?

No

If yes, please identify the substance, the quantity and describe how it is stored

Discharge into Waterbodies

Briefly describe any current or contemplated industrial process discharges (including the approximate volume, source, type and
number of discharge points). Please provide copies of all permits for such discharges

Identify all sources of discharges of water, including discharges of waste water, process water, contact or noncontact cooling water,
and stormwater. Attach all permits relating to the same. Also identify any septic tanks on site

Is any waste discharged into or near surface water or groundwaters?
No

If yes, please describe in detail the discharge including not only the receiving water's classification, but a description of the type and
quantity of the waste

Air Pollution
Are there or is it contemplated that there will be any air emission sources that emit contaminants from the Premises?
No
If yes, describe each such source, including whether it is a stationary combustion installation, process source, exhaust or ventilation

system, incinerator or other source

Are any of the air emission sources permitted?
No

If yes, attach a copy of each permit.

Storage Tanks

List and describe all above and under gmund storage tanks at the Premises used to store petroleum or gasoline products, or other
chemicals or wastes, including the contents and capacity of each tank. Please also provide copies of any registrations/permits for the
tanks

Have there been any leaks, spills, releases or other discharges {including loss of inventory) associated with any of these tanks?
<BLANK>

If yes, please provide all details regarding the event, including the response taken, all analytical results or reports developed through
investigation (whether internal or external), and the agencies which were involved

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 114 13/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Polychlorinated Bighenyls ("PCB" or "PCBs") And Asbestos

Provide any records in your possession or known to you to exist concerning any on-site PCBs or PCB equipment, whether used or
stored, and whether produced as a byproduct of the manufacturing process or otherwise.

Have there been any PCB spills, discharges or other accidents at the Premises?
No

if yes, relate all the circumstances

Do the Premises have any asbestos containing materials?
No

If yes, please identify the materials

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 115 14/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I section IV: Facility Type - Single or Multi Tenant

Is this a Single Use Facility or a Multi-Tenant Facility?
Single Use Facility

For Single Use Facility

Occupant Name  Surmet Corp.
Address 699 Hertel Avenue Suite 290, Buffalo, NY 14207
Contact Person  Santosh K. Jha
Phone (781) 345-5721
Fax (781) 750-3025
E-Mail sjha@surmet.com
Federal ID # 51-046-4403
SIC/NAICS Code 541715, 336413, 336992 5

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2018/print/ 100083 116 15/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

l Section VI: Retail Determination
To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency requires additional information if the proposed
Project is one where customers personally visit the Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or to purchase services.

Please answer the following:

Will any portion of the project (including that portion of the costs to be financed from equity or other sources) consist of facilities or
property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?

No
if yes, complete the Retail Questionnaire Supplement below.

hitps:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 117 16/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[‘ Section VII: Adaptive Reuse Projects

Adaptive Reuse is the process of adapting old structures or sites for new purposes.

Are you applying for tax incentives under the Adaptive Reuse Program?
No

hitps://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 118 17/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency {ECIDA)

l Section Vili: Inter-Municipal Move Determination

The Agency is required by state law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting from Agency Financial Assistance
reésults in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of the
state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located within the state, Agency financial Assistance
is required to prevent the project occupant from relocating out of the state, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the project occupant's
competitive position in its respective industry.
Current Address

743 Hertel Avenue
City/Town

Buffalo
State

New York
Zip Code

14207

Will the project result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the Project occupant from one area of the state to
another area of the state?

No

Will the project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Project occupant located within the state?
No

If Yes to either question, explain how, notwithstanding the aforementioned closing or activity reduction, the Agency's Financial
Assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of the State, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project
occupant's competitive position in its respective industry:

Does this project involve relocation or consolidation of a project occupant from another municipality?
Within New York State No
Within Erie County No

If Yes to either question, p_Ieasef explain

Will the project resuit in a relocation of an existing business operation from the City of Buffalo?
No

If yes, please explain the factors which require the project occupant to relocate out of the City of Buffalo (For example, present site is
not large enough, or owner will not renew leases etc.)

What are some of the key requirements the project occupant is looking for in a new site? {For example, minimum sq. ft., 12 foot
ceilings, truck loading docs etc.)

If the project occupant is currently located in Erie County and will be moving to a different municipality within Erie County, has the
project occupant attempted to find a suitable location within the municipality in which it is currently located?
No

What factors have lead the project occupant to consider remaining or locating in Erie County?
If the current facility is to be abandoned, what is going to happen to the current facility that project occupant is located in?

Please provide a list of properties considered, and the reason they were not adequate. (Some examples include: site not large
enough, layout was not appropriate, did not have adequate utility service, etc.) Please include full address for locations.

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 119 18/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 120 19/20



2/18/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[" Section IX: Senior Housing

IDA tax incentives may be granted to projects under the Agency’s Senior Citizen Rental Housing policy when the project consists of a multi-
family housing structure where at least 90% of the units are {or are intended to be) rented to and occupied by a person who is 60 years of
age or older.

Are you applying for tax incentives under the Senior Rental Housing policy?
No

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100083 121 20420



Terzo Development/Bush Lofts

$3,050,000
INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION
ELIGIBILITY Project Title: Terzo Development/Bush Lofts
Project Address: 44-17th Street

NAICS Section - 531110

CoMPANY INCENTIVES

Approximately $96,250 in sales tax
savings

Approximately $191,000 in real
property tax savings

Approximately $16,875 in
mortgage tax savings

EMPLOYMENT

Projected New Jobs - 1 PT

ProJecTt HIiSTORY

03/01/2021—Public hearing held.

03/24/2021 - Inducement
Resolution presented to Board of
Directors adopting a Negative
Declaration in accordance with
SEQRA.

03/24/2021 - Lease/Leaseback
Inducement Resolution presented
to the Board of Directors

Buffalo, New York 14213
(Buffalo City School District)
Agency Request

A sales tax, mortgage recording tax and real property tax abatement in connection with the
adaptive reuse of a 15,000 sq. ft. vacant building.

Building Acquisition $ 500,000
Renovation $2,050,000
Soft Costs $ 500,000
Total Project Cost $3,050,000
85% $2,592,000

Company Description

Terzo Development was formed in 2020 and is owned equally by Carl Montante, III and
John Ticco. The company was formed for the purpose of acquiring and renovating vacant
facilities in the Buffalo area. Their mission is to help build under-invested communities and
neighborhoods in the City of Buffalo such as the West Side, East Side and First Ward
among other areas.

Project Description

This existing building has been vacant since 2019 and was severely underutilized prior to
that time. The project consists of the renovation and re-use of this 15,000 sq. ft. structure
into 13 apartments. Three of the 13 units will be offered at 80% of the adjusted median in-
come (“AMI”) throughout the 7-year PILOT term. A breakdown of the units is offered be-
low:

Units Square Feet Rent Range
3-1 bedroom 635-1,007 $900-$1,400
7-2 bedroom 812-1,240 $1,137-$1,740
2-3 bedroom 1,350-1,625 $1,890-$2,275
1-Studio 483 $532-$600

Also offered in the development of the building will be 6-7 spaces of off-site parking which
will be available to the tenants. They will also be adding a curb cut to the front of the build-
ing which will open up 3-4 additional parking spaces.

Since 100% of the project is devoted to housing, there is no employment impact other than a
part time building manager.

2/25/2021 2:11 PM
122




New Tax Revenue Estimated

Current Yearly | Estimated New | Additional County | Additional | New Yearly
Taxes Assessed Value | Revenue over 7- | Local Reve- | Taxes Upon
year abatement nue Over 7- | Expiration of |
period year Abatement
abatement | Period
period
$4,400 $1,600,000 $12,000 $40,000 $35,000
Combined Tax
Rate: $22
Draft Recapture Material Terms
Condition Term Recapture Provision
Total Investment At project completion Investment amount equal to or greater than 85% of
project amount.
Total project amount = $3.050,000
85% = $2,592,000
Employment Coincides with 7-year PILOT | Create 85% of Projected
Projected =1 PT
85%= 1PT
Recapture Employment =1 PT
Local Labor Construction period Adherence to policy including
quarterly reporting
Pay Equity Coincides with 7-year PILOT Adherence to Policy
Unpaid Tax Coincides with 7-year PILOT Adherence to Policy
Recapture Period Coincides with 7-year PILOT | Recapture of Mortgage recording tax, state and local
sales taxes

Recapture applies to:

State and Local Sales Taxes
Real Property Tax
Mortgage Recording Tax

Recapture

Pursuant to New York State General Municipal Law, the agency shall modify, recover, recapture or terminate any financial assistance
taken by the company that is in violation of the GML.

At completion of the project company must certify i) total investment amount is equal to or greater than 8§5% of the anticipated project
amount; ii) company has created 1 PT job, iii) confirm adherence to local labor policy during construction and iv) its adherence to
unpaid tax/pay equity policies for recapture term.

123



ADAPTIVE REUSE REPORT AND EVALUATIVE CRITERIA

Terzo Development/Bush Lofts

Evaluative Criteria

Notes

Distressed Census Tracts

The property is in census tract 67.01 which is considered |
highly distressed under the State statute. It is also
surrounded by several other highly distressed tracts.

Age of Structure (must be at least 20
years old and present functional
challenges to redevelopment)
Structure has been vacant or
underutilized for a minimum of 3
years (defined as a minimum of 50%
of the rentable square footage of the
structure being utilized for a use for
which the structure was not designed
| or intended). Project promotes
elimination of slum and blight

| The Bﬁil(_ling has been vacant since mid-2019 when the

The building was constructed in the late 1800°s.

previous owner passed away. Prior to that time, the
building, which once housed a photography studio had not
been utilized for several years.

The investment of over $3,000,000 will serve to eliminate
slum and blight and enhance this neighborhood which is
in a highly distressed census tract.

Structure is not generating
significant rental income (defined as
50% or less than the market rate
income average for that property

| class. o

Since the facility is vacant, no income is being generated.

Redeve@me_nt Supports or aligns
with Regional or Local Development
Plans

The project complies with the investment and growth
criteria of the Framework for Regional Growth.

Environmental or Safety Issues.

The entire building requires updating. Roof needs repair,
| exterior bricks are crumbling and falling. In addition, the
facility needs all new mechanicals to bring it up to current
code standards.

LEED/Renewable resources

NA

Building or site has historic
designation

The building was constructed in the late 1800’s and hasa |
historical designation.

Site or structure has delinquent or
other local taxes

The developer does not yet own the building, but it is his
understanding the estate is keeping the taxes current.

MBE/WBE utilization

The general contractor, Lamparelli Construction, will
solicit to MBE subcontractors and strive to reach a 20%
goal and solicit WBE subcontractors and strive to reach a
10% goal. They are currently under contract on several
| ongoing projects which require these same goals.

124



Demonstrated support of local gov’t. | Mayor Brown has supplied a letter in support of the
project.

Project/developer’s return on The developer has supplied an ROI which indicates a

investment below average rate of return on the investment.

Impediments to conventionally The savings from sales tax, mortgage tax and real

financing project. property taxes will provide a level of comfort to the
lender. The developer has stated without these benefits, it

| would be difficult to finance the project.

ﬁransit Oriented Devel_oi)_ment j The facility is accessible on the 3, 7 and 12 bus lines.

March 24, 2021

125



Return on Investment — Terzo Development — Bush Lofts 72

Regional Return on Investment (ROI) numbers vary depending on the interest rate
environment, investor availability and risk associated with a project.

The National Development Council, which has experience financing projects in higher risk
urban areas across the Northeast, uses 10% - 12% as a benchmark rate of return for urban high-

risk projects.

Empire State Development financing officials when reviewing similar projects in the City of
Buffalo have used 12% as an acceptable ROI for development projects.

Adaptive Reuse Projects

Many Adaptive Reuse Projects are hampered by upfront development costs that are not typical
in new build green field development projects. These upfront costs can hinder the ability of
the projects to attract financing and provide cash flow. The upfront costs associated with site
contamination, asbestos removal, code compliance, structural deficiencies can make Adaptive
Reuse projects difficult to undertake and attract private investment and financing, particularly
in real estate markets where rental values are relatively low. Historically real estate projects in
the region are difficult to undertake, local real estate developers have indicated that the typical
ROI investors and developers seek to achieve in mixed use development projects are in the
10% - 12% range, although they can run higher for projects with significant risk.

Public Incentives Requested

e ECIDA Real Property Tax Abatement in an approximate value of $191,000
¢ Sales Tas Savings in the amount of $96,250
e Mortgage Tax Savings in the estimated amount of $16,875

ROI

Terzo Development has submitted a proforma documenting the expenses and revenues and ROI
for the project.

Stated ROI for the project with ECIDA assistance is 2.4%

Stated ROI for the project without ECIDA assistance is 1.5%

126



PILOT Worksheet: Estimate of Real Property Tax Abatement Benefits*** and Percentage of

Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources

** The PILOT Worksheet will be: (i) completed by IDA Staff based upon information contained
within the Application, and (ii) provided to the Applicant for ultimate inclusion as part of this
completed Application.

PILOT Estimate Table Worksheet-Terzo Development — Bush Lofts - 2021

Dollar Value of | Estimated New | County Tax Local Tax Rate School Tax
New Assessed Value | Rate/1000 (Town/City/Village)/1000 Rate/1000
Construction of Property
and Renovation | Subject to IDA*

Costs

$2,050,000 $1,600,000 $5.04 $16.75 N/A
*Apply equalization rate to value
PILOT % County Local PILOT | Total Full Tax Net Exemption
Year Payment PILOT Amount PILOT Payment w/o

Amount PILOT
1 10% $806 $2,680 $3,486 $34,864 $31,378
2 10% $806 $2,680 $3,486 $34,864 $31,378
3 20% $1,613 $5,360 $6,973 $34,864 $27,891
4 20% $1,613 $5,360 $6,973 $34,864 $27,891
5 30% $2,419 $8,040 $10,459 $34,864 $24,405
6 30% $2,419 $8,040 $10,459 $34,864 $24,405
7 30% $2,419 $8,040 $10,459 $34,864 $24,405
TOTAL $12,096 $40,200 $52,296 $244,048 $191,752

L

as of date of application submission) and have been calculated by IDA staff

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector Table Worksheet:

Estimates provided are based on current property tax rates and assessment value (current

Total Project Estimated Estimated Estimated Value of | Total of Other Public
Cost Value of Value of Sales | Mortgage Tax Incentives (Tax Credits,
PILOT Tax Incentive Incentive Grants, ESD Incentives,
etc.)
$3,050,000 $191,752 $96,250 $16,875 $0

Calculate %

(Est. PILOT + Est. Sales Tax+ Est. Mortgage Tax+ Other)/Total Project Costs:

127

10.0%




E LAMPARELLI CONSTRUCTION CO., INC.

Commercial » Industrial » Construction Management

February 19, 2021

ECIDA
95 Perry Street, Suite 403
Buffalo, NY 14203

Attn: Karen Fiala, Grant Lesswing
Re: Bush Lofts, 44 17" Street

Please be advised that Lamparelli Construction Company has completed many projects in the Buffalo
and surrounding areas that have received IDA and state funding. Lamparelli Construction will bid to
WBE & MBE contractors on upcoming IDA projects and try to reach the MBE goal of 20% and the WBE
goal of 10%.

Currently we have several projects ongoing with state funding that require these goals, including Polly
Jean Suites, GDZ Homes, Cigar Factory Apartments and Main & Utica Apartments. Some of the
subcontractors we are using are Heatwave Mechanical (WBE), Call Associates {MBE), Rand & Jones
(WBE), Ready WNY({Section 3), Innovative Mechanical (WBE), Lazarus Construction {MBE} and JDS
Electrical (SVBOD). Please call with any questions.

Sincerely,

4

Paul Lamparelii
President

590 Kennedy Road & Cheektowaga, NY 14227 » Phone: (716) 891-8599 # Fax: (716) 891-8213

128



2/20/2021 Terzo Development | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered by CGR

Cost-Benefit Analysis for Terzo Development

Prepared by Erie County IDA using InformAnalytics

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/643 1/6

129



Terzo Development | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered by CGR

212012021
INVESTOR | TOTAL INVESTED . LOCATION TIMELINE
Bush Lofts $3.1 Million . 4417th Street, Buffalo, | 7 Years
NY 14203
(i1 Fcures
Discounted* Net Benefits for Terzo Development by Year
Total Net Benefits: $1,766,000
1 500k
1 000k
500k
0 | * pumn * BEE  DEEE ° BEEN BN
EN
-500k - :
Yearl Year2 Year3 Year4 Year5s Year6 Year?
@ Benefits @ Costs <O Net Benefits
‘Discounted-at 2%
(52 Fcure2 (7 FiGures
Total jJobs Total Payroll

pray | =

Ongpoing Il
0 10 20

@ Direct @ Sspillover

hitps://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/reporif643

| g
Temporary |
l
ongoing | NN
I

0 05 1 1.5

30 Millions of Dollars

@ Direct @ Spillover

2/6

130



2/20/2021 Terzo Development | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered by CGR

Proposed Investment

Bush Lofts proposes to invest $3.1 million at 44 17th Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 over 7 years.

(71 Fcure4

a1

Proposed Investments

Wi T
Description Amount 5 fny - ey
A - 4".

TABLE 1

Location of Investment

W Utica 'St

“

CONSTRUCTION SPENDING
Construction $2,050,000 y L ,_531
e X \"\‘ ;;?','I“.(\I!’. :E
. oy, .. i i H
OTHER SPENDING P s i s '
. BreadHive(gfy o€ e,
T Bakery&Cafe ¥ 0¢ . %l U
Building Acquisition $500,000 L N (O g
Q
&
Soft Costs $500,000 z
Total Investments $3,050,000 _ ]
Discounted Total (2%) $3,050,000

May not sum to total due to rounding.

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/643

131

| 8
=
| f
=1 g"’ - _.__,.an.w
i_E
!l
|
i
£
G il
14 [BR
T ey Price Ri
" Stuyves

Map data ©2021 Google

3/6



2/20/2021

Terzo Development | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered by CGR

Cost-Benefit Analysis

A cost-benefit analysis of this proposed investment was conducted using InformAnalytics, an economic impact model
developed by CGR. The report estimates the impact that a potential project will have on the local economy based on
information provided by Erie County IDA. The report calculates the costs and benefits for specified local taxing districts
over the first 7 years, with future returns discounted at a 2% rate.

[_ F_l TABLE 2

Estimated Costs or Incentives

Erie County IDA is considering the following incentive package for Bush Lofts.

Description

Nominal Value Discounted Value*

Property Tax Exemption

Sales Tax Exemption

Total Costs

Mortage Recording Tax Exemption

$192,000 $182,000

$97,000 $97,000

o $17,000 $17,000
$306,000 $296,000

May not sum to total due to rounding.

* Discounted at 2%

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/643

132

4/6



2/20/2021

[ TaBLE3

Terzo Development | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered by CGR

State & Regional Impact (Life of Project)

The following table estimates the total benefits from the project over its lifetime.

Description

REGIONAL BENEFITS

To Private Individuals

Temporary Payroll

Ongoing Payroli

To the Public

Property Tax Revenue

Temporary Sales Tax
Revenue

Ongoing Sales Tax
Revenue

STATE BENEFITS

To the Public

Temporary Income
Tax Revenue

Ongoing Income Tax
Revenue

Temporary Sales Tax
Revenue

Ongoing Sales Tax
Revenue

Total Benefits to State &

Region

, Discounted Total Benefits

(2%)

Direct

$1,075,000

$1,006,000

$788,000

$218,000

$69,000

$52,000

$13,000

$4,000

$61,000

$61,000

$39,000

$8,000

$11,000

$3,000

$1,136,000

$1,123,000

May not sum to total due to rounding.

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cha/report/643

133

Spillover Total
$922,000 $1,997,000
$907,000 $1,914,000
$273,000 $1,061,000
$634,000 $852,000
$15,000 $84,000
N/A $52,000
$4,000 $17,000
$10,000 $14,000
$55,000 $116,000
$55,000 $116,000
$13,000 $52,000
$29,000 $37,000
$4,000 $15,000
$9,000 $12,000

$977,000 $2,114,000

$939,000 $2,061,000

5/6



2/20/2021 Terzo Development | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered by CGR

[ o TABLE 4

Benefit to Cost Ratio

The following benefit to cost ratios were calculated using the discounted totals.

Description Benefit* Cost* Ratio
Region $1,948,000 $245,000 81
State $113,000 $51,000 Y- 2:1
Grand Total $2,061,000 $296,000 7:1

May not sum to total due to rounding.
* Discounted at 2%

CGR has exercised reasonable professional care and diligence in the production and design of the InformAnalytics™ tool. However, the data used is provided by
users. InformAnalytics does not independently verify, validate or audit the data supplied by users. CGR makes no representations or warranties with respect to the

accuracy of the data supplied by users.

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/643 6/6

134



City oF Burraro
OFrIicE OF THE MAYOR

ByroNn W. BrRowN
Mavowr
February 26, 2021

Mr. John Cappellino

Chief Executive Officer

Erie County Industrial Development Agency
95 Perry Street, Suite 403

Buffalo NY 14203

RE: 44 17" Street
Terzo Development, LLC

Dear Mr. Cappellino;

The City of Buffalo supports Terzo Development’s application to the Erie County Industrial Development
Agency to redevelop the former vacant warehouse at 44 17th Street on the City of Buffalo’s West Side.
We believe that this multifamily redevelopment project will strengthen the City of Buffalo and its appeal
to new residents.

Buffalo is a wonderful place to live, and is a city that values its historic structures. The adaptive reuse
project at 44 17 Street will transform a historic, vacant warehouse into 13 new market/affordable-rate
apartments. As Buffalo makes room for its emerging modern workforce, housing demand throughout
the City continues to rise, This multifamily adaptive reuse project aligns with my vision to increase
housing stock throughout the City of Buffalo to meet current housing demand and sustain economic
development,

This project will also enhance the vitality of the surrounding West Side neighborhood by mitigating
neighborhood blight and attracting riew residents. The adaptive reuse of this historic structure is a
welcome addition to the impressive revitalization efforts that continue to propel Buffalo into a new era

of development.

Sincerely,

ROOM 201 CITY HALL / BUFFALO, NY 14202 /{718)851-4841 / FAX(716) 831-24360 / Wchity-buff_alo.com

135



VIRTUAL PUBLIC HEARING SCRIPT

Terzo Development, LLC and/or
Individual(s) or Affiliate(s),
Subsidiary(ies), or Entity(ies) formed or
to be formed on its behalf Project

Public Hearing to be held on March 1, 2021 at 9:00 a.m.
via Virtual Conference Software

ATTENDANCE:

Carl Montante, III — Terzo Development
John Cappellino — ECIDA

Karen Fiala - ECIDA

Carrie Hocieniec — ECIDA

Brian Krygier — ECIDA

Tara Heavern - Resident

1. WELCOME: Call to Order and Identity of Hearing Officer.

Hearing Officer: Welcome. This public hearing is now open; it is 9:00 am. My name is

Grant Lesswing. I am the Business Development Officer of the Erie
County Industrial Development Agency, and 1 have been designated by
the Agency to be the hearing officer to conduct this virtual public hearing.
This public hearing is being live-streamed and made accessible on the
Agency’s website at www.ecidany.com. Pre-registration for anyone
wishing to speak at today’s public hearing was required through our
website. Today I am joined by Brian Krygier, ECIDA Systems Analyst
who will be the Hearing Moderator and he will be managing the public
comment portion of this hearing.

2. PURPOSE: Purpose of the Hearing.

Hearing Officer: We are here to hold the public hearing on the Terzo Development, LLC

and/or Individual(s) or Affiliate(s), Subsidiary(ies), or Entity(ies) formed
or to be formed on its behalf project. The transcript of this hearing will be
reviewed and considered by the Agency in determination of this project.
Notice of this hearing appeared in The Buffalo News on Friday,
February 19, 2021.

[X] 3. PROJECT SUMMARY: Description of Project and Contemplated Agency Benefits.

Hearing Officer: The proposed project (the "Project") consists of: (i) the acquisition by the

Agency of a leasehold interest in certain property located on 44 17" Street,

136



City of Buffalo, Eric County, New York (the “Land”), (ii) the renovation
on the Land of an approximately 15,000 square-foot historic facility to be
utilized for 13 market/affordable-rate apartments (1 of which being
affordable at 80% AMI) and 6-7 spaces of off-site parking which will be
rented/leased to tenants (the “Improvements™), and (iii) the acquisition by
the Company in and around the Improvements of certain items of
machinery, equipment and other tangible personal property (the
“Equipment”; and, together with the Land and the Improvements, the
“Facility”).

The proposed financial assistance contemplated by the Agency includes
New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits, mortgage
recording tax exemption benefits, and real property tax abatement benefits
(in compliance with Agency's uniform tax exemption policy).

[X] 4. FORMAT OF HEARING: Review rules and manner in which the hearing will proceed.

Hearing Officer: All those who have joined this conference call were required to pre-
register through our website (www.ecidany.com). Everyone who has pre-
registered will be given an opportunity to make statements and/or
comments on the Project.

If you have a written statement or comment to submit for the record,
please submit it on the Agency’s website or mail to the Agency at 95 Perry
Street, Suite 403, Buffalo, New York 14203. The comment period closes
on March 23, 2021. There are no limitations on written statements or
comments.

X 5. PUBLIC COMMENT: Hearing Officer gives the Public an opportunity to speak.

Hearing Officer: Those interested in making a statement or comment will be called upon by
Brian in the order that they registered for this meeting. Please begin by
stating your name and address; if you are representing a company, please
identify the company. I request that speakers keep statements and/or
comments to 5 minutes, and if possible, 3 minutes.

The Hearing Moderator introduces each participate in the order they registered for this
meeting.

Thank you very much. My name is Carl Montante, lil. As previously stated | am with Terzo Development
and | am here to present my project at 44 17th Street otherwise what | am calling Bush Lofts. This is
Terzo Development’s first project as a company and in the City of Buffalo. We are very excited about this
first venture, and excited about the possible partnership that we can have with the ECIDA now and
moving forward. Terzo’s mission is to strengthen, grow and preserve the urban neighborhoods that are
vital to the City of Buffalo. Urban redevelopment is our focus now and will continue to be our vision
moving forward. This is a hundred plus year old building and was originally built as a Livery Horse Stable
and it has changed hands a few times over the last century. Most recently was Mr. Jim Bush’s
photography studio and private residence. However, it has been sitting vacant for a couple of years now

137



and according to preservation ready sites of Buffalo, 44 17th Street is in danger of crumbling and being
demolished which | do not think anybody wants. The goal here is to provide energy and life to a vacant
structure on an already beautiful street on Buffalo’s West side neighborhood. Some of the work to be
complete is going to be a total gut renovation. There is going to be a new roof, new mechanical systems,
new plumbing. There is some serious structural work that needs to be done to the brick exterior of the
project and then obviously the build out and construction of 13 apartments as well as appliances for
those apartments. The breakdown of units will be as follows. It is going to be 1 studio, 3-1 bedrooms, 7-
2 bedrooms, and 2-3 bedrooms. So, a good unit mix giving a multitude of people, the opportunity to live
down in the City of Buffalo’s lower West side. There will also be some streetscape design and
construction, as well as the opening of three to four new on-street parking spaces to go along with the
six to seven off-street parking spaces as Grant previously mentioned. | would also like to mention that |
am working very closely with my contractor Paul Lamparelli of Lamparelli Construction to include some
MBE and WBE participation in the construction of this project. So, that's a quick little overview of the
project, but again | really appreciate you guys having me on. Thank you.

Hi, thanks for letting me speak. My name is Tara Heavern. | am a resident of 14 17th Street where | have
owned my home for over 20 years. | first off want to say that we first met as our community with Mr.
Montante in 2020 and the first thing he said when we were talking about zoning for the project, which
again had been a single-family home on our very small one-way street. He came to the zoning

board stating that this project could not happen unless he got it zoned for 13 apartments. There are
many concerns by residents. Nobody is in approval of this project in the community. We are very, very
concerned with many aspects of this project. We were told by the zoning board to go back and have
another meeting and then come back. We did that. More concerns arose than we had before. The
zoning board crazily enough did not hear one resident they only heard Mr. Montante and then they
made their decision. So, he got us 13 units and now Mr. Montante states he cannot do this project
unless he receives tax credits. It stated throughout the project that this is an area that is in need of
revitalization. My understanding of tax credits is that they are especially used for communities which
are blighted. We are not that as is evidenced by the fact that every resident on our block in the past six
months has seen a tax bill increase from 100, very few people at 100, most people at the 200 to 350%.
So that is not evidence of a community that is in that is blighted. in addition, | am concerned by the fact
that when asked at one of the community meetings if there were going to be affordable housing units,
Mr. Montante did not know unless he said he was going to look into the cost effectiveness of that as
well and apparently, he found it to be cost-effective enough to simply have a little 400 square foot
studio apartment designated for that purpose. This project is just very concerning on a ot of levels. It is
concerning because as a community we have not had our interests tended to. We have not been heard.
We are seeing the density of our block go up by double. We are seeing the project double the density of
our block. | have never heard that this project is in any way in jeopardy of demolition. | would be
interested in seeing where that is stated or noted. In addition, you know the whole idea of providing tax
credits for a property like this especially when most of the units are going to be what | would consider
quite high rent. Mr. Montante says he is gearing this towards students and | personally do not know of
any students who would be able to afford these rents. | am a teacher, | am not wealthy, but | do not
make nothing, and | could not afford these units. So 1 think it's myself and | will speak on behalf of my
neighbors as well, who I'm sure you'll be receiving letters from that the idea of granting tax credits for a
project when we are seeing our tax bills increased so much really speaks to the fact that this
neighborhood might not be you know in my opinion a neighborhood that should be considered for tax
credits especially when my neighbors’ concerns have not been validated at all and again we're seeing
our density on our block double with this project. We are a small one-way street and we have invested

138



greatly in the neighborhood in this community. And it is just very unfortunate that we see our concerns
disregarded so heavily by the city. However, grateful for this opportunity for ECIDA to hear us speak. It
just does not seem to be that this is how community development shouid happen. it seems Mr.
Montante had indicated that he wants to use this project to build his reputation as a builder and he
wants to use this project as a foothold to get the ability to continue to do this kind of work in the city.
That should not be a reason why tax credits are granted. There have been other parties that have
expressed interest early on in this project. Mr. Montante has been sitting around with this for quite
some time and keeps asking for more benefit from the community really to help make this project
happen and that should not be our responsibility as a community. There are plenty of neighborhoods
and communities that would welcome this kind of project and that needs this kind of revitalization that
would welcome a 13 unit building because their population has been lost on a block or what have you,
This is not a project that is being warmly received by the community and to expect tax credits to fund it
is something that does not sit well. Again, community development should happen with input of the
community and not just simply you know, it should not just be an opportunity for people to pursue their
business ventures without regarding community needs. Thank you very much for letting me speak.

X 6. ADJOURNMENT:

As there were no further statements and/or comments, the Hearing Officer closed the
public hearing at 9:15 a.m.

139



SIGN IN SHEET
VIRTUAL PUBLIC HEARING

Public Hearing to be held on March 1, 2021 at 9:00 a.m.
via Virtual Conference Software

Terzo Development, LLC and/or Individual(s) or Affiliate(s),
Subsidiarv(ies), or Entity(ies) formed or to be formed on its behalf

Project Location: 44 17" Street, Buffalo, New York 14213

X box to
speak/
comment

Name ~ Company and/or Address
Carl Montante, III Terzo Development
505 Ellicott Street, Suite 122
Buffalo, New York 14203

X

John Cappellino ECIDA
. 95 Perry Street, Suite 403
I Buffalo, New York 14203

Karen Fiala ECIDA
95 Perry Street, Suite 403
Buffalo, New York 14203

Carrie Hocieniec ECIDA
95 Perry Street, Suite 403
Buffalo, New York 14203

Brian Krygier - | EciDA
95 Perry Street, Suite 403
Buffalo, New York 14203

Tara Heavern 14 17" Street
Buffalo, New York 14213

140




617.20
Appendix B
Short Environmental Assessment Form

Part 1 - Project Information. The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion of Part 1. Responses
become part of the application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verifi ication,
Complete Part | based on information currently available. 1f additional research or investigation would be needed to fully
respoud to any item, please answer as thoroughly as possiblc based on current information.

Complete all items in Part 1. You may also provide any additional information which you believe will be needed by or useful
to the lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any item.

TParti- Priiject and Sponsor Information

["Name of Action or Project:

4y 7" Shw” - 3"'4\ LFky

Project Lacation (descnbe ahd attach a locaflon map):

44 1T Shed, Bvcma Ny M:uS

Bnef Descnptlon of Proposed Actlon

md..ﬁ\‘;f' %s oo -f’ Lo A
, -';___g,_gok @ g,o[ AMT, Tk,
bt MU"LM

Name of A Applicant or Sponsor: .L/LE T Tel'éiihbne'”::-h;i M"HS 39"(2

(j,,l Monbmk-

[ EMai: cm,,,,h,,k@ Fo/ 2o dunlopme 4

Address: gb{ E_”""H 6‘»{ SU' lm 3\) @QJO NY I"f205

City/PO: | " Stater [ Zip Code:

administrative rule, or regulation? i _
If Yes, attach a narrative description of the intent of the proposed action and the environmental resources that _ ;
: may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2. If no, continue to questlon 2. e :

|1 Does the proposed action only Tavolve the legisTative adoption of a plan, Tocal Taw, ordinance, 'NO | YES |

2. Does the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other governmental Agency? ‘NO | YES.
- If Yes, list agency(s) name and permit or approval: 1
3.a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? _ .. 3e4  acres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 30 "\ acres
¢. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor” ..-3'-":'! _acres

[CJUtban [JRural (non-agnculture) D Industrial D Commermal Eﬁ{cmdennal (suburban)
OdForest [CJAgriculture CJAquatic  [JOther (specify):
[Parkland

Page 1 of 4

141

s (om)



5. TIs the proposed action,

a. A permitted use under the zoning regulations?

b Consxstent with the adopted comprehenswe plan?

6 Is the proposed action consistent with the predominant character of the existing built or natural
landscape?

7. Ts the site of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Eqvironmental Area?
If Yes, identify:

8. a. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in fraffic above present levels?
b. Are public transportation service(s) available at or near the site of the proposed action?

¢. Are any pedestrian accommodations or bicycle routes available on or near site of the proposed action?

9. Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy Gode requlrements"' T
If the proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:

[710. Will the pfoboéca action connect o an éxist‘lﬁg’ bublic/ﬁﬁVaté water ZSuppiy?

If No, describe method for providing potable water:

1'1. Wil the proooéod action connect to existiﬁé wastewater utilities?

If No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment:

12 a. Does thc site contam a structure that is Ilsted on elther the State or Natlonal Register of Historic
Places?

b. Is the proposed action located in an archeological sensitive area?

13. a. Does any portion of the site of the proposed adtion, or lands adjoining the proposed action, contain
wetlands or other waterbodies regulated by a federal, state or local agency?

i b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody?
|1 If Yes, identify the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations in square feet or acres?,

14, Identify the typical habitat types that occur on, ot are likely to be found on the project site. Check all that apply:

[[J Shoreline I Forest O Agricultural/grasslands [ Early mid-successional
[:I Wetland [lerban D Suburban

15 Does the site of the proposed actxon contain any species ies of animal, or associated habitats, listed
by the State or Federal government as threatened or endangered?

16. Is the project sité located in the 100 year flood plain? .

17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or NOR-point SOUrCEs?
If Yes,
a. Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties? r_—] NO DYES

b. Will storsn Water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (runoff and storm drains)?
If Yes, bricfly déscribe: No []ves

Page 2 of 4

142




;'[ers,describe: T wot, a 5_,,;:, bl Mk, DEC e ’"H""‘L’L‘-;

| Applicant/sponsor name:.

18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that result in the impoundment of NO [ YES
water or other liquids (e.g. retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)? T
If Yes, explain purpose and size;

— | @0

"19. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjcining property been the location of an active or closed NO ' YES

solid waste management facility?
If Yes, describe: _

] 20. Has the site of the prébosed action or an adjoining property been the subject of remediation (;mgoing or
completed) for hazardous waste?

T AFFIRM THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE 18 TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF MY

KNOWLEDGE o ) ny
). Mucha T2 Duei 2/ [203}

Signature: L s

Part 2 - Impact Assessmeat. The Lead Agency is responsible for the completion of Part 2. Answer all of the following
questions in Part 2 using the information contained in Part 1 and other materials submitted by the project sponsor or
otherwise available to the reviewer. When answering the questions the reviewer should be guided by the concept “Have my
responses been reasonable considering the scale and context of the proposed action?”

No, or Moderate

small to large
impact impact
may may

occur occur

~1. "Will the proposed action create a material conflict with an adopted land use plan or zoning
regulations?

A

2. Will the proposed action result in a change in the use or intensity of use of land?

{ 3. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of the existing community?

4. Will the proposed action have an impact on the environmental characteristics that caused the
establishment of a Critical Environmental Area (CEA)?

5. Will the pro;;o”s;d‘ action result in an adverse éﬁéngé in the existing level of traffic or
affect existing infrastructure for mass transit, biking or walkway?

1 6. Will the pfoposed action cause an increase in the use of energy and it fails to incorporate

7.” Wil the proposed action impact existing:

. .Teasonably available energy conservation or renewable energy opportunities?

a. public / private water supplies?

b. public / private wastewater treatment utilities?

8. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of important historic, archacological,
architectural or aesthetic resources?

9. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change to natural resources (e.g., wetlands,

a SRR

waterbodies, groundwater, air quality, flora and fauna)?

Page 3 of 4

143



'N‘o, or | Moderate |

small to large
impact | impact
may may
occur occur

10. Will the proposed action result in an increase in the potential for erosion, flooding or drainage 7
problems? ) N N I3,»’ ‘

11. Will the proposed action create a hazard to cnvxronmental resources or human health? m

Part 3 - Determination of significance. The Lead Agency is responsible for the completion of Part 3. For cvery
question in Part 2 that was answered “moderate to large impact may occur”, or if there is a need to explain why a particular
element of the proposed action may or will not result in a significant adverse environmental impact, please complete Part 3.
Part 3 should, in sufficient detail, identify the impact, including any measures or design elements that have been included by
the project sponsor to avoid or reduce impacts. Part 3 should also explain how the lead agency determined that the impact
may or will not be significant. Each potential impact should be assessed considering its setting, probability of accurring,
duration, irreversibility, geographic scope and magnitude. Also consider the potential for short-term, long-term and

cumulative impacts.

=1 Check this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting docurenitation, |
that the proposed action may result in one or more potentially large or significant adverse impacts and an

| vironmental impact statement is required
i ./Enheck this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation,
that the proposed action will not result in any significant adverse environmental impacts.

B (oypady TDO Ma:u 4. 305 )

‘Name of{ gdd Agency ? *Date
2en M+ séfﬂ \)IQ?/ resdeaTt
Prmt or T, pc Name of Respoisg;le Officer in Lead Agency Title of Responsible Officer
Slgnature of Responsxble Officer in Lead Agency " Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer)

Page 4 of 4

144



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION
TERZO DEVELOPMENT, LLC, AND/OR INDIVIDUAL(S) OR AFFILIATE(S),

SUBSIDIARY(IES), OR ENTITY(IES) FORMED OR TO BE FORMED ON ITS
BEHALF

A regular meeting of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency was convened on
Wednesday, March 24, 2021 at 12:00 p.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY: (i) ACCEPTING THE APPLICATION OF TERZO
DEVELOPMENT, LLC, AND/OR INDIVIDUAL(S) OR AFFILIATE(S),
SUBSIDIARY(IES), OR ENTITY(IES) FORMED OR TO BE FORMED ON
ITS BEHALF (INDIVIDUALLY, AND/OR COLLECTIVELY, THE
“COMPANY”) IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN PROJECT DESCRIBED
BELOW; (ii) RATIFYING THE SCHEDULING, NOTICING, AND
CONDUCTING OF A PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION WITH THE
PROJECT; (iii) MAKING A DETERMINATION PURSUANT TO THE STATE
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT; (iv) APPOINTING THE
COMPANY, OR ITS DESIGNEE, AS ITS AGENT TO UNDERTAKE THE
PROJECT; (v) AUTHORIZING THE UNDERTAKING OF THE PROJECT TO
PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO THE COMPANY IN THE FORM
OF (A) A SALES TAX EXEMPTION BENEFIT FOR PURCHASES AND
RENTALS RELATED TO THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND
EQUIPPING OF THE PROJECT, (B) A MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX
EXEMPTION BENEFIT FOR FINANCING RELATED TO THE PROJECT,
AND (C) A PARTIAL ABATEMENT FROM REAL PROPERTY: TAXES
BENEFIT THROUGH THE PILOT AGREEMENT; AND (vi) AUTHORIZING
THE NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF A LEASE AGREEMENT,
LEASEBACK  AGREEMENT, A  PAYMENT-IN-LIEU-OF-TAX
AGREEMENT, AN AGENT AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT
AGREEMENT, AND RELATED DOCUMENTS

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 293 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York, as
amended (collectively, the “Act”), the ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority and power to own, lease and sell
property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, constructing and equipping civic,
industrial, manufacturing, commercial and other facilities as authorized by the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Company has submitted an application to the Agency (the
“Application”) requesting the Agency’s assistance with a certain project (the “Project”)

145



consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in certain property located
on 44 17% Street, City of Buffalo, Erie County, New York (the “Land™), (ii) the renovation on
the Land of an approximately 15,000 square-foot historic facility to be utilized for
13 market/affordable-rate apartments (3 of which being affordable at 80% AMI) and 6-7 spaces
of off-site parking which will be rented/leased to tenants (the “Improvements”), and (iii) the
acquisition by the Company in and around the Improvements of certain items of machinery,
equipment and other tangible personal property (the “Equipment”; and, together with the Land
and the Improvements, the “Facility”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 859-a, and pursuant to
Govemor Cuomo’s Executive Order 202.15 issued on April 9, 2020, and as amended from time
to time, authorizing the conduct of public hearings through the use of telephone conference,
video conference and/or other similar service, the Agency, on March 1, 2021, at 9:00 am., held a
public hearing with respect to the Project and the proposed Financial Assistance (as hereinafter
defined) being contemplated by the Agency (the “Public Hearing”) via live stream web broadcast
at www.ecidany.com/streaming, at which the Agency provided interested parties a reasonable
opportunity to provide oral comments and/or their views on the Project, and further instructed
interested parties on the process to submit written comments with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will (i) designate the Company as its
agent for the purpose of undertaking the Project pursuant to an Agent and Financial Assistance
Project Agreement (the “Agent Agreement”), (ii) negotiate and enter into a lease agreement (the
“Lease Agreement”) and related leaseback agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”) with the
Company, pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest in the Land, the Existing
Improvements, the Improvements, the Equipment and personal property constituting the Facility;
and (iii) provide Financial Assistance to the Company in the form of (a) an exemption benefit
from all New York State and local sales and use taxes for purchases and rentals related to the
Project with respect to the qualifying personal property included in or incorporated into the
Facility or used in the acquisition, construction, reconstruction and/or renovation, rehabilitation
or equipping of the Facility, (b) a mortgage recording tax exemption benefit for the financing
related to the Project, and (c) a partial abatement from real property taxes benefit through a seven
(7) year term PILOT Agreement for the benefit of each municipality and school district having
taxing jurisdiction over the Project, (collectively, the sales and use tax exemption benefit, the
mortgage recording tax exemption benefit, and the partial abatement from real property taxes
benefit, are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Financial Assistance™); and

WHEREAS, the City of Buffalo Zoning Board of Appeals (the “Zoning Board”) in
accordance with Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations
promulgated thereto in 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617 (collectively referred to as the “State
Environmental Quality Review Act” and/or “SEQR™), undertook uncoordinated review with
respect to the Project, established itself as Lead Agency as defined in SEQR, determined that the
Project was an Unlisted Action, and issued a negative declaration (“Negative Declaration”)
under SEQR on November 18, 2020, with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with SEQR, the Company has submitted to
the Agency a Short Environmental Assessment Form (the “EAF”) with respect to the Project;
and

146



WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 18-A of the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a
resolution describing the Project and the Financial Assistance that the Agency is contemplating
with respect to the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE ERIE
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Company has presented an application in a form acceptable to the
Agency. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company’s
application and any other correspondence submitted by the Company to the Agency, public
hearing comments, if any, Agency Policy Committee review and recommendations of the Project
and its March 4, 2021 resolution to approve the project subject to the terms and conditions as
described herein, and Agency board member review, discussion, and consideration of same, the
Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B)  Itis desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to appoint the Company as
its agent for purposes of acquiring, constructing and/or renovating and equipping the Project; and

(C)  The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the
Act; and

(D)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the
Project, thereby increasing and/or retaining employment opportunities in Erie County, New York
and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and

(E)  The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or
manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one
area of the State of New York (the “State”) to another area of the State or result in the
abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant
of the Project located within the State; and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the
Company’s application, to the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to
another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project occupants from removing
such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is reasonably necessary to
preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their respective industries, and, to
the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to another in another area of the
State, the Agency has complied with the Intermunicipal Movement procedures as required in the
Countywide Industrial Development Agency Uniform Tax Exemption Policy; and

(F)  The Agency has assessed all material information included in connection with the
Application necessary to afford a reasonable basis for the decision by the Agency to provide
Financial Assistance for the Project as described herein; and

147



(G)  The Agency has prepared a written cost-benefit analysis identifying the extent to
which the Project will create or retain permanent, private sector jobs, the estimated value of any
tax exemption to be provided, the amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be
generated by the Project, the likelihood of accomplishing the Project in a timely fashion, and the
extent to which the Project will provide additional sources of revenue for municipalities and
school districts, and any other public benefits that might occur as a result of the Project; and

(H)  The Company has provided a written statement confirming that the Project as of
the date of the Application is in substantial compliance with all provisions the Act.

4)) Based upon a comprehensive and thorough review by the Agency of the EAF and
related documents delivered by the Company to the Agency, the Zoning Board Negative
Declaration, the criteria set forth in 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Section 617.7 of the SEQR regulations, and the
additional representations made by the Company to the Agency in connection with the Project,
the Agency finds and determines that: (i) the Project constitutes an "Unlisted Action" within the
meaning of SEQR and a coordinated review is optional; (ii) the Agency has conducted an
uncoordinated review of the Project under SEQR; (iii) the Project will result in no major impacts
and, as it simply involves the adaptive reuse of an existing structure, therefore, is one which may
not cause significant damage to the environment; (iv) construction related impacts are short term
and do not have a significant magnitude or effect; (v) the Project will not have a "significant
effect on the environment" as such quoted term is defined in SEQR; and (vi) no "environmental
impact statement" as such quoted term is defined in SEQR, need be prepared for this action. The
Agency thus issues a Negative Declaration pursuant to 6 N.Y.C.R.R. § 617.7 of the SEQR
regulations, which concludes the Agency's uncoordinated review of the Project.

Q)] The Project qualifies for Agency Financial Assistance as it is compliant with the
Agency's Adaptive Reuse Project Policy and meets the Agency’s evaluative criteria for adaptive
reuse projects, said criteria established by the Agency as required under General Municipal Law
Section 859-a(5) as evidenced by the following:

(i) Distressed Census Tracts: The property is in census tract 67.01 which is
considered highly distressed under the State statute, and it is also surrounded by several
other highly distressed tracts.

(i)  Age of Structure (must be at least 20 years old and present functional
challenges to redevelopment). The building was constructed in the late 1800°s.

(iii)  Structure has been vacant or underutilized for a minimum of 3 years
(defined as a minimum of 50% of the rentable square footage of the structure being
utilized for a use for which the structure was not designed or intended). Project promotes
elimination of slum and blight: The building has been vacant since mid-2019 when the
previous owner passed away. Prior to that time, the building, which once housed a
photography studio had not been utilized for several years. The investment of over
$3,000,000 will serve to eliminate slum and blight and enhance this neighborhood which
is in a highly distressed census tract.

148



(iv)  Structure is not generating significant rental income (defined as 50% or
less than the market rate income average for that property class: Since the facility is
vacant, no income is being generated.

v) Redevelopment Supports or aligns with Regional or Local Development
Plans: The project complies with the investment and growth criteria of the Framework
for Regional Growth.

(vi)  Environmental or Safety Issues: The entire building requires updating.
Roof needs repair, exterior bricks are crumbling and falling. In addition, the facility
needs all new mechanicals to bring it up to current code standards.

(vii) LEED/Renewable Resources: N/A.

(viii) Building or site has historic designation: The building was constructed in
the last 1800°s and has a historical designation.

(ix)  Site or structure has delinquent or other local taxes: The developer does
not yet own the building, but it is his understanding the estate is keeping the taxes
current.

(x) MBE/WBE utilization: The general contractor, Lamparelli Construction,
will solicit to MBE subcontractors and strive to reach a 20% goal and solicit WBE
subcontractors and strive to reach a 10% goal. They are currently under contract on
several ongoing projects which require these same goals.

(xi)  Demonstrated support of local government. The developer has spoken
with representatives of the Mayor’s office about the project.

(xii))  Project/developer’s return on investment: The developer has supplied an
ROI which indicates a below average rate of return on the investment.

(xiil) Impediments to conventionally financing project: The savings from sales
tax, mortgage tax and real property taxes will provide a level of comfort to the lender.
The developer has stated without these benefits, it would be difficult to finance the
project.

(xiv) Transit Oriented Development: The facility is accessible on the 3, 7 and
12 bus lines.

(K)  The Project is compliant with the Countywide IDA Eligibility Policy, constitutes
a commercial facility as defined in the General Municipal Law and will promote employment
opportunities and prevent economic deterioration in the City of Buffalo. The Agency has
reviewed the opinion of the State Comptroller (OSC Op. 85-51) and hereby specifically finds
that the Project will create temporary construction jobs and one new part-time job and, by
adaptively reusing a vacant, declining and aged structure and rehabilitating it for residential use,
will be a physical and economic improvement to this sensitive area of the City of Buffalo; and

149



Section 2. The Agency hereby authorizes the undertaking of the Project and the
provision of the Financial Assistance to the Company as described herein.

Section 3. Subject to the Company executing an Agent Agreement and the delivery
to the Agency of a binder, certificate or other evidence of insurance for the Project satisfactory to
the Agency, the Agency hereby authorizes the Company to proceed with the acquisition,
construction and equipping of the Project and hereby appoints the Company as the true and
lawful agent of the Agency: (i) to acquire, construct and/or renovate and equip the Project; (ii) to
make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any contracts, orders, receipts, writings and
instructions, as the stated agent for the Agency with the authority to delegate such agency, in
whole or in part, to agents, subagents, contractors, and subcontractors of such agents and
subagents and to such other parties as the Company chooses; and (iii) in general, to do all things
which may be requisite or proper for completing the Project, all with the same powers and the
same validity that the Agency could do if acting in its own behalf, provided, however, the
appointment of the Company as agent of the Agency, if utilized, shall expire one year from the
date of this resolution (unless extended for good cause by the Chair, the Vice Chair, the
President/Chief Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer,
and/or the Assistant Treasurer).

A. Financial Assistance. With respect to the foregoing, and based upon the
representations and warranties made by the Company in its application for Financial Assistance,
the Agency hereby:

(i) authorizes and approves the Company, as its agent, to make purchases of
goods and services relating to the Project and that would otherwise be subject to New
York State and local sales and use tax in an amount estimated up to $1,100,000, and,
therefore, the value of the sales and use tax exemption benefits (“sales and use tax
exemption benefits”) authorized and approved by the Agency cannot exceed $96,250,
however, the Agency may consider any requests by the Company for increases to the
amount of sales and use tax exemption benefits authorized by the Agency upon being
provided with appropriate documentation detailing the additional purchases of property
or services; and

(i1)  authorizes and approves that the value of the mortgage recording tax
exemption benefit (“mortgage recording tax exemption benefits”) shall not exceed
$16,875; and

(iii)  authorizes and approves that the real property tax abatement benefits
(“PILOT benefits”) to be provided over the term of the PILOT Agreement are estimated
to be approximately $191,752, resulting in estimated total PILOT payments of $52,296
over the term of the PILOT Agreement.

B. Terms and Conditions of Financial Assistance. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the
New York General Municipal Law, and per the policies of the Agency, the Agency may recover
or recapture from the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, any New York State and local sales
and use tax exemption benefits, and/or mortgage recording tax exemption benefits, and/or partial

150



abatements from real property taxes benefits taken or purported to be taken by the Company, its
agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the
benefit of the Project, if it is determined that: (i) the Company, its agents, consultants,
subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, is
not entitled to the New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits; (ii) the New
York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits are in excess of the amounts
authorized to be taken by the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project; (iii) the New York State and local
sales and use tax exemption benefits are for property or services not authorized by the Agency as
part of the Project; (iv) the Company has made a material false statement on its application for
Financial Assistance; (v) the New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits
and/or mortgage recording tax exemption benefits, and/or the partial abatement from real
property taxes benefits are taken in cases where the Company, its agents, consultants,
subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project,
fails to comply with the Investment Commitment, the Employment Commitment, and/or the
Local Labor Commitment, said commitments, as described below, being a material term or
condition to use property or services in the manner approved by the Agency in connection with
the Project; and/or (vi) the New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits,
and/or mortgage recording tax exemption benefits, and/or the partial abatement from real
property taxes benefits are taken in cases where the Company fails to comply with the Equal Pay
Commitment and/or the Unpaid Real Property Tax Policy Commitment, as described below,
being a material term or condition to use property or services in the manner approved by the
Agency in connection with the Project.

As a condition precedent of receiving Financial Assistance, the Company, its agents,
consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of
the Project, must cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to recover or recapture any Financial
Assistance, and promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency that the Agency demands.

(©) Commitments. As an additional condition precedent of receiving Financial
Assistance, and as a material term or condition as approved by the Agency in connection with
the Project, the Company covenants and agrees and understands that it must, subject to potential
modification, termination and/or recapture of Financial Assistance for failure to meet and
maintain the commitments and thresholds as described below, submit, on an annual basis or as
otherwise indicated below through the termination of the PILOT Agreement, a certification, as
so required by the Agency, confirming:

1) Investment Commitment- the total investment actually made with respect to the
Project at the time of Project completion equals or exceeds $2,592,000 (which
represents the product of 85% multiplied by $3,050,000, being the total project
cost as stated in the Company’s application for Financial Assistance).

(i)  Employment Commitment — that there are at least one (1) existing part-time
equivalent (“PTE”) employees located at, or to be located at, the Facility as stated
in the Company’s application for Financial Assistance (the “Baseline FTE”); and

151



e the number of current PTE employees in the then current year at the Facility;
and

¢ that within two (2) years of Project completion, the Company has maintained
and created PTE employment at the Facility equal to one (1) PTE employee.
In an effort to confirm and verify the Company’s employment numbers, the
Agency requires that, at a minimum, the Company provide employment data
to the Agency on a quarterly basis, said information to be provided on the
Agency’s “Quarterly Employment Survey” form to be made available to the
Company by the Agency.

(iii) Local Labor Commitment - that the Company adheres to and complies with the
Agency’s Local Labor Workforce Certification Policy on a quarterly basis during
the construction period.

(iv)  Equal Pay Commitment — that the Company adheres to and complies with the
Agency’s Pay Equity Policy.

W) Unpaid Real Property Tax Policy Commitment — that the Company is compliant
with the Agency’s Unpaid Real Property Tax Policy.

Section 4. Subject to the terms of this Inducement Resolution, the Chair, the Vice
Chair, the President/Chief Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial
Officer/Treasurer and/or the Assistant Treasurer, are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency,
to negotiate, execute and deliver (A) an Agent Agreement, (B) the Lease Agreement whereby the
Company leases the Project to the Agency, (C) the related Leaseback Agreement whereby the
Agency leases the Project back to the Company, and (D) the PILOT Agreement and (E) related
documents; provided, however, that (i) the rental payments under the Leaseback Agreement to
the Company include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or related to
the Project and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for actions taken by the
Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the terms of the PILOT
Agreement are consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, or procedures for
deviation have been complied with accordingly.

Section 5. Subject to the terms of this Inducement Resolution, the Chair, the Vice
Chair, the President/Chief Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial
Officer/Treasurer and/or the Assistant Treasurer, are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency,
to negotiate, execute and deliver any mortgage, assignment of leases and rents, security
agreement, UCC-1 Financing Statements and all documents reasonably contemplated by these
resolutions or required by any lender identified by the Company (the “Lender”) up to a
maximum principal amount necessary to undertake the Project, acquire the Facility and/or
finance or refinance acquisition and Project costs or equipment and other personal property and
related transactional costs (hereinafter, with the Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, and
related documents, collectively called the “Agency Documents™); and, where appropriate, the
Secretary or the Assistant Secretary of the Agency is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the
Agency to the Agency Documents and to attest the same, all with such changes, variations,
omissions and insertions as the Chair, the Vice Chair, the President/Chief Executive Officer, the

152



Vice President, the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer and/or the Assistant Treasurer of the
Agency shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chair, the Vice Chair, the President/Chief
Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer and/or the Assistant
Treasurer of the Agency to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval; provided in all
events recourse against the Agency is limited to the Agency’s interest in the Project.

Section 6. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to negotiate, execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all
such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or,
in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the
purposes of the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the
terms, covenants and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 7. The provision by the Agency of Financial Assistance with respect to the
Project as described herein is subject to the execution and delivery of the Agency’s
Administrative Fee Agreement (the “Fee Agreement”) and payment by the Company of an
administrative fee calculated in accordance with the Fee Agreement, all within sixty (60) days of
the date of this resolution. In the event the Agency has not received the executed Fee Agreement
and the appropriate fee within such sixty (60) day period, this resolution shall become
automatically null and void and of no further effect and the Agency shall have no liability to the
Company hereunder or otherwise, unless extended in the discretion of the Chair, the Vice Chair,
the President/Chief Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer,
or the Assistant Treasurer for good cause shown.

Section 8. This resolution shall take effect immediately, and shall expire one (1) year
from the date hereof unless extended for good cause by the Chair, the Vice Chair, the
President/Chief Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer, or
the Assistant Treasurer.

Dated: March 24,2021

153



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

44 17th Street

instructions and Insurance Requirements Document

I Section I: Applicant Background Information

Please answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary. Information in this application may be subject to public review
under New York State Law.

Applicant Information - Company Receiving Benefit

Project Name Bush Lofts

Project Summary 44 17th Street is a vacant warehouse that Terzo Development is looking to redevelopment into
a multi-family apartment building in the City of Buffalo's West Side.

Applicant Name Carl Montante [l

Applicant Address 505 Ellicott Street

Applicant Address 2 Suite 122

Applicant City Buffaio

Applicant State New York

Applicant Zip 14203

Phone (716) 998-3512

Fax

E-mail cmontante@terzodevelopment.com

Website

NAICS Code

Business Organization

Type of Business Limited Liabifity Company
Year Established 2020

State in which Organization is established New York

individual Completing Application

Name Carl ). Montante B}
Title Founder and CEQ
Address 505 Ellicott Street
Address 2 Suite 122

City Buffalo

State New York

Zip 14203

Phone {716) 998-3512

https://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 154 1/21



2/25/2021
Fax

E-Mail

Company Contact (if different from individual completing application),

Name
Title
Address
Address 2
City

State

Zip

Phone
Fax

E-Mail

cmontante@terzodevelopment.com

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

New York

Company Counsel

Name of
Attorney

Firm Name
Address
Address 2
City

State

Zip

Phone

Fax

E-Mail

Benefits Requested (select all that apply)

Martin Clifford

403 Main Street
Suite 716
Buffalo

New York
14203

(716) 308-3260

mclifford @cliff-law.com

Exemption from Sales Tax

Exemption from Mortgage Tax

Exemption from Real Property Tax

Tax Exempt Financing*

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

* (typically for not-for-profits & small qualified manufacturers)

Applicant Business Descripticn

Describe in detail company background, history, products and customers. Description is critical in determining eligibility.

Terzo Development, LLC is a private, urban development company based in Buffalo, NY. Carl Montante, lil and John Ticco each own 50% of
the LLC. Terzo's mission is to help build under-invested communities and neighborhoods in the city of Buffalo, such as the city's West Side,
East Side, and First Ward, amongst other areas. Receiving benefits such as sales, mortgage, and property tax exemption would truly help
the young company's success and ability to complete more and more projects in these under-invested areas down the road.

Estimated % of sales within Erie County

100 %

Estimated % of sales outside Erie County but within New York State

Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the U.S.

hitps:/Mww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085

155

2121



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Estimated % of sales outside the U.S. 0%
(*Percentage to equal 100%)

For your operations, company and proposed project what percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials and vendor services
are purchased from firms in Erie County?

100

Describe vendors within Erie County for major purchases

Vendors have not been chosen yet, but it will be my primary objective to work with my contractor, Paul Lamparelli, to make sure we are
purchasing from vendors within Erie County.

https://www.ecidany.com/appitax-incentive-application-2019/print100085 156 321



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I Section li: Eligibility Questionnaire - Project Description & Details

Project Location

Address of Proposed Project Facility
44 17th Street, Buffalo, NY 14203

Town/City/Village of Project Site
Buffalo

School District of Project Site
Buffalo School District

Current Address (if different)
Current Town/City/Village of Project Site (if different)

SBL Number(s) for proposed Project
99.60-7-10

What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project Site
$4200
If amount of current taxes is not available, provide assessed value for each.
Land

$
Building(s)
$

if available include a copy of current tax receipt.
Are Real Property Taxes current at project location?
Yes
If no please explain
From what | know, yes. | do not own the property, but from what | have heard, the estate has kept up on the tax payments.
*The ECIDA has an unpaid tax policy and you will be required to certify all taxes and PILOTS are current.
Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title or have an option/contract to purchase the Project site?
Yes
If No, indicate name of present owner of the Project Site
Jim Bush Estate
Does Applicant or related entity have an option/contract to purchase the Project site?
Yes
Describe the present use of the proposed Project site (vacant land, existing building, etc.)

The 15,000 sf building is currently vacant and has been for over a year and a half now. | have a letter from the current owner stating how the
property has been underused for the last 5+ years. Since the 1980's the property was used as a private residence and photography studio for
Mr. Jim Bush. Unfortunately, he lost a battle with caner in July 2019 so the building has been vacant since then and was severely underutilized
for years prior to Mr. Bush's passing.

Provide narrative and purpose of the proposed project {(new build, renovations) square footage of existing and new construction
contemplated and/or equipment purchases. Identify specific uses occurring within the project. Describe any and all tenants and any/all
end users: {This information is critical in determining project eligibility)

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 157 4121



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

The existing 15,000 sf building at 44 17th Street has been vacant since July 2019 and was severely underutilized for several years prior. My
purpose of this project is to A) renovate a historic structure in the West Side of Buffalo that is in serious jeopardy when it comes to possible
demoilition, and B} create market/affordable-rate apartment housing for young professionals and students looking to live in the urban
footprint of Buffalo. This project's plans call for 13 units (3 of which being affordable at 80% AMI) and 6-7 spaces of off-site parking which will
be rented/leased to tenants of the building. We will also be adding a curb cut to the front of the building which will open 3-4 additional
parking spaces that are currently unavailable. The end user will be the tenants of the apartment buildings and the property will be owned and
held by Terzo Development. Without the ECIDA 7 Year PILOT program, this project will not be able to financially support itself and that is
because lenders need to see this benefit approved for their debt service coverage needs to be met.

Municipality or Municipalities of current operations

Buffalo

Will the Proposed Project be located within a Municipality identified above?

Yes

Will the completion of the Project result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of
the state to another area of the state OR in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located within the
state?

No

If the Proposed Project is located in a different Municipality within New York State than that Municipality in which current operations are
being undertaken, is it expected that any of the facilities in any other Municipality will be closed or be subject to reduced activity?

No
(If yes, you will need to complete the Intermunicipal Move Determination section of this application)

Is the project reasonably necessary to prevent the project occupant from moving out of New York State?
No

If yes, please explain and identify out-of-state locations investigated, type of assistance offered and provide supporting documentation
available

Have you contacted or been contacted by other Local, State and/or Federal Economic Development Agencies?
No

If yes, please indicate the Agency and nature of inquiry below

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the Agency, then provide a statement in the space provided
below indicating why the Project should be undertaken by the Agency:

The project cannot take place without Financial Assistance provided by the agency as mentioned above. Without the assistance, the project
will not be able to repay debt obligations and therefore no return will be made, causing the project not to begin in the first place.

Describe the reasons why the Agency’s financial assistance is necessary, and the effect the Project will have on the Applicant’s business or
operations. Focus on competitiveness issues, project shortfalls, etc... Your eligibility determination will be based in part on your answer
{(attach additional pages if necessary)

The reason why the Agency's financial assistance is necessary, is because without this help, the project will not take place. Renovation costs
are already high (plus the need for a new roof, new HVAC system, new plumbing etc.), so having sales tax and mortgage tax breaks will help in
a very beneficial way for the redevelopment efforts of the property. in regard to the property tax and the operating costs of the project, the
tax break is necessary for us to cover operating costs and debt obligations. Without the tax break, we will not be able to receive financing on
the project and therefore, the project will not happen.

Please confirm by checking the box, below, if there is likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the Financial Assistance
provided by the Agency

Yes

if the Applicant is unable to obtain Financial Assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on the Applicant and Erie County?
If we-are unable to obtain financial assistance, then there will be an impact on multiple parties including the applicant and Erie County.
Impacts such as lower tax revenue, employment opportunity, lending availability for banks in the area who want to invest and help build
Buffalo, etc.

Will project inciude leasing any equipment?
No

If yes, please describe equipment and lease terms.

https:/fwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 158 5/21



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Site Characteristics

Is your project located near public transportation?
Yes

If yes describe if site is accessible by either metro or bus line {provide route number for bus lines)

The site is accessible by bus. 44 17th Street is .3 miles from 3 bus stops {Summer and Richmond, Richmond and Utica, and Normal and
Connecticut). The bus lines are #3, #7 and #12.

Has a project related site plan approval application been submitted to the appropriate planning department?
No

If Yes, include the applicable municipality’s and/or planning department’s approval resolution, the related State Environmental Quality
Review Act (“SEQR") “negative declaration” resolution, if applicable, and the related Environmental Assessment Form {EAF), if

applicable.

If No, list the ECIDA as an “Involved Agency” on the related EAF that will be submitted to the appropriate municipality and/or planning
department for site plan approval.

Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the proposed location?
Yes

Describe the present zoning/land use
N-2R is the current zoning onsite.

Describe required zoning/land use, if different
If a change in zoning/land use is required, please provide details/status of any request for change of zoning/land use requirements

Is the proposed Project located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is complicating the development/use
of the property?
No

If yes, please explain

Has a Phase | Environmental Assessment been prepared, or will one be prepared with respect to the proposed Project Site?

Yes
If yes, please provide a copy.

Have any other studies, or assessments been undertaken with respect to the proposed Project Site that indicate the known or
suspected presence of contamination that would complicate the site's development?

Yes
If yes, please provide copies of the study.

if you are purchasing new machinery and equipment, does it provide demonstrable energy efficiency benefits?
No

If yes, describe the efficiencies achieved
We will be buying all high-efficiency appliances such as washers and dryers, refrigerators, and HVAC systems.
You may also attach additional information about the machinery and equipment at the end of the application.

Does or will the company or project occupant perform research and development activities on new products/services at the project
location?

No
If yes, include percentage of operating expenses attributed to R&D activities and provide details.

Select Project Type for all end users at project site (you may check more than one)

For purposes of the following, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of
New York {the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal property {as defined in Section 1101(b)(4){i} of the Tax
Law), or (i) sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project.

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 159 6/21



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities? If yes with respect to either economic activity

indicated below, you will need to complete the Retail section of this application.
Retail Sales No Services No
Please check any and all end uses as identified below.

No Acquisition of Existing Facility No Assisted Living No Back Office

No Civic Facility (not for profit) No Commercial No Equipment Purchase
No Facility for the Aging No Industrial No Life Care Facility {CCRC})
Yes Market Rate Housing No Mixed Use Yes Muiti-Tenant
No Retail No Senior Housing No Manufacturing
Yes Other

Affordable Housing

For proposed facility please include the square footage for each of the uses outlined below

If applicant is paying for FFE for tenants, inelude in cost breakdown.

Cost
Manufacturing/Processing square feet $ 0
Warehouse square feet $ 0
Research & Development square feet $ 0
Commercial square feet $ 0
Retail square feet $ 0
Office square feet $ 0
Specify Other 15,000 square feet s 2,000,000

If you are undertaking new construction or renovations, are you seeking LEED certification from the US Green Building Council?

No

If you answered yes to question above, what level of LEED certification do you anticipate receiving? (Check applicable box)

<BLANK>

Provide estimate of additional construction cost as a result of < BLANK >

LEED certification you are seeking

Will project result in significant utility infrastructure cost or uses Yes

What is the estimated project timetable (provide dates)

Start date : acquisition of equipment or construction of facilities
5/1/2021

End date : Estimated completion date of project
4/1/2022

Project occupancy : estimated starting date of occupancy

4/2/2022

Project Information

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/ 100085 160

% of Total Cost

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
100%

7/21



2/2512021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Estimated costs in connection with Project
1.) Land and/or Building Acquisition
$ 500,000 15,000 square feet 1 acres

2.) New Building Construction
X0] 0 square feet

3.) New Building addition(s})
S0 0 square feet

4.) Reconstruction/Renovation
$ 2,050,000 15,000 square feet

5.) Manufacturing Equipment

$0

6.) Infrastructure Work
$0

7.) Non-Manufacturing Equipment: (furniture, fixtures, etc.)

S0

8.) Soft Costs: (Legal, architect, engineering, etc.)
$ 500,000

9.) Other Cost
SO

Explain Other
Costs

Total Cost $ 3,050,000

Construction Cost Breakdown:

Total Cost of Construction $ 2,050,000 (sum of 2, 3, 4 and 6 in Project Information, above)
Cost of materials $ 1,100,000.00
% sourced in Erie County 100%

Sales and Use Tax:

Gross amount of costs for goods and services that are subject to $ 1,100,000
State and local sales and use tax- said amount to benefit from the
Agency's sales and use tax exemption benefit

Estimated State and local Sales and Use Tax Benefit (product of $ 96,250
8.75% multiplied by the figure, above):
** Note that the estimate provided above will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance. The Applicant
acknowledges that the transaction documents may inciude a covenant by the Applicant to undertake the total amount of investment as
proposed within this Application, and that the estimate, above, represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency
may authorize with respect to this Application. The Agency may utilize the estimate, above, as well as the proposed total Project Costs as
contained within this Application, to determine the Financial Assistance that will be offered.

Project refinancing estimated amount, if applicable (for SO0
refinancing of existing debt only)

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date No
of this Application?

If Yes, describe particulars:

htips.//www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 161 8/21



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Sources of Funds for Project Costs:

Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits): $ 800,000
Bank Financing: $ 2,250,000
Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable): S0
Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable): S0

Public Sources (Include sum total of all state and federal grants S0
and tax credits):

Identify each state and federal grant/credit: (ie Historic Tax 0
Credit, New Market Tax Credit, Brownfield, Cleanup Program,
ESD, other public sources)

Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs: $3,050,000

Have you secured financing for the project? No

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit:
Amount of mortgage, if any that would be subject to mortgage recording tax:

Mortgage Amount {include sum total of 2,250,000
construction/permanent/bridge financing).

Lender Name, if Known

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit (product of $16,875
mortgage amount as indicated above multiplied by 3/4 of 1%):

Real Property Tax Benefit:

Identify and describe if the Project will utilize a real property N/A
tax exemption benefit other than the Agency’s PILOT benefit
(485-a, 485-b, other):

IDA PILOT Benefit: Agency staff will indicate the estimated amount of PILOT Benefit based on estimated Project Costs as contained herein and
anticipated tax rates and assessed valuation, including the annual PILOT Benefit abatement amount for each year of the PILOT benefit and the
sum total of PILOT Benefit abatement amount for the term of the PILOT as depicted in the PILOT worksheet in the additional document
section.

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources: Agency staff will calculate the percentage of Project Costs financed from
Public Sector sources based upon the Sources of Funds for Project Costs as depicted above. The percentage of Project Costs financed from
public sector sources will be depicted in the PILOT worksheet in the additional document section.

ECIDA encourages applicants to utilize MBE/WBE contractors for their projects. Describe your company’s internal practices that
promote MBE/WBE hiring and utilization

While we are a brand new company, we are still working through internal policies. However, | have and will continue to make it known
to contractors that we use how we want to see MBE and WBE subcontractors given the opportunity to work on Terzo Projects.

Is project necessary to expand project employment?

Yes

Is project necessary to retain existing employment?

Yes

Will project include leasing any equipment?
No
if yes, please describe equipment and lease terms.

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 162 9/21



2/25/2021

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Employment Plan (Specific to the proposed project location)

You must include a copy of the most recent NYS-45 Quarterly Combined Withholding, Wage Reporting and Unemployment Insurance
Return. The Labor Market Area consists of the following six counties: Erie, Niagara, Chautauqua, Cattaraugus, Wyoming and Genessee.

By statute, Agency staff must project the number of FTE jobs that would be retained and created if the request for Financial Assistance is

granted. Agency staff will project such jobs over the TWO Year time period following Project completion. Agency staff converts PT jobs into

FTE jobs by dividing the number of PT jobs by two (2).

Current # of jobs at
proposed project
location or to be

relocated at project

location
Full time
Part time 0
Total 0

If financial assistance is
granted - project the

number of FT and PT

jobs to be retained

o

Salary and Fringe Benefits for Jobs to be Retained and Created

Category of Jobs to be  # of Employees

Retained and/or Retained and/or
Created Created
Management 0

Professional 0
Administrative 0

Production 0

Independent 1

Contractor

Other 0

Average
Salary for
Full Time

$0
$0
$0
50
$0

S0

Average Fringe
Benefits for Full
Time

$0
50
$0
50
$0

$0

If financial assistance is
granted - project the
number of FT and PT

jobs to be created upon
24 months {2 years)
after Project completion

0
1
1
Average Salary for
Part Time (if
applicable)
$0
S0
$0
S0
$ 15,000
S0

Estimate number of
residents of the Labor
Market Area in which
the project is located

that will fill the FT and
PT jobs to be created

upon 24 months (2

years) after project

completion **
0

1

Average Fringe Benefits
for Part Time (if
applicable)

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

S0

** Note that the Agency may utilize the foregoing employment projections, among other items, to determine the financial assistance

that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant

by the Applicant to retain the number of jobs and create the number of jobs with respect to the Project as set forth in this Application.

Employment at other locations in Erie County: (provide address and number of employees at each location);
Address
Full time 0 0 0
Part time 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0

Payroll information

Annual Payroll at Proposed Project Site upon completion

15,000

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained (Full Time)

0

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained (Part Time)

0

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be created (Full Time)

hitps:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 163

10721



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
0

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be created (Part Time)
15,000

Estimated salary range of jobs to be created
From (Full Time) O To (Full Time} O
From (Part Time) 15,000 To (Part Time) 15,000

https://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 164 11721



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[ section lil; Environmental Questionnaire

INSTRUCTIONS: Please complete the following guestionnaire as completely as possible. If you need additional space to fully answer any
question, please attach additional page(s).

General Background Information

Address of Premises
44 17th Street Buffalo, NY 14203

Name and Address of Owner of Premises
Carl Montante Ilt 505 Ellicott Street, Suite 122 Buffalo, NY 14203

Describe the general features of the Premises (include terrain, location of wetlands, coastlines, rivers, streams, lakes, etc.}

The premises at 44 17th Street is a vacant warehouse that sits on .304 acres within a residential street/neighborhood in the West Side
of Buffaio.

Describe the Premises (including the age and date of construction of any improvements) and each of the operations or processes
carried out on or intended to be carried on at the Premises

From what | know, the property was built in the 1880's as a Livery Horse Stable and has changed owners a few times over the last 100+
years. Currently, it is vacant and waiting for redevelopment.

Describe all known former uses of the Premises

Livery Horse Stable ice Cream Truck Warehouse Light Framing Shop (Woodworking, mattresses, beds, etc.) Photography Studio/Private
Residence

Does any person, firm or corporation other than the owner occupy the Premises or any part of it?
No

If yes, please identify them and describe their use of the property

Have there been any spills, releases or unpermitted discharges of petroleum, hazardous substances, chemicals or hazardous wastes
at or near the Premises?

Yes

If yes, describe and attach any incident reports and the results of any investigations

There was a gas tank on the property, under the parking pad, that has been removed and marked as clean by the NYSDEC.

Has the Premises or any part of it ever been the subject of any enforcement action by any federal, state or local government entity,
or does the preparer of this questionnaire have knowledge of: a) any current federal, state or local enforcement actions; b) any areas
of non-compliance with any federal, state or local laws, ordinances, rules or regulations associated with operations over the past 12
months?

No
If yes, please state the results of the enforcement action {consent order, penalties, no action, etc.} and describe the circumstances

Has there been any filing of a notice of citizen suit, or a civil complaint or other administrative or criminal procedure involving the
Premises?

No

If yes, describe in full detail

Solid And Hazardous Wastes And Hazardous Substances

Does any activity conducted or contemplated to be conducted at the premises generate, treat or dispose of any petroieum,

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 165 12/21



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
petroleum-related products, solid and hazardous wastes or hazardous substances?
No

If yes, provide the Premises' applicable EPA (or State) identification number

Have any federal, state or local permits been issued to the Premises for the use, generation and/or storage of solid and hazardous
wastes?

No

If yes, please provide copies of the permits.

Identify the transporter of any hazardous and/or solid wastes to or from the Premises

Identify the solid and hazardous waste disposal or treatment facilities which have received wastes from the Premises for the past two
(2) years

Does or is it contemplated that there will occur at the Premises any accumulation or storage of any hazardous wastes on-site for
disposal for longer than 90 days?

No

If yes, please identify the substance, the quantity and describe how it is stored

Discharge Into Waterbodies

Briefly describe any current or contemplated industrial process discharges {including the approximate volume, source, type and
number of discharge points). Please provide copies of all permits for such discharges

N/A

Identify all sources of discharges of water, including discharges of waste water, process water, contact or noncontact cooling water,
and stormwater. Attach all permits relating to the same. Also identify any septic tanks on site

N/A
Is any waste discharged into or near surface water or groundwaters?
No

If yes, please describe in detail the discharge including not only the receiving water’s classification, but a description of the type and
quantity of the waste

Air Pollution

Are there or is it contemplated that there will be any air emission sources that emit contaminants from the Premises?
No

If yes, describe each such source, including whether it is a stationary combustion installation, process source, exhaust or ventilation
system, incinerator or other source

Are any of the air emission sources permitted?
No

If yes, attach a copy of each permit.

Storage Tanks

List and describe all above and under ground storage tanks at the Premises used to store petroleum or gasoline products, or other

chemicals or wastes, including the contents and capacity of each tank. Please also provide copies of any registrations/permits for the
tanks

N/A

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 166 13/21



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Have there been any leaks, spills, releases or other discharges (including loss of inventory) associated with any of these tanks?
No

If yes, please provide all details regarding the event, including the response taken, ail analytical results or reports developed through
investigation {whether internal or external), and the agencies which were involved

Polychlorinated Biphenyls ("PCB" or "PCBs") And Asbestos

Provide any records in your possession or known to you to exist concerning any on-site PCBs or PCB equipment, whether used or
stored, and whether produced as a byproduct of the manufacturing process or otherwise.

Have there been any PCB spills, discharges or other accidents at the Premises?
No

If yes, relate all the circumstances

Do the Premises have any asbestos containing materials?
No

If yes, please identify the materials

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 167 14/21



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I Section IV: Facility Type - Single or Multi Tenant

Is this a Single Use Facility or a Multi-Tenant Facility?
Multi-Tenant Facility

Multi-Tenant Facility (to be filled out by developer)

Please explain what market conditions support the construction of this multi-tenant facility

Buffalo has seen a spike in housing needs in the past year and that demand is continuing to grow. Redeveloping 13 units in the West
Side of Buffalo will be a sought after dwelling once complete.

Have any tenant leases been entered into for this project?
No

If yes, please list below and provide square footage {and percent of total square footage) to be leased to tenant and NAICS Code for tenant
and nature of business

# of sq ft and % of total to  SIC or NAICS-also briefly describe type of
be occupied at new projet business, products services, % of sales in Erie
site Co.

Current Address (city, state,

Tenant Name i
zip)

*fill out table for each tenant and known future tenants

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 168

15/21



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I section VI: Retail Determination

To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency requires additional information if the proposed
Project is one where customers personally visit the Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or to purchase services.
Please answer the following:

Will any portion of the project (including that portion of the costs to be financed from equity or other sources) consist of facilities or
property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?
No

If yes, complete the Retail Questionnaire Supplement below.

hitps:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/ 100085 169 16/21



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

l Section Vil: Adaptive Reuse Projects

Adaptive Reuse is the process of adapting old structures or sites for new purposes.

Are you applying for tax incentives under the Adaptive Reuse Program?

Yes

What is the age of the structure (in years)? 140

Has the structure been vacant or underutilized for a minimum of 3 years? (Underutilized is defined as a minimum of 50% of the
rentable square footage of the structure being utilized for a use for which the structure was not designed or intended})

Yes

If vacant, number of years vacant.
2

If underutilized, number of years underutilized.
5
Describe the use of the building during the time it has been underutilized:

For the last 40+ years, Mr. Jim Bush owned and worked out of this building. Unfortunately, Mr. Bush passed away from cancer in July

2019 and for the previous 5 years, the building, according to his brother, was underutilized. | have received a letter from Mr. Bush's
brother explaining his thoughts and reasoning.

Is the structure currently generating insignificant income? {Insignificant income is defined as income that is 50% or less than the
market rate income average for that property class)

No

If yes, please provide dollar amount of income being generated, if any

If apartments are planned in the facility, please indicate the following;
Number of Units Sq. Ft. Range Low to High Rent Range Low to High

1Bedroom 3 635 - 1,007 $900 - $1,400
2 Bedroom 7 812 -1,240 $1,137- 51,740
3 Bedroom 2 1,350- 1,625 $1,890- 52,275
Other 1 483 -483 $532 - $600

Does the site have historical significance?
No

if yes, please indicate historical designation

Are you applying for either State/Federal Historical Tax Credit Programs?
No

If yes, provide estimated value of tax credits

Briefly summarize the financial obstacles to development that this project faces without ECIDA or other public assistance. Please
provide the ECIDA with documentation to support the financial obstacles to development (you will be asked to provide cash flow

projections documenting costs, expenses and revenues with and without IDA and other tax credits included indicating below average
return on investment rates compared to regional industry averages)

Without cost savings from the property taxes, the project will return a negative cash flow after debt service. Due to that reason, the
banks and/or any other lending provider will not issue a loan.

Briefly summarize the demonstrated support that you intend to receive from local government entities. Please provide ECIDA with

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 170 17/21



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
documentation of this support in the form of signed letters from these entities

I have spoken with Lisa Hicks at the City of Buffalo and while nothing has been formally documented, she sounds excited about the
project and potential investment that will happen in the City of Buffalo's West Side.

Indicate other factors that you would like the Agency to consider such as: structure or site presents significant public safety hazard
and or environmental remediation costs, structure presents significant costs associated with building code compliance

The structure, as it currently sits, needs work. There are leaks in the roof, there are exterior bricks that are crumbling and falling, and
the building is vacant. On top of the roof, we need a total gut renovation of flooring, interior walls, HVAC and Plumbing systems, etc.

This is a perfect opportunity to bring an old building back to life, provide exceptional housing in the city's West End, and help a new,

young developer in the city of Buffalo that wants to invest time, money and effort back into this amazing city.

Indicate census tract of project location
State Code: 36 County Code: 029 Tract Code: 0067.01

Indicate how project will eliminate slum and blight

The building is currently vacant and unused. Redeveloping it into an apartment/multi-tenant building will help eliminate slum and
blight.

If project will be constructed to LEED standards indicate renewable resources utilized

N/A

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 171 18121



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I section Viil: Inter-Municipal Move Determination

The Agency is required by state law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting from Agency Financial Assistance
results in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of the
state or in the abandonment of ane or more piants or facilities of the project occupant located within the state, Agency financial Assistance
is required to prevent the project occupant from relocating out of the state, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the project occupant's
competitive position in its respective industry.

Current Address
44 17th Street

City/Town
Buffalo

State
New York

Zip Code
14203

Will the project result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the Project occupant from one area of the state to
another area of the state?

No

Will the project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Project occupant located within the state?
No

If Yes to either gquestion, explain how, notwithstanding the aforementioned closing or activity reduction, the Agency's Financial
Assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of the State, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project
occupant's competitive position in its respective industry:

Does this project involve relocation or consolidation of a project occupant from another municipality?
Within New York State No
Within Erie County No

If Yes to either guestion, please, explain

Will the project result in a relocation of an existing business operation from the City of Buffalo?
No

If yes, please explain the factors which require the project occupant to relocate out of the City of Buffalo (For example, present site is
not large enough, or owner will not renew leases etc.)

What are some of the key requirements the project occupant is looking for in a new site? (For example, minimum sq. ft., 12 foot
ceilings, truck loading docs etc.)

Onsite parking (6-7 spaces), mix of unit sizes, in-unit laundry, fabulous natural light, close proximity to various shops, bars and
restaurants as well as public transportation, bike storage onsite.

If the project occupant is currently located in Erie County and will be moving to a different municipality within Erie County, has the
project occupant attempted to find a suitable location within the municipality in which it is currently located?

<BLANK>

What factors have lead the project occupant to consider remaining or locating in Erie County?
If the current facility is to be abandoned, what is going to happen to the current facility that project occupant is located in?

Please provide a list of properties considered, and the reason they were not adequate. (Some examples include: site not large

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 172 19/21



2/25/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

enough, layout was not appropriate, did not have adequate utility service, etc.) Please include full address for locations.

https:/imww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 173 20/21



2/252021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency {ECIDA)

| Ssection IX: Senior Housing

IDA tax incentives may be granted to projects under the Agency’s Senior Citizen Rental Housing policy when the project consists of a multi-
family housing structure where at least 90% of the units are {or are intended to be) rented to and occupied by a person who is 60 years of
age or older.

Are you applying for tax incentives under the Senior Rental Housing policy?
No

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100085 174 21/21



Medbio, LLC

Assignment and Assumption of Polymer Conversions Project

ELIGIBILITY

e NAICS Section - 326199

COMPANY INCENTIVES

®  Assumption of approximately
$40,000 in property tax savings

EMPLOYMENT

® There are 120 FT people working
at the facility and MedBio plans to
keep all of the employees.

Project Title: Assignment and Assumption of Polymer Conversions Project

Project Address: 5732 Big Tree Road
Orchard Park, New York 14127
(Orchard Park Central School District)

Agency Request

Approval of Assignment and Assumption of Polymer Conversions Lease and PILOT to a
new entity: Medbio, LLC

Company Description/History

In 2008, the ECIDA closed on a $7,200,000 project for Polymer Conversions, Inc. and
Birtch Run, Inc. which company was owned by Jack Bertsch. The project consisted of the
construction of a 27,000 sq. ft. addition to the company’s then current manufacturing facility
located on Big Tree Road in the Town of Orchard Park. Polymer Conversions is a premier
custom plastic injection molder specializing in highly technical, high tolerance medical com-
ponents and gearing devices.

In 2020, the Bertsch family sold Polymer Conversions and its parent company, Birch Run,
Inc. to Medbio Intermediate Holding LLC (“MedBio”) Med Bio is an outsourced manufac-
turer specializing in clean room injection molding and assembly for medical, life science,
and biotechnology devices. The acquisition of Polymer created a premier medical device
manufacturing platform of scale and capable of supporting growth for Polymer’s customers.

Medbio is a portfolio company of Graham Partners, a leading private investment firm target-
ing technology driven advanced manufacturing companies.

Med Bio is requesting the assignment and assumption of the Agency Lease and PILOT
which would preserve the remaining PILOT benefit — through 2023 - which would pro-
vide approximately $40,000 in estimated benefits to the company during the remaining
years of the PILOT. The PILOT term extends through 2023 for the Town and County and
the ‘22/°23 school year. NOTE: This was under our previous 15 year PILOT. Inreturn
for the Lease and PILOT assumption, Med Bio would agree to abide by the following
recapture terms:

Draft Recapture Material Terms

Condition Term Recapture Provision
Employment Coincides with recapture period. Maintain 100% of current employees: 120
Unpaid Taxes Coincides with recapture period. Adherence to policy
Pay Equity Coincides with recapture period. Adherence to policy
Recapture Period Coincides with Lease/PILOT Term | Real Property Taxes

Recapture applies to:
Real Property Tax

Pursuant to New York General Municipal Law, the agency shall modify, recover, recapture or terminate any financial assistance tak-
en by the company that are in violation of the GML.

Company must through the end of recapture term i) maintain 100% of current employees; ii) adhere to unpaid tax and pay equity

policies.

3/17/2021 2:43 PM
175




ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
RESOLUTION

(Assignment of Jack E. Bertsch/Polymer Conversions, Inc. Project to Birch Run Inc.)

A regular meeting of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency was convened on
Wednesday, March 24, 2021 at 12:00 p.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY APPROVING THE ASSIGNMENT OF AND ASSUMPTION BY
JACK E. BERTSCH TO BIRCH RUN INC., OF THE EXISTING LEASE,
LEASEBACK, AND PILOT AGREEMENT TOGETHER WITH ALL
ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS RELATING TO THE FACILITY LOCATED
AT 5732 BIG TREE ROAD, ORCHARD PARK, NEW YORK

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 293 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York, as
amended (collectively, the “Act”), the ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority and power to own, lease and sell
property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, constructing and equipping civic,
industrial, manufacturing, commercial and other facilities as authorized by the Act; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish the purposes of the Act, and to provide certain tax
exemptions and abatements to Jack E. Bertsch (the “Company”) the Agency, on April 1, 2008,
entered into a transaction relating to the Company’s acquisition and construction of a certain
27,000 +/- SF manufacturing facility (the “Improvements”) and related acquisition and
installation of machinery and equipment therein (the “Equipment” and together with the
Improvements, the “Project™) located at 5732 Big Tree Road, Orchard Park, New York (the
“Land”, and together with the Improvements and the Equipment, the “Facility”) and the sub-
sublease of the Facility to Polymer Conversions, Inc. (the “Subtenant™), and

WHEREAS, with respect to the foregoing, the Agency and the Company have entered a
certain Company Lease, Agency Lease Agreement, PILOT Agreement and an Environmental
Compliance and Indemnification Agreement, and related documents, all dated as of April 1,
2008 (the “Agency Documents™); and

WHEREAS, the Company has submitted an application to the Agency (the
“Application”) whereby the Company informed the Agency that effective as of August 1, 2020,
the Company has sold the Facility to Birch Run Inc., (the “Assignee™), that the Subtenant
continues to occupy the Facility as Assignee’s tenant; and that, pursuant to Section 15.1 of that
certain Agency Lease Agreement, the Company has requested that the Agency approve of and

176



consent to the conveyance of the Facility and assignment of the Agency Documents to the
Assignee; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to approve of and consent to : (i) the conveyance of the
Facility by the Company to the Assignee; (ii) the undertaking of the Assignment; and (iii) the
execution and delivery of documents and agreements to effectuate the foregoing.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE ERIE
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Agency hereby finds that the assignment and assumption of the
Project as herein described constitutes a Type II Action, as defined within the State
Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”) and regulations adopted pursuant thereto at 6
N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617.5(c)(32) whereby the assignment and assumption constitutes a transfer of
leasehold rights with no material change in permitted conditions or activities and as such, no
further action under SEQR 1is required.

Section 2. The Agency hereby consents to the conveyance of the Facility to the
Assignee, and the assignment and assumption of the Agency Documents from Company to the
Assignee, subject to (i) the Company, Assignee, and Agency entering into an appropriate
Assignment and Assumption Agreement, and related documents, to be dated and effective as of
no sooner than August 1, 2020, and (ii) the delivery to the Agency of a binder, certificate or
other evidence of insurance for the Project satisfactory to the Agency. With respect to the
foregoing, the Agency hereby authorizes and approves that the real property tax abatement
benefits to be provided over the term of the PILOT Agreement be assigned to, and assumed by,
the Assignee.

Section 3. The consent contained herein is further conditioned upon adherence by the
Assignee to the policies of the Agency whereby the Agency may recover or recapture from the
Assignee real property tax abatement benefits, or amend or terminate the partial abatement from
real property taxes benefits if it is determined that: (i) the Company and/or Assignee has made a
material false statement on its Application and/or (ii) the partial abatement from real property
taxes benefits are taken in cases where the Assignee fails to comply, or cause to be complied
with, with the Employment Commitment and/or the Equal Pay Commitment and/or the Unpaid
Real Property Tax Policy Commitment, as described below, being a material term or condition to
use property or services in the manner approved by the Agency in connection with the Project.
As a condition precedent of receiving the partial real property tax abatement benefits, the
Assignee must cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to recover or recapture any real property
tax abatement benefits, and promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency that the Agency
demands.

Section 4. As an additional condition precedent of receiving the real property tax
abatement benefits, and as a material term or condition as approved by the Agency in connection
with the assignment of the Project by the Company to the Assignee, the Assignee covenants and
agrees and understands that it must, subject to potential modification, termination and/or
recapture of real property tax abatement benefits for failure to meet and maintain the
commitments and thresholds as described below, submit, on an annual basis or as otherwise

177



indicated below through the termination of the PILOT Agreement, a certification, as so required
by the Agency, confirming:

(1) Employment Commitment — that there are at least 120 existing full-time
equivalent (“FTE”) employees located at the Facility as stated in the Application
(the “Baseline FTE”); and

¢ the number of current FTE employees in the then current year at the Facility;
and

e that, the Assignee has maintained, or caused to be maintained, FTE
employment at the Facility equal to the Baseline FTE. In an effort to confirm
and verify the Assignee’s employment numbers, the Agency requires that, at a
minimum, the Assignee provide, or cause to be provided, employment data to
the Agency on a quarterly basis, said information to be provided on the
Agency’s “Quarterly Employment Survey” form to be made available to the
Assignee by the Agency.

(ii))  Equal Pay Commitment — that the Assignee adheres to and complies with the
Agency’s Pay Equity Policy.

(iii)  Unpaid Real Property Tax Policy Commitment — that the Assignee is compliant
with the Agency’s Unpaid Real Property Tax Policy.

Section 3. = Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Chair, the President/Chief
Executive Officer, the Chief Operating Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial
Officer/Treasurer, and/or the Assistant Treasurer, are hereby authorized, on behalf of the
Agency, to negotiate, execute and deliver any documents necessary and incidental to the
assignment and assumption of the Project.

Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to negotiate, execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all
such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or,
in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the
purposes of the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the
terms, covenants and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 5. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

Dated: March 24, 2021

178



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

(3]

ECL

Tl SO COMCRSTICN B8 B (DT

Polymer Conversions, Inc.

l Section I: Applicant Background Information

Please answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary. Information in this application may be subject to public review
under New York State Law.

Applicant Information - Company Receiving Benefit

Project Name Polymer Conversions, Inc. Assignment of 2008 PILOT

Project Summary Request for ECIDA consent to the Assignment of the 2008 PILOT program from Jack E.
Bertsch to Birch Run Inc.

Applicant Name Birch Run Inc.

Applicant Address 5732 Big Tree Road

Applicant Address 2

Applicant City Orchard Park

Applicant State New York

Applicant Zip 14127

Phone (716) 662-8550

Fax

E-mail

Website https://polymerconversions.com/

NAICS Code 326199

Business Organization

Type of Business Corporation
Year Established 1978

State in which Organization is established New York

Individual Completing Application

Name Benjamin J. Harp
Title President

Address 5732 Big Tree Road
Address 2

City Orchard Park
State New York

2ip 14127

Phone (716) 622-8550

https://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087

179 1/20



37172021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Fax
E-Mail bharp@ polymerconversions.com

Company Contact (if different from individual completing application)

Name

Title

Address

Address 2

City

State New York
Zip

Phone

Fax

E-Mail

Company Counsel

Name of Christopher H. Brown, Jr.
Attorney

Firm Name Roach, Lennon & Brown, PLLC
Address 535 Washington Street Suite 1000
Address 2

City Buffalo

State New York

Zip 14203

Phone (716) 235-3025

Fax (716) 235-3026

E-Mail chbrown@rlbattorneys.com

Benefits Requested (select all that apply)

Exemption from Sales Tax No
Exemption from Mortgage Tax No
Exemption from Real Property Tax Yes
Tax Exempt Financing* No

* (typically for not-for-profits & small qualified manufacturers)

Applicant Business Description

Describe in detail company background, history, products and customers. Description is critical in determining eligibility.

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2018/print/100087 180 2/20



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Polymer Conversions, Inc. (PCl), the wholly-owned subsidiary of Applicant, is a premier precision custom plastics injection molder located
in Orchard Park, New York. Since 1979, PCl has specialized in highly technical, tight-tolerance medical devices, medical components,
biometric devices, gearing parts, and turnkey product solutions. PCI manufactures, among other products, small-part precision Class | & Il
medical device components/assemblies and other complex critical-to-life injection molded products. It excels on projects that are highly
technical and require engineering horsepower, robust tooling, stringent validations, and ultra-consistent quality. PCl's molded products are
used in the manufacture of critical-to-life medical device, life science, pharmaceutical, biomedical, veterinary, and dental industries. PCl's
capabilities include offering customers full-service plastic part manufacturing, including Program/Project Management, Product Design.
Review, and Tooling Design Review. PCl also offers secondary operations include pad printing, testing, joining, labeling, specialty packaging
and other value-added services, including sophisticated robotic assembly. In addition to plastic injection, PCI offers liquid silicon rubber
{LSR) molding, located at a different facility, a highly complementary technology in the medical device space. End markets for PCI products
include respiratory care, pharmaceutical filtration, drug delivery, pharmaceutical and personal care, ENT devices, blood diagnostics and
enteral feeding. PCl was founded, owned and operated by Jack and Joan Bertsch since 1979. In August 2020, and as part of Jack and Joan
Bertsch's anticipated plan for the transition of PCI, upon retirement, PCt was sold to Medbio Intermediate Holding LLC ("Medbio").
Medbio is an outsourced manufacture specializing in clean room injection molding and assembly for medical, life science, and
biotechnology devices. The acquisition of PCl creates a premier medical device manufacturing platform of scale and capable of supporting
growth for PCl's customers. Medbio is a portfolio company of Graham Partners, a leading private investment firm targeting technology-
driven advanced manufacturing companies. PCl's main manufacturing facility at 5732 Big Tree Road (the "Facility”) is fully equipped with
Computer Integrated Manufacturing (CIM)-monitored systems that apply Six Sigma principles to its 32 injection molding presses ranging
from 55 to 390 tons of clamping force, and 2 liquid silicon rubber molding machines. The Facility includes a clean room molding area, and
secondary operations with decorating, assembly, custom automation, packaging capabilities and a full-service tool room with mold making
capabilities. PCl was initially ISO registered in 1997 and currently holds ISO 13485:2016 and 1SO 9001:2015. PCI has occupied the Facility
since 1990, when the first phase of construction was completed (approximately 37,000 square feet). In 2012, PCl completed a 27,300
square foot addition on the north side of the building (the "2012 Expansion”) and the current footprint comprises approximately 65,000
square feet and sits on nearly 15 acres of land. The Agency sponsored the 2012 Expansion with an Agreement for Payment in Lieu of Real
Estate Taxes, dated April 1, 2008, Company Lease, dated April 1, 2008, and Agency Lease Agreement, dated April 1, 2008 {the "2008 IDA").

Estimated % of sales within Erie County 0%
Estimated % of sales outside Erie County but within New York State 90 %
Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the U.S. 10 %
Estimated % of sales outside the U.S. 0%

(*Percentage to equal 100%)

For your operations, company and proposed project what percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials and vendor services
are purchased from firms in Erie County?

30

Describe vendors within Erie County for major purchases

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 181

3120



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I Section li: Eligibility Questionnaire - Project Description & Details

Project Location
Address of Proposed Project Facility
5732 Big Tree Road

Town/City/Village of Project Site
Orchard Park

School District of Project Site
Orchard Park

Current Address (if different)
Current Town/City/Village of Project Site (if different)

SBL Number(s) for proposed Project
161.18-2-15 and 161.18-2-15./A

What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project Site
Subject to 2008 IDA PILOT

If amount of current taxes is not available, provide assessed value for each.
Land
$94,020.00
Building(s)
$ 2,061,856.00

If available include a copy of current tax receipt.

Are Real Property Taxes current at project location?

Yes

If no please explain

*The ECIDA has an unpaid tax policy and you will be required to certify all taxes and PILOTS are current.

Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title or have an option/contract to purchase the Project site?

Yes

If No, indicate name of present owner of the Project Site

Does Applicant or related entity have an option/contract to purchase the Project site?
No

Describe the present use of the proposed Project site (vacant land, existing building, etc.)

Manufacturing facility for Polymer Conversions, Inc.

Provide narrative and purpose of the proposed project {new build, renovations) square footage of existing and new construction
contemplated and/or equipment purchases. ldentify specific uses occurring within the project. Describe any and all tenants and any/all

end users: (This information is critical in determining project eligibility)

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 182

4/20



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Applicant is seeking consent to the assignment of the 2008 IDA, nunc pro tunc, effective August 31, 2020. The 2008 IDA project encompassed
the 2012 Expansion, which included a 27,300 square foot addition onto the Facility, for purposes of expanding clean room manufacturing
operations for PCl. Applicant understands that Agency consent is required to assign the Company Lease, dated April 1, 2008 (the "Company
Lease"), the Agency Lease Agreement, dated April 1, 2008 (the "Agency Lease"}, the Agreement For Payment in Lieu of Real State Taxes,
dated April 1, 2008 (the "PILOT Agreement"), and the Sublease Agreement between Jack E. Bertsch and PCI, dated April 1, 2008 (the "IDA
Sublease"). The Bertsch family sold PC, and its parent company, Birch Run Inc. ("BRI"), as of August 31, 2020 to Medbio Intermediate Holding
LLC ("Medbio"). Jack E. Bertsch sold the real estate at 5732 Big Tree Road to Birch Run Inc., which was ultimately acquired by Medbio. The
PILOT Agreement, Company Lease, and Agency Lease are between the Agency and Jack E. Bertsch. Medbio is an outsourced manufacture
specializing in clean room injection molding and assembly for medical, life science, and biotechnology devices. The acquisition of Polymer
creates a premier medical device manufacturing platform of scale and capable of supporting growth for Polymer's customers. Medbio is a
portfolio company of Graham Partners, a leading private investment firm targeting technology-driven advanced manufacturing companies.
Additional background of Medbio is enclosed with a copy of this letter. Prior to the sale, Medbio expressed an interest in continuing the PILOT
with the Agency. Due to the accelerated closing schedule for the transaction, consent to such assignment could not be accomplished in a
timely manner. As of August 31, 2020, BRI is the fee simple owner of 5732 Big Tree Road. As a result, to maintain the PILOT, the Company
Lease, Agency Lease, IDA Sublease, and PILOT Agreement need to be assigned to BRI, on behalf of PCl, for the remainder of the term which is
set to expire in 2023.

Municipality or Municipalities of current operations
Town of Orchard Park

Will the Proposed Project be located within a Municipality identified above?
Yes

Will the completion of the Project result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of
the state to another area of the state OR in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located within the
state?

No

If the Proposed Project is located in a different Municipality within New York State than that Municipality in which current operations are
being undertaken, is it expected that any of the facilities in any other Municipality will be closed or be subject to reduced activity?

No
(If yes, you will need to complete the Intermunicipal Move Determination section of this application)

Is the project reasonably necessary to prevent the project occupant from moving out of New York State?
Yes
If yes, please explain and identify out-of-state locations investigated, type of assistance offered and provide supporting documentation
available
Have you contacted or been contacted by other Local, State and/or Federal Economic Development Agencies?

No

If yes, please indicate the Agency and nature of inquiry below

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the Agency, then provide a statement in the space provided
below indicating why the Project should be undertaken by the Agency:

Describe the reasons why the Agency’s financial assistance is necessary, and the effect the Project will have on the Applicant’s business or
operations. Focus on competitiveness issues, project shortfalls, etc... Your eligibility determination will be based in part on your answer
(attach additional pages if necessary}
PC! is competing with several out-of-state and international competitors, both of which have lower tax burden on their respective business
and employees. The continuing benefit of the 2008 IDA PILOT will assist PCl in maintaining the investment of the 2012 Expansion, including its
world-class facility and state-of-the-science manufacturing equipment and automation necessary to support its business. The continuation of
the 2008 IDA PILOT enables PCl to continue its growth and investment in Orchard Park and Erie County, at large, including the ability to
increase its local labor force in highly specialized and well-paying manufacturing jobs. PCl is anticipating an additional expansion of the Facility
" within the next two years, and the continuation of the 2008 IDA PILOT will provide financial assistance to support the prospective expansion.

Please confirm by checking the box, below, if there is likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the Financial Assistance
provided by the Agency

Yes

If the Applicant is unable to obtain Financial Assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on the Applicant and Erie County?
Will project include leasing any equipment?

hitps:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 183 520



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

No
If yes, please describe equipment and lease terms.

Site Characteristics

Is your project located near public transportation?
No

If yes describe if site is accessible by either metro or bus line {provide route number for bus lines)

Has a project related site plan approval application been submitted to the appropriate planning department?
No

If Yes, include the applicable municipality’s and/or planning department’s approval resolution, the related State Environmental Quality
Review Act (“SEQR”) “negative declaration” resolution, if applicable, and the related Environmental Assessment Form (EAF), if

applicable.

If No, list the ECIDA as an “Involved Agency” on the related EAF that will be submitted to the appropriate municipality and/or planning
department for site plan approval.

Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the proposed location?
Yes
Describe the present zoning/land use
I-1, industrial District
Describe required zoning/land use, if different
N/A
If a change in zoning/land use is required, please provide details/status of any request for change of zoning/land use requirements
N/A

Is the proposed Project located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is complicating the development/use
of the property?
No

If yes, please explain

Has a Phase | Environmental Assessment been prepared, or will one be prepared with respect to the proposed Project Site?

No
If yes, please provide a copy.

Have any other studies, or assessments been undertaken with respect to the proposed Project Site that indicate the known or
suspected presence of contamination that would complicate the site's development?

No
If yes, please provide copies of the study.

If you are purchasing new machinery and equipment, does it provide demonstrable energy efficiency benefits?
No
If yes, describe the efficiencies achieved

You may also attach additional information about the machinery and equipment at the end of the application.

Does or will the company or project occupant perform research and development activities on new products/services at the project
location?

Yes
if yes, include percentage of operating expenses attributed to R&D activities and provide details.

10%

Select Project Type for all end users at project site (you may check more than one),

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 184 6/20



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

For purposes of the following, the term “retail sales” means (i} sales by a registered vendor under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of
New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101{b)(4){i} of the Tax

Law), or (ii} sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project.

Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities? If yes with respect to either economic activity

indicated below, you will need to complete the Retail section of this application.
Retail Sales No Services No
Please check any and all end uses as identified below.

No Acquisition of Existing Facility No Assisted Living No Back Office

No Civic Facility {(not for profit) No Commercial No Equipment Purchase
No Facility for the Aging No Industrial No Life Care Facility (CCRC)
No Market Rate Housing No Mixed Use No Multi-Tenant

No Retalil No Senior Housing Yes Manufacturing

No Other

For proposed facility_please include the sguare footage for each of the uses outlined below

If applicant is paying for FFE for tenants, include in cost breakdown.

Cost
Manufacturing/Processing 27,000 square feet $ 0
Warehouse square feet S 0
Research & Development square feet s 0
Commercial square feet $ 0
Retail square feet s 0
Office square feet $ 0
Specify Other square feet $ 0

If you are undertaking new construction or renovations, are you seeking LEED certification from the US Green Building Council?

No

If you answered yes to question above, what level of LEED certification do you anticipate receiving? (Check applicable box)

<BLANK>
Provide estimate of additional construction cost as a result of < BLANK >

LEED certification you are seeking

Will project result in significant utility infrastructure cost or uses Yes

What is the estimated project timetable {provide dates)

Start date : acquisition of equipment or construction of facilities
11/30/-0001

End date : Estimated completion date of project
11/30/-0001

Project occupancy : estimated starting date of occupancy
11/30/-0001

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 185

% of Total Cost

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

7/20



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Project Information

Estimated costs in connection with Project
1.) tand and/or Building Acquisition

S0 square feet acres

2.) New Building Construction

S0 square feet

3.) New Building addition(s)
S0 square feet

4.) Reconstruction/Renovation

50 square feet

5.) Manufacturing Equipment
S0

6.) Infrastructure Work
S0

7.} Non-Manufacturing Equipment: (furniture, fixtures, etc.)

S0

8.) Soft Costs: (Legal, architect, engineering, etc.)

$0

9.) Other Cost
$0

Explain Other
Costs

Total Cost S0

Construction Cost Breakdown:

Total Cost of Construction S0 (sum of 2, 3, 4 and 6 in Project Information, above)
Cost of materials S

% sourced in Erie County %

Sales and Use Tax:

Gross amount of costs for goods and services that are subject to S0
State and local sales and use tax- said amount to benefit from the
Agency's sales and use tax exemption benefit

Estimated State and local Sales and Use Tax Benefit (product of S0
8.75% multiplied by the figure, above):

** Note that the estimate provided above will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance. The Applicant
acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to undertake the total amount of investment as
proposed within this Application, and that the estimate, above, represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency
may authorize with respect to this Application. The Agency may utilize the estimate, above, as well as the proposed total Project Costs as
contained within this Application, to determine the Financial Assistance that will be offered.

Project refinancing estimated amount, if applicable (for S0
refinancing of existing debt only)

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date Yes
of this Application?

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 8/20

186



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

If Yes, describe particulars:

Sources of Funds for Project Costs:

Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits):
Bank Financing:

Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable):

Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable):

Public Sources (Include sum total of all state and federal grants
and tax credits):

Identify each state and federal grant/credit: {ie Historic Tax
Credit, New Market Tax Credit, Brownfield, Cleanup Program,
ESD, other public sources)

Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs:

Have you secured financing for the project?

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit:

Alf costs have been paid since this Application seeks retroactive
consent to the assignment of the 2008 IDA.

$0
S0
$0
$o
SO0

50

Yes

Amount of mortgage, if any that would be subject to mortgage recording tax:

Mortgage Amount (include sum total of
construction/permanent/bridge financing).

Lender Name, if Known

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit {product of
mortgage amount as indicated above multiplied by 3/4 of 1%):

Real Property Tax Benefit:

Identify and describe if the Project will utilize a real property
tax exemption benefit other than the Agency’s PILOT benefit
(485-a, 485-b, other):

S0

No

IDA PILOT Benefit: Agency staff will indicate the estimated amount of PILOT Benefit based on estimated Project Costs as contained herein and
anticipated tax rates and assessed valuation, including the annual PILOT Benefit abatement amount for each year of the PILOT benefit and the
sum total of PILOT Benefit abatement amount for the term of the PILOT as depicted in the PILOT worksheet in the additional document

section.

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources: Agency staff will calculate the percentage of Project Costs financed from
Public Sector sources based upon the Sources of Funds for Project Costs as depicted above. The percentage of Project Costs financed from

public sector sources will be depicted in the PILOT worksheet in the additional document section.

ECIDA encourages applicants to utilize MBE/WBE contractors for their projects. Describe your company’s internal practices that

promote MBE/WBE hiring and utilization

Is project necessary to expand project employment?
No

Is project necessary to retain existing employment?

Yes

Will project include leasing any equipment?

No
If yes, please describe equipment and lease terms.

https://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087

187 9/20



3/1/2021

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

You must include a copy of the most recent NYS-45 Quarterly Combined Withholding, Wage Reporting and Unemployment Insurance
Return. The Labor Market Area consists of the following six counties: Erie, Niagara, Chautaugua, Cattaraugus, Wyoming and Genessee.

By statute, Agency staff must project the number of FTE jobs that would be retained and created if the request for Financial Assistance is

granted. Agency staff will project such jobs over the TWO Year time period following Project completion. Agency staff converts PT jobs into

FTE jobs by dividing the number of PT jobs by two (2).

Current # of jobs at
proposed project
location or to be

If financial assistance is
granted — project the

relocated at project n.umber of FT ar_1d P
R jobs to be retained
location
Full time 0 120
Part time 0 0
Total 0 120

Salary and Fringe Benefits for Jobs to be Retained and Created

Category of Jobs to be  # of Employees Average Average Fringe
Retained and/or Retained and/or Salary for Benefits for Full
Created Created Full Time Time
Management 8 $122,314 $24,000
Professional 13 $ 73,000 $ 14,600
Administrative 7 $ 57,200 $ 11,440
Production 92 $ 40,000 $ 8,000
Independent 0 S0 $0

Contractor

Other 0 S0 $0

If financial assistance is
granted - project the
number of FT and PT

jobs to be created upon
24 months (2 years)

after Project completion

o

Average Salary for
Part Time (if
applicable)

$0
S0
S0
50
50

1]

Estimate number of
residents of the Labor
Market Area in which
the project is located

that will fill the FT and
PT jobs to be created

upon 24 months (2

years) after project

completion **
0
0

Average Fringe Benefits
for Part Time (if
applicable)

S0
$0
)
$0
$0

$0

** Note that the Agency may utilize the foregoing employment projections, among other items, to determine the financial assistance

that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant

by the Applicant to retain the number of jobs and create the number of jobs with respect to the Project as set forth in this Application.

Employment at other locations in Erie County: (provide address and number of employees at each location):

Address

Full time 0]

Part time 0
Total 0

Payroll Information

Annual Payroll at Proposed Project Site upon completion
6,100,000

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained (Full Time)
0

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained (Part Time)
66,700

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be created (Full Time)

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/ 100087 188

3176 Abbot Rd Hamburg, NY

5
0
5

o

10/20



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
0

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be created (Part Time}
c

Estimated salary range of jobs to be created
From (Full Time) O To (Full Time) O
From (Part Time) © To (Part Time) O

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 189 11/20



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

 section lli: Environmental Questionnaire

INSTRUCTIONS: Please complete the following questionnaire as completely as possible. If you need additional space to fully answer any
question, please attach additional page(s).

General Background Information

Address of Premises
5732 Big Tree Road, Orchard Park, New York 14127

Name and Address of Owner of Premises
Birch Run {nc. 5732 Big Tree Road, Orchard Park, New York 14127

Describe the general features of the Premises (include terrain, location of wetlands, coastlines, rivers, streams, lakes, etc.)

Industrial park, with wooded terrain, detention pond, and South Branch of Smokes Creek to Casenovia Creek located on the north part
of the parcel

Describe the Premises {including the age and date of construction of any improvements) and each of the operations or processes
carried out on or intended to be carried on at the Premises

Initial construction of Facility- 1990 27,000 square foot addition to existing Facility- 2012 [njection molding manufacturing operations,
office, and warehouse space.

Describe all known former uses of the Premises

Undeveloped

Does any person, firm or corporation other than the owner occupy the Premises or any part of it?

Yes

If yes, please identify them and describe their use of the property

Polymer Conversions, Inc.- Injection rholding manufacturing operations, office, and warehouse space. Polymer Conversions, Inc. is the
wholly-owned subsidiary of Applicant.

Have there been any spills, releases or unpermitted discharges of petroleum, hazardous substances, chemicals or hazardous wastes
at or near the Premises?

No

If yes, describe and attach any incident reports and the results of any investigations

Has the Premises or any part of it ever been the subject of any enforcement action by any federal, state or local government entity,
or does the preparer of this questionnaire have knowledge of: a) any current federal, state or local enforcement actions; b) any areas
of non-compliance with any federal, state or local laws, ordinances, rules or regulations associated with operations over the past 12
months?

No

If yes, please state the results of the enforcement action (consent order, penalties, no action, etc.) and describe the circumstances

Has there been any filing of a notice of citizen suit, or a civil complaint or other administrative or criminal procedure involving the
Premises?

No

If yes, describe in full detail

Solid And Hazardous Wastes And Hazardous Substances

Does any activity conducted or contemplated to be conducted at the premises generate, treat or dispose of any petroleum,

https://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 190 1220



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
petroleum-related products, solid and hazardous wastes or hazardous substances?
Yes

If yes, provide the Premises' applicable EPA (or State) identification number
NYS Small Quantity Waste Generator EPA ID # NYD 094 167 608

Have any federal, state or local permits been issued to the Premises for the use, generation and/or storage of solid and hazardous
wastes?

No

If yes, please provide copies of the permits.

Identify the transporter of any hazardous and/or solid wastes to or from the Premises

Republic Services

Identify the solid and hazardous waste disposal or treatment facilities which have received wastes from the Premises for the past two
(2) years

Scrap resin and thermoplastic material recycled with Republic Services.

Does or is it contemplated that there will occur at the Premises any accumulation or storage of any hazardous wastes on-site for
disposal for longer than 90 days?

No

If yes, please identify the substance, the quantity and describe how it is stored

Discharge Into Waterbodies

Briefly describe any current or contemplated industrial process discharges (including the approximate volume, source, type and
number of discharge points). Please provide copies of all permits for such discharges

N/A

Identify all sources of discharges of water, including discharges of waste water, process water, contact or noncontact cooling water,
and stormwater. Attach all permits relating to the same. Also identify any septic tanks on site

Sewage discharged into municipal sewer system.

Is any waste discharged into or near surface water or groundwaters?
No

if yes, please describe in detail the discharge including not only the receiving water's classification, but a description of the type and
quantity of the waste

Air Poliution

Are there or is it contemplated that there will be any air emission sources that emit contaminants from the Premises?
No

If yes, describe each such source, including whether it is a stationary combustion installation, process source, exhaust or ventilation
system, incinerator or other source

Are any of the air emission sources permitted?
No

If yes, attach a copy of each permit.

Storage Tanks

List and describe all above and under ground storage tanks at the Premises used to store petroleum or gasoline products, or other
chemicals or wastes, including the contents and capacity of each tank. Please also provide copies of any registrations/permits for the

https://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 191 13/20



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
tanks

One 55 gallon drum (Isopropyl alcohol)

Have there been any leaks, spills, releases or other discharges (including loss of inventory) associated with any of these tanks?
No

If yes, please provide all details regarding the event, including the response taken, all analytical results or reports developed through
investigation {(whether internal or external), and the agencies which were involved

Polychlorinated Biphenyls {"PCB" or "PCBs") And Asbestos

Provide any records in your possession or known to you to exist concerning any on-site PCBs or PCB equipment, whether used or
stored, and whether produced as a byproduct of the manufacturing process or otherwise.

Have there been any PCB spills, discharges or other accidents at the Premises?
No

If yes, relate all the circumstances

Do the Premises have any asbestos containing materials?
No

If yes, please identify the materials

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 192 14/20



3/1/2021

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I Section IV: Facility Type - Single or Multi Tenant

Is this a Single Use Facility or a Multi-Tenant Facility?

Single Use Facility

For Single Use Facility,

Occupant Name
Address
Contact Person
Phone

Fax

E-Mail

Federal ID #
SIC/NAICS Code

https:/AMww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 193

Polymer Conversions, Inc.
5732 Big Tree Road
Benjamin Harp, President
(716) 662-8550

bharp@polymerconversions.com
20-2706624

326199

15/20



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I Section VI: Retail Determination

To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency requires additional information if the proposed
Project is one where customers personally visit the Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or to purchase services.
Please answer the following:

Will any portion of the project (including that portion of the costs to be financed from equity or other sources) consist of facilities or
property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?
No

If yes, complete the Retail Questionnaire Supplement below.

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 194 16/20



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I section Vii: Adaptive Reuse Projects

Adaptive Reuse is the process of adapting old structures or sites for new purposes.

Are you applying for tax incentives under the Adaptive Reuse Program?
No

hitps://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2018/print/100087 195 17/20



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I Section Vill: Inter-Municipal Move Determination

The Agency is required by state law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting from Agency Financial Assistance
results In the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of the
state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or faciliies of the project occupant located within the state, Agency financial Assistance
is required to prevent the project occupant from relocating out of the state, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the project occupant's
competitive position in its respective industry.

Current Address
5732 Big Tree Road
City/Town
Orchard Park
State
New York
Zip Code
14127

Will the project result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the Project occupant from one area of the state to
another area of the state?

No

Will the project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Project accupant located within the state?
No

If Yes to either question, explain how, notwithstanding the aforementioned closing or activity reduction, the Agency's Financial
Assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of the State, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project
occupant’s competitive position in its respective industry:

Does this project involve relocation or consolidation of a project occupant from another municipality?
Within New York State No
Within Erie County No

If Yes to either question, please, explain

Will the project result in a relocation of an existing business operation from the City of Buffalo?
No

If yes, please explain the factors which require the project occupant to relocate out of the City of Buffalo (For example, present site is
not large enough, or owner will not renew leases etc.}

What are some of the key requirements the project occupant is looking forin a new site? (For example, minimum sq. ft., 12 foot
ceilings, truck loading docs etc.)

N/A
If the project occupant is currently located in Erie County and will be moving to a different municipality within Erie County, has the
project occupant attempted to find a suitable location within the municipality in which it is currently located?

<BLANK>

What factors have lead the project occupant to consider remaining or locating in Erie County?
N/A

If the current facility is to be abandoned, what is going to happen to the current facility that project occupant is located in?
N/A

https://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 196 18/20



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Please provide a list of properties considered, and the reason they were not adequate. (Some examples include: site not large
enough, layout was not appropriate, did not have adequate utility service, etc.) Please include full address for locations.

N/A

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 197 19/20



3/1/2021 The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I Section IX: Senior Housing
IDA tax incentives may be granted to projects under the Agency’s Senior Citizen Rental Housing policy when the project consists of a multi-

family housing structure where at least 90% of the units are (or are intended to be) rented to and occupied by a person who is 60 years of
age or older.

Are you applying for tax incentives under the Senior Rental Housing policy?
No

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100087 198 20/20



